STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
12/1/2020 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA*

AGENDA

No members of the public will be allowed in the BOCC Chambers due to concerns for public safety
resulting from the COVID-19 emergency and pursuant to the Governor of Nevada’s Declaration of
Emergency Directive 006 Section 1 which suspends the requirement in NRS 241.023(1)(b) that there be

a physical location designated for meetings of public bodies where members of the public are permitted
to attend and participate.

Further, due to the Governor’s mandated steps to protect against the spread of COVID-19, the Storey
County Board of County Commissioners are hosting a teleconference meeting this month. Members
of the public who wish to attend the meeting remotely, may do so by accessing the following meeting
on Zoom.com. Public comment may be made by communication through zoom.

*Join Zoom Meeting;: https://zoom.us/j/597519448 Meeting ID: 597 519 448

Dial by your location
+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)
+1 253 215 8782 US
+1 301 715 8592 US
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 597 519 448
Find your local number: https:/ / zoom.us/ u/adi9WjdtNr

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969.

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JAY CARMONA

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County




Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.
All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member
of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed,
and acted upon separately during this meeting. Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the
agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the
time allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Approval of the Agenda for December 1, 2020
4. CONSENT AGENDA
I For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $1,246,166.22
II  For possible action, approval of business license first readings:
A. Arizona Pipeline Company - Contractor / 890 E. Parr Blvd. ~ Reno, NV
B. Precision Control Systems LLC - Professional / 29355 W. 9 Mile Rd. ~
Farmington Hills, MI
C. Van Allen Plumbing - Contractor / 190 W. 5t Ave ~ Sun Valley, NV
5. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
8. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER/SEWER BOARD
9. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:
Consideration and possible approval of USDA Amended Letter of Conditions for the Gold Hill

Sewer Project for additional USDA Grant funds in the amount of $115,000.00 to be provided for
the completion of this project.




10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of rejection of low bid and approval of the next lowest bid

. submitted for the construction of the Gold Hill Wastewater Treatment Plant project (PWP-ST-

2020-312).

RECESS TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval to reimburse the Storey County Senior Center an amount
not to exceed $27,000.00 for costs directly related to the COVID-19 Pandemic from March 1,
2020 through December 30, 2020. The funds would be reimbursed from Storey County’s
allocation of CARES Act funds.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval to grant the Storey County businesses who have been
awarded fund through the CARES Act a second grant of equal value. The second award will
bring the total funds awarded to $260,000.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of determination that continuation of the infrastructure
tax is necessary for continued funding of infrastructure projects and if that determination is
made possible approval of setting a public hearing to consider a new infrastructure tax
expenditure plan for 10:30am on December 15, 2020 at the Storey County Courthouse at 26 S B
Street in Virginia City, Nevada.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of first reading of ordinance 20-317 regarding allocation
of infrastructure tax revenues on infrastructure project within the County pursuant to an
adopted plan of expenditure.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of second reading of Bill No. 126; Ordinance No. 20-315
providing for the substitution of the Storey County Board of County Commissioners as the ex
officio board of trustees of the Tahoe Reno Industrial General Improvement District (TRI GID).

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action on the business impact statement for the proposed diesel tax
ordinance, Bill No. 123, Ordinance No. 20-316.




18.

19.

20.

21,

22,

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible action on second reading of Bill No. 127, Ordinance No. 20-316
amending Storey County Code chapter 3.76 Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax-Road Repair by imposing a
tax on special fuel that consists of diesel fuel sold in Storey County. (This item will be continued to
December 15, 2020.)

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of first reading of Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313, text
amendments to Storey County Code Title 16 ~ Subdivisions and Title 17 - Zoning Ordinances,
specifically sections 16.20.010 and 17.03.230, to modify language that allows for a third-party
review of Planned Unit Development and Subdivision applications, including that the cost for
such third-party review be paid by the applicant.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of business license second readings:

A. High Sierra Fire Protection, LLC - Contractor / 4621 Goni Rd. ~ Carson City, NV

B. Motion & Flow Control Products, Inc. - Out of County / 10822 W Toller Dr. Ste.
300 ~ Littleton, CO

C. RSAnalysis, Inc. - Out of County / 1420 Holcomb Ave., #202 ~ Reno, NV

D. Sunrise Plumbing & Heating LLC - Contractor / 5330 Grass Valley Rd. ~

Winnemucca, NV

The Tow Truck Company - Out of County / 925 Matley Ln. ~ Reno, NV

Turner Construction Company ~ Contractor / 2500 Venture Oaks Ste. 200 ~

Sacramento, CA

G. W. W. Clyde & Co. - Contractor / 869 N. 1500 W. ~ Orem, UT

o m

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda iterns must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from




discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at |
http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that [ posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 11/24/2020; Virginia City
Post Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St,
Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the
Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and
Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV. This agenda was also
posted to the Nevada State website at https:/ /notice.nv.gov/ and to the Storey County website at
https:/ / www storeycounty.org/agendacenter.

R

By

Vanessa Stephen rk'Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12/01/2020 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. For possible action, approval of claims in the amount of $1,246,166.22
2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Cory Y. Wood
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1133

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA_ Comptroiler

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
X Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 4'£



Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Perlod: 10/26/2020-11/8/2020

Packet: PRPKT00873 - 2020-11-13 Payroll cw
Payroil Set: Storey County - 01

Type . Count Amount
Regular Checks 4 6,05%.42
Manual Checks 0 0.00
Reversals 0 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0.00
Direct Deposits 165 359,021.17
Total 169 365,080.59

A
Pproved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman

- Commissioner

- N

Commissionar

dmptroller W, =N
Date
Treasurer
_—
Date

11/10/2020 1:22:12 PM Page 8 of 8



Check Register

Packet: APPKT02443 - 2020-11-10 Spcl Ck All Comstock cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Paymant Date Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Numbar
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405020 ALL COMSTOCK LLC 11/10/2020 Regular 0.00 4,000.00 101185
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment

Paymant Type Count Count Dlscount Paymaent

Regular Checks . 1 1 0.00 4,000.00

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Volded Checks o 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

EFT's . _0 } o 0 099__“.*9.9_9_

1 1 0.00  4,000.00

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
) 7 _r,f/. &7 ’ )
!’o’mptrorler Date
Treasurer Date

11/10/2020 3:23:26 PM

Page t of 2



Check Registar Packet: APPKT02443-2020-11-10 Spel Ck All Comstock cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Parlod Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 11/2020 4,0009Q
4,000.00

11/10/2020 3:23:26 PM Page 2 of 2



Check Register

Packet: APPKT02440 - 2020-11-13 PR Payment sl

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Coda: AP Bank-AP Bank
405456 Public Employees Retiremant 11/13/2020 EFT 0.00 85,200.69 10135
300003 AFLAC 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 1,206.19 101169
300008 AFSCME Unlon 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 595.42 10117
405610 Californla State Disbursement Unlt  11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 36.94 101171
405519 Cigna Health and LHe Insurance Comr  11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 130,012.26 101172
**void** 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 0.00 101173
300001 Colonlal Life & Accident 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 103.38 101144
404704 DVM INSURANCE AGENCY 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 87.32 101175
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE NS CD 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 1,337.32 101176
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 727.49 101177
300011 Nevada State Treasurer 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 4.00 101178
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 303.56 101179
300010 State Collection & Disbursement Un  11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 213.43 101180
300006 Storey Co Fire Fighters Assoc 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 1,300.00 101181
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 7,854.50 101182
300005 Washington National Ins 11/33/2020 Regular 0.00 $18.99 101183
300002 Western Insurance Speclatties 11/13/2020 Regular 0.00 375,27 101184

Bank Coda AP Bank Summary

Paysble Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 0 15 0.00 144,676.07
Manuat Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Volded Checks 0 1 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's o3 v 000 8520065

33 17 0.00 229,876,786

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman 1 Commissloner Commissioner
) 7
Cotle smindity 7~ .
omptrolfer L /ﬂo:jﬂ ;()
Treasurer Date

11/10/2020 2:44:57 PM Page 1 of 2



Chack Register Packet: APPKT02440-2020-11-13 PR Payment sl

Fund Summary

Fund Name Pertod Amount
959 Pooled Cash Account 11/2020 o 229,876.76
229,876.76

11/10/2020 2:44:57 PM Page 2 of 2



Check Register

Packet: APPKT02441 - 2020-11-13 715 PERs Payment sl

By Check Number

Vendor Numbar Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405456 Public Employees Retirement 11/13/2020 EFY 0.00 44,932.68 10140
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Paymant

Regular Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Volded Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00

EFT's T A ..h00 4493268

2 1 0.00 44,932.68

Approved by the Storey County Board of Com missioners:

Chairman // Commissioner Commissioner
. v
L S e <
< AR, A L2090
com ptrollef Date
Treasurer Date

1/1G/2020 2:58:55 PM

Page 1 of 2



Check Ragistr- Packet: APPKTD2441-2020-11-13 715 PERs Payment sl

Fund Summary

Fund Nama Period Amount
999 Poaled Cash Account 11/2020 . 44,932.68
44,932.68

11/10/2020 2:58:55 PM Page 2 of 2



Payable Number Description
Itemn Description Units Price
Vendor Set: 01 - Storey County Vendors
405424 - Optum Bank, Member FOIC

INV0012934 HSA Contributians

HSA Contributions 0.00 000
INV0012935 +HSA Contributions

HSA Contributions 0.00 0.0¢

Post Date

Vendor History Report

By Vendor Name
Posting Date Range 11/13/2020 - 11/13/2020
Payment Date Range 11/13/2020 - 11/13/2020

1099  Payment Number Payment Date Amount  Shipping Tax Discount Net Payment
Amount Account Number Account Name Dist Amount
10,932.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,937.17 10,937.17
11/13/2020 DFTO000637 11/13/2020 10,837.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,837.17 10,837.17
10,837.17 001-29506-000 lnsurances 8,242.20
020-29506-000 Rds-Ins 369.98
090-29506-000 Wtr-ins 45.00
130-29506-00 Swr-Ins 24.99
230-29506-000 VCTC-Ins 345.00
231-29506-000 Pipers-Ins 70.00
250.25506-000 Fire-Ins 1,740.00
11/13/2020 DFTO000G38 11/13/2020 100.00 0.00 0.0G 0.00 100.00 100.00
100.00 001-29506-000 Insurances 100.00
Vendors: (1) Total 01 - Storey County Vendors: 10,937.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,937.17 10,937.17
Vendors: {1} Report Total: 10,937.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 10,937.17 10,937.17

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner
/I [/ 2020

Comptroller Date

Treasurer Date

11/10/2020 2:21:22 PM

Page 1 of 1



Check Register

Packet: APPKT02472 - 2020-11-20 AP Payments cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
406043 Ahmad, Firdous * 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 101186
402413 AIRGAS SPECIALTY PRODUCTS 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 367.84 101187
406035 All Aboard Rallroad Gifts L.L. Co 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 101188
400481 ALLISON, MACKENZIE, LTD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 50.00 101188
403795 ALPINE LOCK INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 108.90 101190
100135 ALSCO INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 444,43 101191
403651 ARC HEALTH AND WELLNESS 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 15,710.00 101192
404730 ARGENTA CHAPTER OES 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 100.00 101193
406036 Baboulin, Pascal 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 101194
404780 Backdraft OpCo LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 710.70 101185
405332 Battle Born Digltal Media and Marke 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 2%90.00 101196
100422 BOB BARKER COMPANY INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 197.62 101157
4035671 BURRELL, $COTT LEWIS 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 157.50 101198
100476 BURTON'S FIRE INC . 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 7112 101199
404206 CAPITAL SANITATION CO 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 202.02 101200
404216 CARSON VALLEY OIL CO INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0,00 2,848.72 101201
85720 CASELLE INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 270.00 101202
405968 CC Cleaning Service, LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,185.00 101203
403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,998.51 101204
**Void** 11/20/2020 ‘ Regular 0.00 0.00 101205
403635 CENTRAL SANITARY SUPPLY 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 204.49 101206
405519 Cligna Health and Life Insurance Corr  11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 22,384.92 101207
405134 CMC TIRE INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 261.58 101208
403822 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 171.50 101209
404466 DAIOHS USA INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 239.80 101210
404970 DANT-PACIFIC LTD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 111.91 101211
406010 Deltz Media & Marketing, LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 9,771.24 101212
404547 ELUOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,445.97 101213
403835 EWING [RRIGATION PRODUCTS, INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 435.74 101214
403216 FARR WEST ENGINEERING 11/20/2020 Regular - 0.00 31,245.00 101215
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 12,788.06 101216
101485 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 6,366.61 101217
403975 FERRELLGAS LP 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,897.53 101218
405264 FIDELITY SEC LIFE INS CO 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 237.52 101219
404117 FLEET HEATING & AR INCOR 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 2,745.68 101220
405969 Fleetpride, INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 769,12 101221
103470 GREAT BASIN TERMITE & PES 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 65.00 101222
404394 GTP INVESTMENTS LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 440.25 101223
404778 HAT, LTD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 3,524.08 101224
103218 HD SUPPLY CONST SUPPLY LT 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 107.68 101225
102983 KD SUPPLY FACIL MAINT LTD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 512,75 101226
406045 Hillebrand, Shella Marie 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 101227
403753 HOT SPOT BROADBAND INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 82,50 101228
103249 INTERNATIONAL CODECOUNCIL 11/20/2020 Regular | 0.00 972.00 101229
404331 INTERNATIONAL SECURITY PR 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 734.48 101230
100978 INTERSTATE OILCO 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,040.81 101231
405726 iT1 Consulting, LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 3,397.50 101232
403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 2,523.06 101233
103317 JapP LLC 1172072020 Regular 0.00 305.15 101234
405263 KANSAS CITY LIFE INS CO 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 . 21.36 101235
101040 L N CURTIS & SONS 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 940.33 101236
404091 LEWIS, DEBORAH PRINCE 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 300.00 101237
101030 LIFE-ASSIST INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 225.35 101238
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC | 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,000.00 101239

11/20/2020 10:51:20 AM Page 1 af 4



Check Replster Packet: APPKT02472-2020-11-20 AP Payments cw

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount  Payment Amount Number
404363 MA LABORATORIES INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,500.39 101240
405077 MACKAY MANSION 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 104.00 101241
405560 Mancuso, James V 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 675.00 101242
403032 MUCCAIN, JENNIFER 11/20/2020 Reguiar 0.00 . 79.97 101243
103126 MEDICAL PRIQRITY DISPATCH 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 50.00 101244
100471 MOUND HOUSE TRUE VALUE 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 102.45 101245
101228 NEV ADMIN BLOG & GROUNDS 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 7.653.94 101246
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 7,286.00 101247
403317 NEV DEPT PUBLIC SAFETY 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 402,50 101248
101335 NEV DEPT TAXATION 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 125,08 101249
101362 Nextel of Californla 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 174.97 101250
404163 NORTON CONSULTING LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,290.04 101251
402926 OFFSITE DATA DEPOT, LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 320.09 101252
404118 QPTUMINSIGHT INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 236.25 101253
405127 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 11/20/2020 Regular . 0.00 342,06 101254
404556 OUTFRONT MEDIA LLC 11/26/2020 Regular 0.00 667.45 101255
403895 PETRINI, ANGELO D 11/20/2020 Regular . 0.00 157.50 101256
405256 PIPER'S OPERA HOUSE 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 8.00 101257
403329 PROTECTION DEVICES INC 11/20/2020 Regutar 0.00 619.85 101258
102589 PUBLIC AGENCY COMPENSATIO 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 288,958,07 101255
404153 RANDS & SOUTH LTD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 891.00 101260
404134 RAPID SPACE LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 846.25 101261
402937 RAY MORGAN CQ INC (CA) 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,746.35 101262
404863 REFUSE, INC 11/20|l2020 Regular 0.00 221.26 101263
406042 Riggs, Troy 8. 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 120.00 101264
103241 58C GLOBAL SERVICES IN LD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 46.85 101265
406039 Sherman, Gayle 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 80.65 101266
405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 377.36 101267
102461 SIERRA CONTROL SYSTEMS 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,991.54 101268
102462 SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL MONITOR 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 322,00 101269
404862 SILVER QUEEN SISTERS,INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 101270
403957 SILVERLAND USA INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 500,00 101271
403384 SMITHS FOOD & DRUG CENTER 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 467.88 101272
06037 Sober, Alexia 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000,00 101273
404195 SOUTHERN GLAZERS WINE & S 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 2,108.50 101274
403234 SPALLONE, DOMINIC J Hi 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 508,12 101275
405475 Staples Contract & Commercial, Inc  11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 281.58 101276
101229 State of Nevada 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,060.00 101277
4038592 SUN PEAK ENTERPRISES 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,767.00 101278
404892 SUNBELT PUBLICATIONS, INC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 42992 101279
405244 SUTTON HAGUE LAW CORP 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 2,242.50 101280
406044 Taormina, Saralyn 11/20/2020 Regutar 0.00 5,000.00 101281
405124 TERRY, SHIRLEY 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 176,00 101282
405185 THATCHER COMPANY 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 785.25 101283
404615 THE ANTCS AGENCY 11/20/2020 Regular Q.00 1,200.00 101284
406016 The Great Basln Community Food Cc 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 500.00 101285
101786 THERMATEMP 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 2,534.00 101286
405031 UL LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 3,090.00 101287
102195 ULINE 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 153.63 101288
405479 US Imaging Inc 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 47,595.81 101289
404181 V&T Board of Comissloners 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 3,580.94 101290
406041 Van Bavel, Cynthla 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5.97 101291
405735 VC Tours LLC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 272.00 101292
403983 VCTC 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 151.86 101293
404335 VIDEO VELOCITY 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 250.00 101254
403894 VIRGINIA & TRUCKEE RRCO, INC.  11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 10,000.00 101295
403723 VIRGINIA HIGHLANDS VFD 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 1,250.00 101296
103080 WATERS SEPTIC TANK SV DEA 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 740.00 101297
103237 WESTERN ENVIRONMENTAL 1AR 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 158.05 101258
101920 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,559.39 101299
406040 Whalin, Marcella & Melroy, Paul 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00 5,000.00 101300

11/20/2020 10:51:20 AM Page 2 of 4



Check Registar

vendor Number
405919
404295

Packet: APPKT(02472-2020-11-20 AP Payments cw

Vendor Name Paymant Date Payment Type Discount Amount
Willlams Scotsman, Inc 11/20/2020 Regular 0.00
WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 12/20/2020 Bank Draft 0.00

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Peyable Payment

Payment Typa Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 202 115 0.00 585,180.62
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks o 1 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 22 1 0.00 6,158.40
EFT' 0o 800 o

224 117 0.00 £91,339.02

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Payment Amount Number
369.87 10130
6,158.40 OFTO000644

Chairman Commissioner Commissioner

¢ g YA i A-20 20000

omptroligr ' Date

Traasurer Date

11/20/2020 10:51:20 AM

Page 3 of 4



Check Ragister Packat: APPKT02472-2020-11-20 AP Payments cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Perlod Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 11/2020 591,338.02
581,339.02

11/20/2020 10:51:20 AM Page 4 of 4



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12_1-2020 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regularagenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -~ Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) [ move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Ashley Mead
Department: Community Development Telephone; 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally approved

on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next Commissioner’s
meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Compiroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attomey

8. Reviewed by:
Department Name: Community Development

Other agency revicw:

9. Board action:
] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [l Continued

Agenda Item No. 4:[‘[



Storey County Community Wevelopment

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0035
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office November 19, 2020
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Fr: Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the December 1, 2020 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda;

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. Arizona Pipeline Company — Contractor / 890 E. Parr Blvd. ~ Reno, NV
B. Precision Control Systems LLC — Professional / 29355 W. 9 Mile Rd. ~ Farmington Hills, MI
C. Van Allen Plumbing - Contractor / 190 W. 5" Ave ~ Sun Valley, NV

Ec¢: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting Date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 10 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Recgular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title:
Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval of USDA Amended
Letter of Conditions for the Gold Hill Sewer Project for additional USDA Grant funds in
the amount of $115,000.00 to be provided for the completion of this project. :

2. end n:

I, motion to approve USDA Amended Letter of Conditions for
additional USDA Grant funds in the amount of $115,000.00 for the Gold Hill Sewer
Project and allow Chairman McBride to sign all necessary related forms and documents
that maybe required by USDA for acceptance of these grant funds.

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Project Coordinator

Department: Telephone:

4. Staff summary:
Following the bid opening on November 4, 2020 for the Gold Hill Sewer Project, it was
determined that a shortfall in funding existed to move the project forward. USDA RD was
immediately contacted and advised of the circumstances. They advised that they had
additional grant funds that could be allocated to the project in the amount of $115,000.00.
They would seek approval from their National office in Washington D.C. for concurrence.
The National office provided the Nevada office that concurrence and therefore the
Amended Letter of Conditions and associated documents was issued to Storey County from
USDA RD for consideration.

5. Supporting materials:
USDA Amended Letter of Conditions
Request for Obligation of Funds
Water and Waste Water Grant Agreement

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller



7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action;
] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[r— p—

Agenda Item No. C’



November 12, 2020

Marshall McBride, Chairman

Storey County Board of County Commissioners
PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

SUBJECT: Amended Letter of Conditions - Storey County

Project Name: Gold Hill Sewer — Package Treatment Plant

Wastewater Application

CFDA Number & Title ~ 10.760 Water and Waste Disposal Systems for Rural
Communities

Loan: $264.000
Grant: $900.800
Applicant: . §

Other Funding:  $530,000

Dear Chairman McBride:

The letter of conditions dated May 9, 2019 is amended to include a subsequent grant in the amount of
$115,000.

SECTIONI - PROJECT DETAIL

Project funding correction is indicated in italics:

1. Project Funding — The Agency is offering the following funding for your project:
Agency Loan : $264,000
Agency Grant #13 $785,800
Agency Grant #15 5115000

This offer is based upon the following additional funding being obtained.

NDEP - State Revolving Fund (anticipated) $530,000
TOTAL PROJECT FUNDING: 31,694,800
2. Prolect Budgel — Funding from all sources has updated for the estimated expenditures as

Jollows:



Project Costs: Total Budgeted:

Construction 51,098,007
Procurement- Aeromix/Fluence Package $206,750
Contingency §67.579
Engineering Fees — includes the following:

Design & Construction Administration 5195430

Resident Project Representation (Inspection) 383,000

Structural Engineer Fee . 314000
Legal Fees - Bond Counsel 330,034
TOTAL $1,694,800

Please comiplete and return the enclosed Form RD 1940-1, “Request for Obligation of Funds™ as
soon as possible so that we can obligate the funds.

Attached for review is RUS Bulletin 1780-12 “Water and Waste System Grant Agreement” in the
amount of $900,800 that will replace the previously singed Grant Agreement in the amount 700,800
(original amount of grant funding) and the the draft agreement ( unsigned) in the amount of
$900,800. Grant funds will be the last funds advanced and the grant Agreement must be signed prior
to advancing any funds.

Obligated grant funds not needed to complete the proposed project will be deobligated. Any
reduction will be applied to grant funds first. An amended letter of conditions will be issued for any
changes to the total project budget.

All of the conditions of the original Letter of Conditions apply to this amendment.

We look forward to working with you to complete this project. If you have any questions, please
contact me at 775-738-8468 ext 107 or by mail at Maria.Murillofdusda.pov

Sincerely,

7Y Jarca. §. Maunitto
Maria J Murillo

Acting Community Programs Director
USDA Rural Development

Attachments

cc:  Phil Cowee, State Director, email: Philip.cowee(@usda.gov
Austin Osborne, Storey County Manager — email only, aosbome(@storeycounty.org
Hugh Gallagher, Storey County Comptroller —email only, hgallagher(@storeycounty.org .

Lara Mather, Storey County — via email only,
Joe Costanza, Dipietro-Thornton CPA’s — via email only, joe@dipietro-thorton.com

Keith Loomis, Storey County Deputy DA ~ via email only, kloomis(dstoreycounty.org

Lucas Tipton, P.E. — Farr West Engineering, email only, Lucas@FarrWestEngineering.com




of A e e 6 am .

UsDA

FORM APPROVED
Form RD 18401 REQUEST FOR OBLIGATION OF FUNDS e

INSTRUCTIONS-TYPE IN CAPITALIZED ELITE TYPE IN SPACES MARKED { )
Complete items 1 through 29 and applicable Items 30 through 34. See FMI.

1. CASE NUMBER LOAN NUMBER FISCAL YEAR
ST CO BORROWER ID .
33-015-#xxx%x(]134 21
2. BORROWER NAME 3. NUMBER NAME FIELDS
Storey County l (1. 2. or 3 from frem 2)
4. STATE NAME
Nevada
& COUNTY NAME
Storey
GENERAL BORROWER/LOAN INFORMATION
6. RACE/ETHNIC 1. TYPE OF APPLI(%ANR'(I; OF FARMERS 8. COLLATERAL CODE 9. EMPLOYEE
CLASSIFIATION | ypgvpuy,  Siiseltfiflift, | stusswe swoucoony | RELATIONSHIP CODE
1 -WHITE A HISPANIC J-CORPORATION ;| ivouan TRISE mﬁﬂgf :‘ zg:;g‘l“: 2. MEMBER OF FAMILY
[Fam T g femeeer ot | |Sameder , ame B
1 EX CODE ’ FAMILY UNIT 12. VETERAN CODE 13. CREDIT REPORT
o s‘ MALE mw 11 MAR'TAL sﬁAleRIED ANCLUOES 1-YEB RA 1-YES 0
6 |2 remaie 8- PR 0007 2. SEraRATED WIDOWEDANVORCED) 2-NO 2 I 2-N0
14. DIRECT PAYMENT 15. TYPE OF PAYMENT 16. FEE INSPECTION LotA
l (Soe FMI) 2 ANRUALLY 4 QuARTERLY 2| it sk T h’- v
17. COMMUNITY SIZE 18. YSE OF FUNDS CODE
1-10000 ON LESS (FOR SFH AND
2-OVER 10,000  HPG DMLY} (See FMI)
COMPLETE FOR OBLIGATION OF FUNDS
19. TYPE OF 20. PURPOSE CODE 21. SOURCE OF FUNDS 22. TYPE QF ACTION
ASSISTANCE © COLIGATION oy
065 I (598 FMY I 3. CORRAC oW OF BeIATION
23. TYPE OF SUBMISSION 24. AMOUNT OF LOAN 25, AMOUNT OF GRANT
1 - INMTAL
l 2 -BUBBEQUENT 115,000
28. AMOUNT OF 27. DATE OF 28. INTEREST RATE 29. REPAYMENT TERMS
IMMEDIATE ADVANCE APPROVAL
MO DAY YR
0 % |
COMPLETE FOR COMMUNITY PROGRAM AND CERTAIN MULTIPLE-FAMILY HOUSlNG LOANS
30.PROFITTYPE et Eonoi e T T
1- FULL PROFIT 3 - NONPRORIT LR ALY 1--“,. - '-'.;ifl N o o
COMPLETE FOR EM LOANS ONLY COMPLETE FOR CREDIT SALE-ASSUMPTION
31. DISASTER DESIGNATION NUMBER 32. TYPE OF SALE
2 - ABBUMPTION ONLY & -ABSUNP TION YWITH
(Sea Fi) 1 CREDIT BALE ONLY 3 -CREDIT BALE WITH SUBSEQUENT LOAN BUBBEQUENT LOAN
FINANCE OFFICE USE ONLY COMPLETE FOR FP LOANS ONLY
33. OBLIGATION DATE 34. BEGINNING FARMER/RANCHER
MO DA YR
| soe ey

If the deviaiont comtained above in i3 form resuds in deinol, redim thon or concelinion of USDA assiskice, you nity qppeal this decision il RIve @ ACaring or o aKiy Fequest a revien i ften of o heariig
Plecse wwr the foria we Deve tochwdedd for thex parpose.

Position 2
ORIGINAL - Borrower's Casa Folder COPY 1 - Finance Office COPY 2 - Applicant/Lender COPY 3 - State Office

Averwdungs i she Poperwock Reduction Act of 1993 au ayeicy mar ot comfucT or apomses, md @ person Is not regnired 10 1 expoed 10 coliccions nf nyPessouion sl ss 5t displeys o vafid OMB comrnd imither The wled
A coutr il iwember for thix tnformaiioe collection is 05T0-X062. The time rrguired 10 complute INT formolion collection it esiimaied to mviage 135 miste per sexponse, wchahug the thwe for FEVICw BIG IR Hetiemiy,
searvhag existiny; da sources, gatheriny oend mclsnaining it seecked, cand completing oed reveor g the cotlecsion of ofos mesion

R T T S e PR



CERTIFICATION APPROVAL
For All Farmers Programs EM, OL, FO, and SW Loans

This loan is approved subject to the availability of funds. If this loan does not close for any reason within 90 days from the
date of approval on this document, the approval official will request updatcd cligibility information. The undersigned loan
applicant agrees that the approval official will have 14 working days to review any updated information prior to submitting
this document for obligation of funds. If there have been significant changes that may affect eligibility, a decision as to
eligibility and feasibility will be made within 30 days from the time the applicant provides the necessary information.

If this is a loan approval for which a lien and/or title search is necessary, the undersigned applicant agrees that the
15-working-day loan closing requirement may be exceeded for the purposes of the applicant's legal representative
completing title work and completing loan closing.

35. COMMENTS AND REQUIREMENTS OF CERTIFYING OFFICIAL
Subject to the Letter of Conditions dated 05-09-2019 and all amendments.

36. 1HEREBY CERTIFY that | am unabie to obtain sufficient credit elsewhere to finance my actual needs at reasonable rates
and terms, taking into consideration prevailing private and cooperative rates and terms in or near my community for loans
for similar purposes and periods of time. | agree to use the sum specified herein, subject to and in accordance with
regulations applicable to the type of assistance indicatcd above, and request payment of such sum. [ agree to report to
USDA any material adverse changes, financial or otherwise, that occur prior to loan closing. I certify that no part of the sum
specified herein has been received. | have reviewed the loan approval requirements and comments associated with this loan
requesl and agree to comply with these provisions.

{For FP loans at cligible terms only) If this loan is approved, | elect the interest rate to be charged on my loan to be the lower of the
interest rate in cffect at the lime of loan approval or loan closing. Lf | check "NO™, the interest rate charged on my
loan will be the rate specificd in ltemn 28 of this form. YES NO

WARNING: Whoever, in any matter within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States
knowlngly and willfully falsifies, conceals or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material
fact, or makes any false, fictitious or fraudulent statements or representations, or makes or uses
any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent
statement or entry, shall be fined under this title or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.”

Date , 20

Marshall McBride Chairman
{Signature of Applicant)

Date , 20

(Signature of Co-Applicant)

37. T HEREBY CERTIFY that all of the committee and administrative determinations and certifications required by regulations
prerequisite to providing assistance of the type indicated above have been made and that evidence thereof is in the docket, and
that all requirements of pertinent regulations have been complied with. 1 hereby approve the above-described assistance in the
amount set forth above, and by this document, subject to the availability of funds, the Government agrees to advance such
amount to the applicant for the purpose of and subject to the availability prescribed by regulations applicable to this type of

assistance.
Maria J Murillo
(Signature of Approving Qfficial)
Typed or Printed Name: Maria J Murillo
Date Approved: Title: Acting Community Program Director
38.  TO THE APPLICANT: As of this date , this is notice that your application for financial assistance

from the USDA has been approved, as indicated above, subject to the availability of funds and other conditions required by
the USDA. If you have any questions contact the appropriate USDA Servicing Office.

R e R i I T e T Y - - - - 4 Tal Y EL Y. SR LN



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Water and Waste System Grant Agreement

United States Department of Agriculture

Rural Utilities Service

THIS AGREEMENT dated . between

Storey County
a public corporation organized and operating under

NRS 243
(Authorizing Statute)

herein called ""Grantee,"” and the United States of America acting through the Rural Utilities Service, Department
of Agriculture, herein called “*Grantor," WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS

Grantee has determined to undertake a project of acquisition, construction, enlargement, or capital improvement
of a (water) (waste) system to serve the area under its jurisdiction at an estimated cost of $ 1,694,800.00
and has duly authorized the undertaking of such project.

Grantee is able to finance not more than $ 794,000.00 of the development costs through
revenues, charges, taxes or assessments, or funds otherwise available to Grantee resulting in a reasonable

user charge.

Said sum of $ 794,000.00 has been committed to and by Grantee for such project
development costs.

Grantor has agreed to grant the Grantee a sum not to exceed $ 900,800.00 or _53.15
percent of said project development costs, whichever is the lesser, subject to the terms and conditions
established by the Grantor. Provided, however, that the proportionate share of any grant funds actually
advanced and not needed for grant purposes shall be retumed immediately to the Grantor. The Grantor may
terminate the grant in whole, or in part, at any time before the date of completion, whenever it is determined that
the Grantee has failed to comply with the Conditions of the grant.

As a condition of this grant agreement, the Grantee assures and certifies that it is in compliance with and will
comply in the course of the agreement with all applicable laws, regulations, Executive orders and other generally
applicable requirements, including those set out in 7 CFR 3015.205(b), which hereby are incorporated into this
agreement by reference, and such other statutory provisions as are specifically set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of said grant by Grantor to Grantee, to be made pursuant to
Section 306(a) of The Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act for the purpose only of defraying a part
not to exceed _ 53.1S _ percent of the project development costs, as defined by applicable Rural Utilities Service
instructions.

Grantee Agrees That Grantee Will:
A. Cause said project to be constructed within the total sums available to it, including said grant, in

accordance with the project plans and specifications and any modifications thereof prepared by Grantee and
approved by Grantor.



Bulletin 1780-12
Page 2

B. Permit periodic inspection of the construction by a representative of Grantor during construction.

C. Manage, operate and maintain the system, including this project if less than the whole of said system,
continuously in an efficient and economical manner.

D. Make the services of said system available within its capacity to all persons in Grantee's service area
without discrimination as to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, or physical or mental
handicap (possess capacity to enter into legal contract for services) at reasonable charges, including
assessments, taxes, or fees in accordance with a schedule of such charges, whether for one or more classes of
service, adopted by resolution dated , as may be modified from time to time by
Grantee. The initial rate schedule must be approved by Grantor. Thereafter, Grantee may make such
modifications to the rate system as iong as the rate schedule remains reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

E. Adjust its operating costs and service charges from time to time to provide for adequate operation and
maintenance, emergency repair reserves, obsolescence reserves, debt service and debt service reserves.

F. Expand its system from time to time to meet reasonably anticipated growth or service requirements in
the area within its jurisdiction.

G. Provide Grantor with such periodic reports as it may require and permit periodic inspection of its
operations by a representative of the Grantor.

H. To execute any agreements required by Grantor which Grantee is legally authorized to execute. If
any such agreement has been executed by Grantee as a result of a loan being made to Grantee by Grantor
contemporaneously with the making of this grant, another agreement of the same type need not be executed in
connection with this grant.

I. Upon any default under its representations or agreements set forth in this instrument, Grantee, at the
option and demand of Grantor, will repay to Grantor forthwith the original principal amount of the grant stated
herein above with the interest at the rate of 5 percentum per annum from the date of the default. Default by the
Grantee will constitute termination of the grant thereby causing cancellation of Federal assistance under the
grant. The provisions of this Grant Agreement may be enforced by Grantor, at its option and without regard to
prior waivers by it previous defaults of Grantee, by judicial proceedings to require specific performance of the
terms of this Grant Agreement or by such other proceedings in law or equity, in either Federal or State courts, as
may be deemed necessary by Grantor to assure compliance with the provisions of this Grant Agreement and
the laws and regulations under which this grant is made.

J. Return immediately to Grantor, as required by the regulations of Grantor, any grant funds actually
advanced and not needed by Grantee for approved purposes.

K. Use tha real property including tand, land improvements, structures, and appurtenances thereto, for
authorized purposes of the grant as long as needed.

1. Title to real property shall vest in the recipient subject to the condition that the Grantee shall use the
real property for the authorized purpose of the original grant as long as needed.

2. The Grantee shall obtain approval by the Grantor agency for the use of the real property in other
projects when the Grantee determines that the property is no longer needed for the original grant
purposes. Use in other projects shall be limited to those under other Federal grant programs or programs
that have purposes consistent with those authorized for support by the Grantor.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 3

3. When the real property is no longer needed as provided in 1 and 2 above, the Grantee shall request
disposition instructions from the Grantor agency or its successor Federal agency. The Grantor agency
shall observe the following rules in the disposition instructions:

{a) The Grantee may be permitted to retain title after it compensates the Federal Government in
an amount computed by applying the Federal percentage of participation in the cost of the
original project to the fair market value of the property.

(b} The Grantee may be directed to sell the property under guidelines provided by the Grantor
agency. When the Grantee is authorized or required to sell the property, proper sales procedures
shall be established that provide for competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest
possible retum.

[Revision 1, 04/17/1998]

{c) The Grantee may be directed to transfer title to the property to the Federal Government
provided that in such cases the Grantee shall be entitled to compensation computed by applying
the Grantee's percentage of participation in the cost of the program or project to the current fair
market value of the property.

This Grant Agreement covers the following described real property (use continuation sheets as
necessary)}.

L. Abide by the following conditions pertaining to equipment which is furnished by the Grantor or
acquired wholly or in part with grant funds. Equipment means tangible, non-expendable, personal property
having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more per unit. A grantee may use
its own definition of equipment provided that such definition would at least include all equipment defined above.
[Revision 1, 04/17/1998]

1. Use of equipment.

(a) The Grantee shall use the equipment in the project for which it was acquired as long as
needed. When no longer needed for the original project, the Grantee shail use the equipment in
connection with its other Federally sponsored activities, if any, in the following order of priority:

1) Activities sponsored by the Grantor.
(2) Activities sponsored by other Federal agencies.

{b) During the time that equipment is held for use on the property for which it was acquired, the
Grantee shall make it available for use on other projects if such other use will not interfere with
the work on the project for which the equipment was originally acquired. First preference for such
other use shall be given to Grantor sponsored projects. Second preference will be given to other
Federally sponsored projects.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 4

2. Digposition of equipment. When the Grantee no longer needs the equipment as provided in paragraph
(a) above, the equipment may be used for other activities in accordance with the following standards:

(a) Equipment with a current per unit fair market value of less than $5,000. The Grantee may use
the equipment for other activities without reimbursement to the Federal Government or sell the
equipment and retain the proceeds.

{b) Equipment with a current per unit fair market value of $5,000 or more. The Grantee may retain
the equipment for other uses provided that compensation is made to the original Grantor agency
or its successor. The amount of compensation shall be computed by applying the percentage of
Federal participation in the cost of the original project or program to the current fair market vaiue
or proceeds from sale of the equipment. If the Grantee has no need for the equipment and the
equipment has further use value, the Grantee shall request disposition instructions from the
original Grantor agency.

The Grantor agency shall determine whether the equipment can be used to meet the agency's
requirements. If no requirement exists within that agency, the availability of the equipment shall
be reported, in accordance with the guidelines of the Federal Property Management Regulations
(FPMR), to the General Services Administration by the Grantor agency to determine whether a
requirement for the equipment exists in other Federal agencies. The Grantor agency shall issue
instructions to the Grantee no later than 120 days after the Grantee requests and the following
procedures shall govern:

(1) If so instructed or if disposition instructions are not issued within 120 calendar days
after the Grantee's request, the Grantee shall sell the equipment and reimburse the
Grantor agency an amount computed by applying to the sales proceeds the percentage of
Federal participation in the cost of the original project or program. However, the Grantee
shall be permitted to deduct and retain from the Federal share ten percent of the proceeds
for Grantee's selling and handling expenses.

(2) if the Grantee is instructed to ship the equipment elsewhere the Grantee shall be
reimbursed by the benefiting Federal agency with an amount which is computed by
applying the percentage of the Grantee participation in the cost of the original grant
project or program to the current fair market value of the equipment, pius any reasonable
shipping or interim storage costs incurred.

(3) If the Grantee is instructed to otherwise dispose of the equipment, the Grantee shall be
reimbursed by the Grantor agency for such costs incurred in its dispasition.

3. The Grantee's property management standards for equipment shall also include:

(a) Records which accurately provide for: a description of the equipment; manufacturer's serial
number or other Identification number; acquisition date and cost; source of the equipment:
percentage (at the end of budget year) of Federal participation in the cost of the project for which
the equipment was acquired; location, use and condition of the equipment and the date the
information was reported; and ultimate disposition data including sales price or the method used
todetermine current fair market vaiue if the Grantee reimburses the Grantor for its share.

(b) A physical inventory of equipment shall be taken and the results reconciled with the
equipment records at least once every two years to verify the existence, current utilization, and
continued need for the equipment.



RUS Builetin 1780-12
Page §

{c) A control system shall be in effect to insure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or
theft of the equipment. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated and fully
documented.

(d) Adequate maintenance procedures shall be implemented to keep the equipment in good
condition.

(e) Proper sales procedures shall be established for unneeded equipment which would provide
for competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest possible return.

This Grant Agreement covers the following described equipment(use continuation sheets as necessary).

All pumps motors appurtenances of the package treatment plant to be constructed in Gold Hill to replace the
community septic system,

M. Provide Financial Management Systems which will include:

1. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each grant. Financial reporting
will be on an accrual basis.

2. Records which identify adequately the source and application of funds for grant-supported activities.
Those records shall contain information pertaining to grant awards and authorizations, obligations,
unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays, and income.

3. Effective control over and accountability for all funds, property and other assets. Grantees shall
adequately safeguard all such assets and shall assure that they are used solely for authorized purposes.

4. Accounting records supported by source documentation.

N. Retain financial records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to
the grant for a period of at least three years after grant closing except that the records shall be retained beyond
the three-year period if audit findings have not been resolved. Microfilm or photo copies or similar methods may
be substituted in lieu of original records. The Grantor and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any
of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Grantee's government which are pertinent to the specific grant program for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcripts.

O. Provide information as requested by the Grantor to determine the need for and complete any
necessary Environmental impact Statements.

P. Provide an audit report prepared in accordance with Grantor regulations to allow the Grantor to
determine that funds have been used in compliance with the proposal, any applicable laws and regulations and
this Agreement.

Q. Agree to account for and to return to Grantor interest earned on grant funds pending their
disbursement for program purposes when the Grantee is a unit of local government. States and agencies or
instrumentality’s of states shall not be held accountable for interest earned on grant funds pending their
disbursement.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 6

R. Not encumber, transfer or dispose of the property or any part thereof, furnished by the Grantor or
acquired wholly or in part with Grantor funds without the written consent of the Grantor except as provided in

item K above.

S. To include in all contracts for construction or repair a provision for compliance with the Copeland
“"Anti-Kick Back” Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR, Part 3).
The Grantee shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Grantor.

T. To include in all contracts in excess of $100,000 a provision that the contractor agrees to comply with
all the requirements of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7414 ) and Section 308 of the Water Pollution Controf Act
(33 U.S.C. §1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well as all other
requirements specified in Section 114 of the Clean Air Act and Section 308 of the Water Pollution Control Act
and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder after the award of the contract. In so doing the Contractor
further agrees:

[Revision 1, 11/20/1997]

1. As a condition for the award of contract, to notify the Owner of the receipt of any communication from
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) indicating that a facility to be utilized in the performance of
the contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA list of Violating Facilities. Prompt notification is
required prior to contract award.

2. To certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any nonexempt contractor subcontract is
not listed on the EPA list of Violating Facilities pursuant to 40 CFR Part 32 as of the date of contract
award,

[Revision 1, 11/20/1997]

3. To include or cause to be included the above criteria and the requirements in every nonexempt
subcontract and that the Contractor will take such action as the Government may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions.

As used in these paragraphs the term *“facility” means any building, plan, installation, structure, mine, vessel or
other floating craft, location, or site of operations, owned, leased, or supervised by a Grantee, cooperator,
contractor, or subcontractor, to be utilized in the performance of a grant, agreement, contract, subgrant, or
subcontract. Where a location or site of operation contains or includes more than one building, plant, installation,
or structure, the entire location shall be deemed to be a facility except where the Director, Office of Federal
Activities, Environmental Protection Agency, determines that independent facilities are co-located in one
geographical area.

Grantor Agrees That It
A. Will make available to Grantee for the purpose of this Agreement not to exceed

$ 900,800.00 which it will advance to Grantee to meet not to exceed __ 53.15 _ percent of the project
development costs of the project in accordance with the actual needs of Grantee as determined by Grantor.

B. Will assist Grantee, within available appropriations, with such technical assistance as Grantor deems
appropriate in planning the project and coordinating the plan with local official comprehensive plans for sewer
and water and with any State or area ptans for the area in which the project is located.

C. At its sole discretion and at any time may give any consent, deferment, subordination, release,
satisfaction, or termination of any or all of Grantee's grant obligations, with or without valuable consideration,
upon such terms and conditions as Grantor may determine to be (1) advisable to further the purpose of the grant
or to protect Grantor's financial interest therein and (2) consistent with both the statutory purposes of the grant
and the limitations of the statutory authority under which it is made.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 7

Termination of This Agreement

This Agreement may be terminated for cause in the event of default on the part of the Grantee as
provided in paragraph | above or for convenience of the Grantor and Grantee prior to the date of completion of
the grant purpose. Termination for convenience will occur when both the Grantee and Grantor agree that the
continuation of the project will not produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of
funds.

In witness whereof Grantee on the date first above written has caused these presence to be executed by
its duly authorized

Chairman

attested and its corporate seal affixed by its duly authorized

County Clerk-Treasurer

Attest:

By

Vanessa Stephens
(Title) County Clerk-Treasurer

By

Marshall McBride
(Title) Chairman

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE

By
(Title)



USDA

FORM APPROVED
:‘:m ;!2110:40-1 REQUEST FOR OBLIGATION OF FUNDS OME No. 0670.0062

INSTRUCTIONS-TYPE IN CAPITALIZED ELITE TYPE IN 8PACES MARKED { }
Complete items 1 through 29 and appiicable items 30 through 34. Sea FM|,

1. CASE NUMBER LOAN NUMBER FISCAL YEAR
8T CO BORROWERID
313-015-%*an4()]34 21
2. BORROWER NAME 3. NUMBER NAME FIELDS
Storey County I {1 2, 0rd fromitem )
4. STATE NAME
Nevada
5. COUNTY NAME
Storey
GENERAL BORROWER/LOAN INFORMATION
§. RACE/ETHNIC 7. TYPE OF APPLICANT 8. COLLATERAL CODE 9. EMPLOYEE
CLASSIFICATION omowoun 8 RO SecuA LoaLtaTATE 4 AcneavOsLy [ RELATIONSHIP GODE
| SRS DRERIAGw | S LSS Cimom
 BLACK [ 4 - auc y AND CHATTEL 7 - BECURED BY ; AT
l 3 s 4 In ;Aveoc o8 :?;l;'mu:cmnawmsmv I Vaoreomyon ' sons | [ 1-cLo0E RELATIVE
3- FAMRY
0. S;.E:.KKICDDE {90aAN was orago 11. Hx'l.RITAL SEATUS o . 12 YE‘:’!MN CODE 13, CI:EEE!DH REPORT
slug__u 5 PG 900 2- SERARATED  WIDOWEDDNVORCED 2.NO 2| 2w
14. DIRECT PAYMENT 15. TYPE OF PAYMENT 18, FEE INSPECTION
| tomen | e | v
17, COMMUNITY BIZE 18. USE OF FUNDS CODE
110000 O LESS {FOR 8FH AND (See FMI)
] 2.OVER 10088 HPO OMY)
COMPLETE FOR OBLIGATION OF FUNDS
16. TYPR OF 20. PURPDSE CODE 21. SQURCE OF FUNDS 22. TYPE OF ACTION
A8BISTANCE 1. OBLKGATION ONLY
. £a1
oes | o | | SRR e
23, TYPE OF SUBMISSION 24. AMOUNT OF LOAN 28. AMOUNT OF GRANT
1-TAL
2 -8UBIEGUENY
| $115,000.00
28. AMOUNT OF 27.DATEOF - 28, INTEREST RATE 9. REPAYMENT TERMS
IMMEDIATE ADVANCE APPROVAL
MO DAY YR
0 % |
COMPLETE FOR COMMUNITY PROGRAM AND CERTAIN MULTIPLE-FAMILY HOUBING LOANS
30. PROFIT TYPE e E
1 FLAL PROFIT :::me:n::'w" : -:!.““,"'w 7'-‘_,".55 [ - .
COMPLETE FOR EM LOANS ONLY COMPLETE FOR CREDIT SALE-ASSUMPTION
31. DISASTER DESIGNATION NUMBER 32, TYPE OF BALE
7. ABSUMATION ONLY T -ASSUMPTION WHTH
(ow £A8) 1-CNEOIT SALE OMLY 1 -GREOIT SALE WATH SUBSEQUENT LOAN BUBBEQUENT LOAN
FINANCE QOFFICE USE ONLY COMPLETE FOR FP LOANS ONLY
3). OBLIGATION DATE 34, BEGINNING FARMER/RANCHER
MO DA YR
1 {Sea FMi)

f dhe decision cuntdsad obuwt In this foita 1esieis bt deived, redction or cancolinion of USDA aavisionce, bun may append ths decision amd have o hearimg or row Ay medgueat o veview o hen of o ikaring
Ploces wae the form vu burw incivded for tix purpose

Posillon 2
ORIGINAL - Borrowar's Case Folder COPY 1 - Finance Office COPY 2 - Applicant/Lender COPY 1 - Stato OHice

Acenrding to the Paperwork Hedwition Act of 1995, an agenvy mewy not comdiet or sponsr, el @ person i ot Fecueead fo reipendd i 0 cotlectmt of mfonmedion mless i cisplrvs mooofid OMB cotteol mambiee Fine iind
(WA comtrol mumiber for this mfarvuni ¢ allection 15 (170-0062 The twre required 1o complerc this Infioensation collacion 11 ot revuge 13 wanaies per vegpcanne, ineluding te se e reviewing mst i,
searchung reisiig okt surves. geihering roni molniaiiug the dain seeded, omi compheling umi vevicieing the cutfection nfinfrrausting



For All Farmers Programs

3s.

34,

CERTIFICATION APPROVAL

EM, OL, FO, and SW Loans

This loan is approved subject to the availability of funds. If this loan does not close for any reason within 90 days from the
date of approval on this document, the approval official will request updated eligibility information, The undersigned loan
applicant agrees that the approval official will have 14 working days to review any updated information prior to submitting
this document for obligation of funds. If there have been significant changes that may affect eligibility, a decision as to
eligibility and feasibility will be made within 30 days from the time the applicant provides the necessary information.

If this is a loan approval for which a lien and/or title search is necessary, the undersigned applicant agrees that the
15-working-day loan closing requirement may be exceeded for the purposes of the applicant's legal representative
completing title work and completing loan closing.

COMMENTS AND REQUIREMENTS OF CERTIFYING OFFICIAL
Subject to the Letter of Conditions dated 05-09-2019 and all amendments.

[ HEREBY CERTIFY that | am unable to obtain sufficient credit elsewhere to finance my actual needs at reasonable rates
and terms, taking into consideration prevailing private and cooperative rates and terms in or near my community for loans
for similar purposes and periods of time. I agree to use the sum specified herein, subject to and in accordance with
regulations applicable to the type of assistance indicated above, and request payment of such sum. I agree (o repott to
USDA any material udverge changes, financial or otherwise, that occur prior to loan closing. I certify that no part of the sum
specified herein has been received. I heve reviewed the loan approval requirements and comments associated with this loan
request and agree to comply with these provisions,

(For FP loans at eligible terms only) 1f this loan is approved, [ elect the interest rate to be charged on my loan 1o be the lower of the
intercat rate in effcct at the time of loan approval or loan closing. If 1 check "NOQ*, the interest rate charged on my
loan will bs the rate specified in ltcm 28 of this form. YES NO

WARNING: Whoaever, in any matter within the Jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States
knowingly and willfully faisifies, conceals or covers up by any trick, scheme, or device a material
fact, or makea any faiss, fictitious or fraudulent stataments or reprasentations, or makes or uses
any false writing or document knowing the same to contain any false, fictitious or fraudulent

statement or entry, shait be fined under this title or Imprisgped not more than five years, or bath."
puetlpVembar (& 2o M

Date

37

Marshall McBride Chairman
(Signature of Applicant}

.20

(Signature of Co-Applicant)

'IHEREBY CERTIFY that all of the committee and administrative determinations and certifications required by regulations

prerequisite 10 providing assistance of the type indicated above have been made and that evidence thereof is in the docket, and
that all requirements of pertinent regulations have been complied with, I hereby approve the above-described assistance in the
amount set forth above, and by this document, subject to the availability of funds, the Government agrees to advance such
amount to the applicant for the purpose of and subject to the availability prescribed by regulations applicable to this type of
Bssistance.

Maria J Murillo
(Signature of Approving Official)

Typed or Printed Name: Maria J Murillo

Date Approved: Title: Acting Community Proegram Director

1.

TO THE APPLICANT: As of this date » this is notice that your application for financial assistance
from the USDA has been approved, as indicated above, subject to the availability of funds and other conditions required by
the USDA. If you have any questions contact the appropriate USDA Servicing Office.




RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Water and Waste System Grant Agreement

United States Department of Agriculture

Rurali Utilities Service

THIS AGREEMENT dated _NOVEMIAY 7 ; Z0boetween

Storey County
a public corporation organized and operating under

NRS 243
(Authorizing Statute)

herein called *Grantee," and the United States of America acting through the Rural Utilities Service, Department
of Agriculture, herein called " Grantor," WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS

Grantee has determined to undertake a project of acquisition, construction, enlargement, or capital improvement
of a {(water) (waste) system to serve the area under its jurisdiction at an estimated cost of $ 1,694,800.00
and has duly authorized the undertaking of such project.

Grantee is able to finance not more than $ 794,000.80 of the development costs through
revenues, charges, taxes or assessments, or funds otherwise available to Grantee resulting in a reasonable

user charge.

Said sum of § 794,000.00 has been committed to and by Grantee for such project
development costs.

Grantor has agreed to grant the Grantee a sum not to exceed § 900,800.00 or_53.15
percent of said project development costs, whichever is the lesser, subject to the terms and conditions
astablished by the Grantor. Provided, however, that the proportionate share of any grant funds actualty
advanced and not needed for grant purposes shall be returned immediately to the Grantor. The Grantor may
terminate the grant in whole, or in part, at any time before the date of completion, whenever it Is determined that
the Grantee has falled to comply with the Conditions of the grant.

As a condition of this grant agreement, the Grantee assures and certifies that it is in compliance with and will
comply in the course of the agreement with ail appiicable laws, regulations, Executive orders and other generally
applicable reguirements, including those set out In 7 CFR 3015.205(b), which hereby are incorporated into this
agreement by reference, and such other statutory provisions as are specifically set forth herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, In consideration of said grant by Grantor to Grantee, to be made pursuant to
Section 306(a) of The Consolidated Farm and Rural Development Act for the purpose only of defraying a part
not to exceed __53.15__ parcent of the project development costs, as defined by applicable Rural Utllities Service

instructions.
Grantee Agrees That Grantee Will:

A. Cause said project to be constructed within the total sums available to it, including said grant, in
accordance with the project plans and specifications and any modifications thereof prepared by Grantee and
approved by Grantor.



Bulletin 1780-12
Page 2

B. Permit pariodic inspection of the construction by a representative of Grantor during construction.

C. Manage, operate and maintain the system, including this project if less than the whole of said system,
continuously in an efficient and economical manner.

D. Make the services of said system available within its capacity to all persons in Grantee's service area
without discrimination as to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, marital status, or physical or mental
handicap (possess capacity to enter into legal contract for services) at reasonable charges, including
assessments, taxes, or faes in accordance with a schedule of such charges, whether for one or more classes of
service, adopted by resolution dated aa)[, Z, ZOZ( . asmaybe modified from time to time by
Grantee. The Initial rate schadule must be approved by Grantor. Thereafter, Grantee may make such
modifications to the rate system as long as the rate schedule remains reasonable and nondiscriminatory.

E. Adjust its operating costs and service charges from time to time to provide for adequate operation and
maintenance, emergency repalr reserves, cbsolescence reserves, debt service and debt service reserves.

F. Expand Its system from time to time to meet reasonably anticipated growth or service requirements in
the area within its jurisdiction.

G. Provide Grantor with such periodic reports as it may require and parmit periodic inspection of its
operations by a representative of the Grantor.

H. To execute any agreements required by Grantor which Grantee ia legally authorized to execute. |f
any such agresment has been executed by Grantee as a result of a loan being made to Grantee by Grantor
contemporanecusly with the making of this grant, another agreement of the same type need not be exacuted in

connection with this grant.

. Upon any default under its representations or agreements set forth in this instrument, Grantee, at the
option and demand of Grantor, will repay to Grantor forthwith the original principal amount of the grant stated
herein above with the interest at the rate of 5 percentum per annum from the date of the default. Default by the
Grantee will constitute termination of the grant thereby causing cancellation of Federal assistance under the
grant. The provislons of this Grant Agreement may be enforced by Grantor, at its option and without regard to
prior waivers by it previous defaults of Grantee, by judiclal proceedings to require specific performance of the
terms of this Grant Agreement or by such other proceedings In law or equity, in either Federal or State courts, as
may be deemed necessary by Grantor to assure compliance with the provisions of this Grant Agresment and
the laws and regulations under which this grant s made.

“J. Return immediately to Grantor, as required by the regulations of Grantor, any grant funds actually
advanced and not needed by Grantee for approved purposes.

K. Use the real property including land, land Improvements, structures, and appurtenances thereto, for
authorized purposes of the grant as long as nesded.

1. Title to real property shall vest in the recipient subject to the condition that the Grantea shall use the
real property for the authorized purpose of the original grant as long as needed.

2. The Grantee shall obtain approval by the Grantor agancy for the use of the reai property in other
projects when the Grantee determines that the property is no longer needed for the original grant
purposes. Use in other projects shall be limited to those under other Federal grant programs or programs
that have purposes consistent with those authorized for support by the Grantor.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 3

3. When the real property is no longer needed as provided in 1 and 2 above, the Grantee shall request
disposition instructions from the Grantor agency or its successor Federal agency. The Grantor agency
shall observe the foliowing rules in the disposition instructions:

(a) The Grantee may be permitted to retain title after it compensates the Federal Government in
an amount computed by applying the Federal percentage of participation in the cost of the
original project to the fair markat value of the property.

(b) The Grantee may be directed to sell the property under guidelines provided by the Grantor
agency. When the Grantee is authorized or required to sell the property, proper sales procedures
shall be established that provide for competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest
possible return.

[Revision 1, 04/17/1998]

(¢) The Grantee may be directed to transfer title to the property to the Federal Government
provided that in such cases the Grantee shall be entitied to compensation computed by applying
the Grantea's percentage of participation in the cost of the program or project to the current fair
market value of the property.

This Grant Agreement covers the following described real property (use continuation sheets as
necessary).

L. Abide by the following conditions pertaining to equipment which is furnished by the Grantor or
acquired wholly or in part with grant funds. Equipment means tangible, non-expendable, personal property
having a useful life of more than one year and an acquisition cost of $5,000 or more per unit, A grantee may use
its own definition of equipment provided that such definition would at least include all equipment defined above.
[Revision 1, 04/17/1956]

1. Use of equipment.

(a) The Grantee shall use the equipment in the project for which it was acquired as long as
needed. When no longer needed for the original project, the Grantee shall use the equipment in
connection with its other Federally sponsored activities, if any, in the following order of priority:

1) Activities sponsored by the Grantor.
(2) Activities sponsored by other Federal agencies.

(b) During the time that equipment is held for use on the property for which it was acquired, the
Grantee shall make it available for use on other projects if such other use will not interfera with
the work on the project for which the equipment was originally acquired. First preference for such
other use shall be given to Grantor sponsored projects. Second preference will be given to other
Federally sponsored projects.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 4

2, Disposition of equipment. When the Grantee no longer needs the equipment as provided Iin paragraph
(a) above, the equipment may be used for other activities in accordance with the following standards:

(a) Equipment with a current per unit fair market value of less than $5,000. The Grantee may use
the equipment for other activities without reimbursement to the Federal Government or sell the
equipment and retain the proceads.

(b) Equipment with a current per unit fair market value of $5,000 or more. The Grantee may retain
the equipment for other uses provided that compensation is made to the original Grantor agency
or its succassor. The amount of compensation shall be computed by applying the percentage of
Federai participation in the cost of the original project or program to the current fair market value
or proceeds from sale of the equipment. If the Grantee has no need for the equipment and the
equipment has further use value, the Grantee shali request disposition instructions from the
original Grantor agency.

The Grantor agency shall determine whether the equipment can be used to meet the agency's
requirements. If no requirement exists within that agency, the availability of the equipment shall
be reported, in accordance with the guidelines of the Federal Property Management Regutations
(FPMR), to the General Services Administration by the Grantor agency to determine whether a
requirement for the equipment exists in other Federal agencies. The Grantor agency shall issue
instructions to the Grantee no later than 120 days after the Grantee requests and the following
procedures shall govern:

(1) If so instructed or if disposition instructions are not issued within 120 calendar days
after the Grantee's request, the Grantee shall sell the equipment and reimburse the
Grantor agency an amount computed by applying to the sales proceeds the percentage of
Federal participation in the cost of the original project or program. However, the Grantee
shall be permitted to deduct and retain from the Federal share ten percent of the proceeds
for Grantee's selling and handling expenses.

(2) if the Grantee is instructed to ship the equipment elsewhere the Grantee shall be
reimbursed by the benefiting Federal agency with an amount which is computed by
applying the percentage of the Grantee participation in the cost of the original grant
project or program to the current fair market value of the equipment, plus any reasonable
shipping or interim storage costs incurred.

(3} If the Grantee is instructed to otherwise dispose of the equipment, the Grantee shall be
reimbursed by the Grantor agency for such costs incurred In its disposition.

3. The Grantee's property management standards for equipment shall also include:

{(a) Records which accurately provide for: a description of the equipment; manufacturer's serial
number or other identification number; acquisition date and cost; source of the equipment;
percentage (at the end of budget year) of Federal participation in the cost of the project for which
the equipment was acquired; location, use and condition of the equipment and the date the
Information was reported; and ultimate disposition data including sales price or the method used
todetermine current fair market value if the Grantee reimburses the Grantor for its share.

(b) A physical inventory of squipment shall be taken and the results reconciled with the
equipment records at least once every two years to verify the existence, current utilization, and
continued need for the equipment.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 5

{c) A control system shall be in effect to insure adequate safeguards to prevent loss, damage, or
theft of the equipment. Any loss, damage, or theft of equipment shall be investigated and fully
documented.

(d) Adequate maintenance procedures shall be implemented to keep the equipment in good
condition.

(e} Proper sales procedures shall be established for unneeded equipment which would provide
for competition to the extent practicable and result in the highest possible return.

This Grant Agreement covers the following described equipment(use continuation sheets as necessary).

All pumps motors sppurtenances of the package treatment plant to be constructed in Gold Hill to replace the
community septic system.

M. Provide Financial Management Systems which will include:

1. Accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of each grant. Financial reporting
will be on an accrual basis,

2. Records which identify adequately the source and application of funds for grant-supported activities.
Those records shall contain information pertaining to grant awards and authorizations, obligations,
unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays, and income.

3. Effective control over and accountabiliity for all funds, property and other assets. Grantees shall
adequately safeguard all such assets and shall assure that they are used solely for authorized purposes.

4. Accounting records supported by source documentation,

N. Retain financlal records, supporting documents, statistical records, and all other records pertinent to
the grant for a period of at least three years after grant closing except that the records shall be retained beyond
the three-year period if audit findings have not been resolved. Microfilm or photo copies or similar methods may
be substituted in lieu of original records. The Grantor and the Comptroller General of the United States, or any
of thelr duly authorized rapresentatives, shall have access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the
Grantee's government which are pertinent to the specific grant program for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcripts.

O. Provide information as requested by the Grantor to determine the need for and complete any
necessary Environmental Impact Statements.

P. Provide an audit report prepared in accordance with Grantor regulations to allow the Grantor to
determine that funds have been used in compliance with the proposal, any applicable laws and regulations and
this Agreement.

Q. Agree to account for and to return to Grantor interest earned on grant funds pending their
disbursement for program purposes when the Grantee Is a unit of local government. States and agencias or
instrumentality's of states shall not be held accountable for interest earned on grant funds pending their
disbursement.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 8

R. Not ancumber, transfer or dispose of the property or any part thereof, furnished by the Grantor or
acquired wholly or In part with Grantor funds without the written consent of the Grantor except as provided in
item K above.

$. To include in all contracts for construction or repair a provision for compliance with the Copeland
“Anti-Kick Back" Act (18 U.8.C. 874) as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR, Part 3).
The Grantee shall report all suspected or reported violations to the Grantor.

T. To include in all contracts in excess of $100,000 a provision that the contractor agrees to comply with
all the requirements of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. §7414 ) and Section 308 of the Water Pollution Control Act
(33 U.5.C. §1318) relating to inspection, monitoring, entry, reports, and information, as well as ail other
requirements specified in Section 114 of the Clean Alr Act and Section 308 of the Water Poliution Control Act
and all regulations and guidelines issued thereunder after the award of the contract. In'so doing the Contractor
further agrees: )

[Revision 1, 11/20/1897}

1. As a condition for the award of contract, to notify the Owner of the raceipt of any communication from
the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) indicating that a facility to be utilized in the performance of
the contract is under consideration to be listed on the EPA list of Violating Facilities. Prompt notification is
required prior to contract award.

2. To certify that any facility to be utilized in the performance of any nonexempt contractor subcontract is
not listed on the EPA list of Violating Facillties pursuant to 40 CFR Part 32 as of the date of contract
award.

[Revision 1, 11/20/1997]

3. To include or cause to be included the above criteria and the requiremants in every nonexempt
subcontract and that the Contractor will take such action as the Government may direct as a means of
enforcing such provisions.

As used in these paragraphs the term ““facllity" means any building, plan, installation, structure, mine, vessel or
other fioating craft, iocation, or site of operations, owned, leased, or supervised by a Grantes, cooperator,
contractor, or subcontractor, to be utilized in the performance of a grant, agreement, contract, subgrant, or
subcontract. Where a location or site of operation contains or includes more than one building, plant, installation,
or structure, the entire location shall be deemad to be a facility except where the Director, Office of Federal
Activities, Environmental Protection Agency, determines that independent faciiities are co-located in one
geographical area.

Grantor Agrees That [t
A. Will make available to Grantee for the purpose of this Agreement not to exceed

$ 900,800.00 which it will advancé to Grantee to meet not to exceed __53.15__ percent of the project
development costs of the project in accordance with the actual needs of Grantee as determined by Grantor.

B. Will assist Grantee, within available appropriations, with such technical assistance as Grantor daems
appropriate in planning the project and coordinating the plan with local official comprehensive plans for sewer
and water and with any State or area plans for the area in which the project is located.

C. At its sole discretion and at any time may give any consent, deferment, subordination, release,
satisfaction, or termination of any or all of Grantee's grant obligations, with or without valuable consideration,
upon such terms and conditions as Grantor may determine to be (1) advisable to further the purpose of the grant
or to protect Grantor's financial interest therein and (2) consistent with both the statutory purposes of the grant
and the limitations of the statutory authority under which it is made.



RUS Bulletin 1780-12
Page 7

Termination of This Agreement

This Agreement may be terminated for cause in the event of default on the part of the Grantee as
provided in paragraph | above or for convenience of the Grantor and Grantee prior to the date of completion of
the grant purpose. Termination for convenience will occur when both the Grantee and Grantor agree that the
continuation of the project will not produce beneficial results commensurate with the further expenditure of

funds.

In witness whereof Grantee on the date first above written has caused these presence to be executed by
its duly authorized

Chalrman

attested and its corporate seal affixed by its duly authorized

County Clerk-Tressurer

Attast:

., VaruaadRahar

Vanessa Stephens 7
(Title) County Clerk-Treasurer

By Mﬂﬁ

Marshsll McBride
(Title) Chairman

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
RURAL UTILITIES SERVICE
By

(Title)



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting Date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 15 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title:
Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval of rejection of low bid
and approval of the next lowest bid submitted for the construction of the Gold Hill
Wastewater Treatment Plant project (PWP-ST-2020-312).

2. Recommended motion;
I mation to approve the rejection of the low bid of $879,984.00

submitted by F and P Construction following review to be determined as unresponsive in
accordance with terms of the bid documents pursuant to NRS 388.143.5(a) and motion to
approve the next lowest bid of $1,098,007.00 from Sierra Nevada Construction found to be
in compliance with requirements and terms of the bid forms and therefor determined to be
the “responsive” low bid and provide for the approval of Chairman McBride to sign all
contract documents approving the award of bid.

3. Prepared by: Mike Nevin
Project Coordinator

Department: Telephone:

4. Staff summary:
Following the bid opening on November 4, 2020 for the Gold Hill Sewer Project, three (3)
bids were received. Bids were evaluated and following the review and evaluation it has
been determined that the lowest bid received from F and P Construction in the amount of
$879,984.00 to be clearly and facially “unresponsive” with the terms of the bid documents
and in accordance with NRS 388.143.5(a). The next lowest bid received in the amount of
$1,098,007.00 from Sierra Nevada Construction has been found to be in compliance with
all terms of the bid documents and therefore considered the “responsive” low bid.
Following due diligence review it is recommended that Sierra Nevada Construction is
qualified to perform and complete the work associated with this project.

5. Supporting materials:
Farr West Enginecring Letter Dated November 6, 2020 — Re: Recommendation of Award
Farr West Engineering Letter Dated November 6, 2020 — Re: Non-Responsive Bid
Affidavit of Notice of [nvitation for Bids ~ Comstock Chroncile
Bid Tabulation Form
Sierra Nevada Construction Bid Package



6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available; Fund:

7. Legal review required:
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head
County Manager
. Board action:

9
[] Approved [
[] Denied ' [

At

Comptroller

District Attorney

Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Other agency review:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

Agenda Item No. Io



(BN
ol

o D apmont

November 20, 2020

Austin Osborne, County Manager via email: aosborme@storeycounty.org
Storey County

PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: Recommendation to Award — Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant

Dear Mr. Oshorne:

We have completed the review of your Engineer’s recommendations and concur with their
recommendation to award the subject contract to Sierra Nevada Construction (SNC) in the
amount of $1,098,007.00. The bid bond of the next low bidder should be retained until a
successful award has been made.

Upon issuing the Notice of Award it is suggested that, as a minimum, four (4) sets of the
Agreement, Performance Bond, and Payment Bond be sent to the contractor to provide original
signatures on each set of documents. Please use the template from EJCDC C-610
(Performance Bond) and EJCDC C-615 (Payment Bond). Note that the bond cannot be dated
prior to the Agreement. The surety company, the insurance agency, and the agent must have
an appointment with the Nevada Division of Insurance to sell for the surety company.

Upon obtaining the original signatures on each document, plus the Power of Attorney and
Certification of Insurance, insert the executed forms in the proper position in the specification
books. The Certificate of Insurance must be issued to name the Storey County as the certificate
holder. Fill in the Notice to Proceed (NTP) except for the date of the NTP and the signatures, use
days, not dates, for substantial and final completion and bind it into the contract documents.
After the County has signed the agreements, the documents must then be sent to your attorney to
review and for a signature of approval on the “Certificate of Owner’s Attorney” located behind
the Supplementary Conditions. All the books must then be forwarded to our office for review.
Upon approval by RD of the construction documents a date will be scheduled for the pre-
construction conference. Copies of the agreement will be distributed at the pre-construction
conference.

You should have your engineer submit the resume(s) of the proposed inspection staff to USDA
RD for concurrence at this time. Be sure and keep your bond council updated on the status
of the project. If you have any questions, please contact our office.

Rural Development + Nevada State Office
1390 South Curry Strest - Carson City, NV 89703
Voice 775.887.1222 « Toll-Free Fax B55.816.1209

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender.



RTA - Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant
Page 2 of 2

If you have any questions, please contact me at (775) 443-4759 or by email at
dean.setiono@usda.gov.

Sincerely,
Digitally signed by DEAN
DEA N S ETIO N ;EEIIEO;‘(?ZOI 1.20 12:42:07
-08°00°
Dean Setiono, P.E.
State Engineer
USDA Rura! Development (Nevada)

cc: Lucas Tipton, P.E. — Farr West Engineering
Mike Nevin — Storey County
Lara Mather - Storey County
Cheryl Couch — USDA RD
Maria Murillo - USDA RD



FARR WIEST

ENGINEERING

November 6, 2020

Mike Nevin, Project Coordinator
Storey County

P.O. Box 435

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: Recommendation of Award for Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant
Dear Mr. Nevin:

On November 4, 2020 the bid opening for the Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant Project (PWP-8T-2020-
312) was held at the Farr West Office in Reno, Nevada. Both Mike Nevin and Jason Wierzbicki of
Storcy County were present for the bid opening as was Farr West Engineering staff and representatives
from multiplc construction companies. A total of three (3) bids were received.

The apparent low bidder (Base Bid amount) was F and P Construction with $879,984.00 and Sicrra
Nevada Construction (SNC) was the second apparcnt low bidder with $1,098,007.00. Farr West has
evaluated Lhe two apparent low bids and finds that F and P Construction clearly and facially failed to
submit a responsive bid. Thus, the contract cannot be awarded to F and P Construction pursuant to NRS
338.143.5(a). The Non-Responsive Bid letter issued to F and P Construction is attached for reference.

Farr West has reviewed Sierra Nevada Construction’s bid and finds that it complies with the prescribed
requirements of the Bid Form, and is therefore considered “responsive.” We have also performed a duc
diligence check on the company by checking provided refercnces, System for Award Management, Nevada
State Contractor's Board, Secretary of State, and the Labor Commissioner. A search with the Contractor’s
Board shows no disciplinary action against them and they are within their licensed limits. A search for
debarment on the System for Award Management shows no action. A search of the Secretary of State
shows that they are in good standing. Lastly, a scarch of the Labor Commissioner shows no actions,
pending or filed, against them. Sierra Nevada Construction’s list of references was cxtensive, although
individuals listed were not contacted due to Farr West's extensive history working with Sierra Nevada
Construction on public works projects and we attest that Sierra Nevada Construction is qualified to perform
and complete the work associated with this project.

Since USDA-RD and the Clean Water State Revolving Fund, as administered by the Office of ¥ inancial
Assistance (NDEP-OFA) are providing funding for Project work, Farr West verificd that Sierra Nevada
Construction’s bid package met the requirements of their individual funding programs and their
concurrence to award is attached to this letter.

5510 Longley Lane * Reno, Nevada 89511 » (775) 851-4788 » Fax (775) 851-0766
421 Court Street » Elko, Nevada 89801 « (775) 738-2121 « Fax (775) 738-7953
www.farrwestengineering.com



We respectfully reccommend that Storey County deem F and P Construction’s bid non-responsive, find
Sjerra Nevada Construction to have submitted the lowest responsive bid and award the contract to Sierra
Nevada Construction.

Sincerely,
—T
%4 g

Lucas Tipton, P.E.
Principal Engineer
Storey County Client Manager

Encl. Non-Responsive Bid Letter to F and P Construction
USDA-RD Concurrence to Award
NDEP OFA Concurrence to Award
Affidavit of Publication for the Bid Advertisement
Bid Tabulation
Sierra Nevada Construction Bid Packet

Cc: Austin Osbome — Storey County Manager
Anne M. Langer — Storey County District Attorney
Cheryl Couch — USDA Rural Development
Jason Cooper — NDEP Office of Financial Assistance




FARR WI'ST

ENGINEERING

November 6, 2020

Mike Nevin, Project Coordinator
Storey County

P.O. Box 435

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: Recommendation of Award for Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant
Dear Mr. Nevin:

On November 4, 2020 the bid opening for the Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant Project (PWP-ST-2020-
312) was held at the Farr West Office in Reno, Nevada. Both Mike Nevin and Jason Wierzbicki of
Storey County were present for the bid opening as was Farr West Engineering staff and representatives
from multiple construction companies. A total of three (3) bids were received.

The apparent low bidder (Base Bid amount) was F and P Construction with $879,984.00 and Sierra
Nevada Construction (SNC) was the second apparent low bidder with $1,098,007.00. Farr West has
evaluated the two apparent low bids and finds that F and P Construction clearly and facially failed to
submit a responsive bid. Thus, the contract cannot be awarded to ¥ and P Construction pursuant to NRS
338.143.5(a). The Non-Responsive Bid letter issued to F and P Construction is attached for reference.

Farr West has reviewed Sierra Nevada Construction’s bid and finds that it complies with the prescribed
requirements of the Bid Form, and is therefore considered “responsive.” We have also performed a due
diligence check on the company by checking provided references, System for Award Management, Nevada
State Contractor’s Board, Secretary of State, and the Labor Commissioner. A search with the Contractor’s
Board shows no disciplinary action against them and they are within their licensed limits. A search for
debarment on the System for Award Management shows no action. A search of the Secretary of State
shows that they are in good standing. Lastly, a search of the Labor Commissioner shows no actions,
pending or filed, against them. Sierra Nevada Construction’s list of references was extensive, although
individuals listed were not contacted due to Farr West’s extensive history working with Sierra Nevada
Construction on public works projects and we attest that Sierra Nevada Construction is qualified to perform
and complete the work associated with this project.

Since USDA-RD and the Clean Water State Revolving Fund, as administered by the Office of Financial
Assistance (NDEP-OFA) are providing funding for Project work, Farr West verified that Sierra Nevada
Construction’s bid package met the requirements of their individual funding programs and their
concurrence to award is attached to this letter.

5510 Longley Lane = Reno, Nevada 89511 « (775) 851-4788 » Fax (775) 851-0766
421 Coun Street » Elko, Nevada 89801 « (775) 738-2121 » Fax (775) 738-7955
www.farrwestengineering.com



We respectfully recommend that Storey County deem F and P Construction’s bid non-responsive, find
Sierra Nevada Construction to have submitted the lowest responsive bid and award the contract to Sierra
Nevada Construction.

Sincerely,

- //4’5'2/‘ _

Lucas Tipton, P.E.
Principal Engineer
Storey County Client Manager

Encl. Non-Responsive Bid Letter to F and P Construction
USDA-RD Concurrence to Award
NDEP OFA Concurrence to Award
Affidavit of Publication for the Bid Advertisement
Bid Tabulation
Sierra Nevada Construction Bid Packet

Cc: Austin Osborne — Storey County Manager
Anne M. Langer — Storey County District Attorney
Cheryl Couch — USDA Rural Development
Jason Cooper — NDEP Office of Financial Assistance




FARR WEST

ENGINEERING

November 6, 2020

Lystra Pitts

F and P Construction
4607B Aircenter Circle
Reno, NV 89502

RE: Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant Non-Responsive Bid
Dear Mr. Pitts:

On November 4, 2020 the bid opening for the Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant Project (PWP-ST-2020-
312) was held at the Farr West Office in Reno, Nevada. Both Mike Nevin and Jason Wierzbicki of
Storey County were present for the bid opening as was Farr West Engineering staff and representatives
from multiple construction companies. A total of three (3) bids were received.

F and P Construction was the apparent low bidder (Base Bid amount) with $879,984.00 and Sierra
Nevada Construction was the second apparent low bidder with $1,098,007.00. Farr West has evaluated
the two apparent low bids and finds that F and P Construction failed to submit a responsive bid. Thus, the
contract cannot be awarded to F and P Construction pursuant to NRS 338.143.5(a).

The following errors and omissions were found in F and P Constructions bid:

1. Bid Form (EJCDC C-410A), page 4 — The Total Base Bid listed is $200 less than the calculated
sum of all bid items.

2. Bid Form (EJCDC C-410A), Article 7, item K — Evidence of Authority to do business in Storey
County and the State of Nevada was not included in the bid submission.

3. Bid Form (EJCDC C-410A), Article 9 — there is no signature on the Attest line.

4. Qualification Statement (EJCDC C-451), page 6 — Item 12 (Safety Program) — TRFR, Total
Manhours and DART rates lefl blank.

5. Qualification Statement (EJCDC C-451), page 7 — Required Attachments:

a. Schedule A (Current Experience} is incomplete. The Owner’s Contact Person Address
and Telephone Number were left blank as well as the Design Engineer’s contact
information.

b. Schedule B (Previous Experience) is incomplete. The Owner’s Contact Person Address
and Telephone Number were lefl blank as well as the Design Engineer’s contact
information.

¢. Evidence of Authority for individuals listed in Section 6 to bind organization to an
agreement was not included in the bid.

d. Resumes of office and key individuals were not included.

5510 Longley Lanc * Reno, Nevada 89511 = (775) 851-4788 - Fax (775) 851-0766
421 Court Street * Elko, Nevada 89801 = (775) 738-2121 = Fax (775) 738-7955
www.farrwestengineering.com



6. The 1% Subcontractor List was submitted after bid opening along with no supporting evidence of
Good Faith Effort was included with the bid.
7. EPA Form 6600-06 (Certification Regarding Lobbying) was not included with the bid.

Per the Contract Documents (Articie 19.01), Storey County does have the ability to waive minor
informalities in bids, but only if those minor informalities do not involve “price, time or change in the
Work.” Storey County lacks the authority to waive the bid math error (item 1) because it involves price.
And the previously listed numerous omissions clearly indicate that F and P Construction failed to submit
a responsive bid.

We will be recommending that Storey County deem F and P Construction’s bid non-responsive, find
Sierra Nevada Construction to have submitted the lowest responsive bid and award the contract to Sierra
Nevada Construction per NRS 338.143 .4,

NRS 338.143.4 - Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5 and NRS 338.147 [which does not apply],
the local government or its authorized representative shall award the contract to the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder.

NRS 338.143.5 - Any bids received in response to an advertisement for bids may be rejected if the local
government or its authorized representative responsible for awarding the contract determines that:
(a) The bidder is not responsive or responsible;
(b) he quality of the services, materials, equipment or labor offered does not conform to the
approved plans or specifications; or
(c) The public interest would be served by such a rejection.

Sincerely,

‘e

Lucas Tipton, P.E.
Principal Engineer

Cc: Austin Osborne — Storey County Manager
Anne M. Langer — Storey County District Attorney
Cheryl Couch — USDA Rural Development
Jason Cooper — NDEP Office of Financial Assistance




N

-l . Togetnern, Amenica Prospers

Kural Developmeant

November 20, 2020

Austin Osbomne, County Manager via email: aosborme@storeycounty.org
Storey County

PO Box 176

Virgima City, NV 89440

RE: Recommendation to Award — Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant

Dear Mr. Osborne:

We have completed the review of your Engineer’s recommendations and concur with their
recommendation to award the subject contract to Sierra Nevada Construction (SNC) in the
amount of $1,098,007.00. The bid bond of the next low bidder should be retained until a
successful award has been made.

Upon issuing the Notice of Award it is suggested that, as a minimum, four (4) sets of the
Agreement, Performance Bond. and Payment Bond be sent to the contractor to provide original
signatures on each set of documents. Please use the template from EJCDC C-610
{Performance Bond) and EJCDC C-615 (Payment Bond). Note that the bond cannot be dated
prior to the Agreement. The surcty company, the insurance agency, and the agent must have
an appointment with the Nevada Division of Insurance to sell for the surety company.

Upon obtaining the original signatures on each document, plus the Power of Attorney and
Certification of Insurance, insert the executed forms in the proper position in the specification
books. The Certificate of Insurance must be issued to name the Storey County as the certificate
holder. Fill in the Notice to Proceed (NTP) except for the date of the NTP and the signatures, use
days, not dates, for substantial and final completion and bind it into the contract documents,
After the County has signed the agreements, the documents must then be sent to your attorney to
review and for a signature of approval on the “Certificate of Owner’s Attorney” located behind
the Supplementary Conditions. Al! the books must then be forwarded to our office for review.
Upon approval by RD of the construction documents a date will be scheduled for the pre-
construction conference. Copies of the agreement will be distributed at the pre-construction
conference.

You should have your engineer submit the resume(s) of the proposed inspection staff to USDA
RD for concurrence at this time. Be sure and keep your bond council updated on the status
of the project. If you have any questions, please contact our office.

Rural Developmsnt « Nevada Stale Office
1380 South Curry Street » Carson City, NV 83703
Voice 775.887.1222 « Toll-Free Fax 855.816.1209

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender,



RTA - Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant
Page 2 of 2

If you have any questions, please contact me at (775) 443-4759 or by email at
dean.setiono@usda.gov.

Sincerely,
Digitally signed by DEAN
DEAN SETIONO gy 20201130 124207
-08'00°
Dean Setiono, P.E.
State Engineer
USDA Rural Development (Nevada)

cc: Lucas Tipton, P.E. — Farr West Engineering
Mike Nevin — Storey County
Lara Mather — Storey County
Cheryl Couch — USDA RD
Maria Murillo - USDA RD



Lucas TiBton
|

From: Sharada Maligireddy <smaligireddy@ndep.nv.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, November 24, 2020 8:59 AM

To: Lucas Tipton; Austin Osborne

Cc: Murillo, Maria - RD, Elko, NV; Setiono, Dean - RD, Carson City, NV; mnevin@storeycounty.org; Lara
Mather; Jason Wierzbicki; Ken Johnson; Jennifer McCain; Jason Cooper; Couch, Cheryl - RD, Carson
City, NV

Subject: approval for the proposed bid award decision - Storey County - Gold Hill Package Plant - Contract

Award to Sierra Nevada Construction

Good morning,

this emaill is in reference to the decision of award of the bid by Storey County for the Gold Hill project co-funded by NV
State Clean Water State Revolving Fund; we received the supporting documentation submitted on November 10" and
subsequently on November 13™, namely Gold Hill Construction Bid Award Letter and Gold Hill Construction non-
responsive bid letter,

Upon review, in accordance with NAC 445A.792. 1 thru 4, Office of Financial Assistance is issuing this general
concurrence with the recommendation for the award of the bid as proposed.

Please note NAC 445A,792.1, ‘an applicant for financial assistance, shall submit to the Division, a request for
approval of the award'.

Also, in accordance with NAC 445A.792.3, “The Division shall not participate in the resolution of any dispute relating
to bidding. The resolution of any such dispute is the sole responsibility of the applicant. A request for approval
must not be granted until any such dispute has been resolved. “

Upon Storey County Board’s review and final decision, if not different from as proposed below, please submit the final
executed documentation to our office for filing.

Best regards

Sharada D. Maligireddy, PE

Professional Engineer

Office of Financial Assistance, Bureau of Administrative Services
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection

Department of Conservation and Natural Resources

901 S. Stewart Street, Suite 4001

Carson City, NV 89701

suvligireddy a ndep.any eos

g ENVIRONMENTAL [ CONSERVATION -
AN ROTECTION P NATURAL RESOURCES

TS RO TS OOO



AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

STATE OF NEVADA
COUNTY OF LYON

TIFFANY MAZZA

v -

1

Being duly sworn, deposes and says that she is the
General Manager of the COMSTOCK C HRONICLE, a
weekly newspaper, published in Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada, that she has charge of and knows the
advertising appearing in the said newspaper, and the:

Notice of invitation for bids - Storey County

of which cupy is hereunto attached, was first published
in said newspaper in its issue dated

October 9, 2020

the date of each additional publishing

N/A

the date of the last publication being in the issue of
October 9, 2020

Subscribed and sworn to before me this, the

dayof [ -~ . , 2020

X,_ il

and for 0D
Notary Public in and for th
County of 1.yon, State of Nevada

;2‘

SAVANNA W RPmy
NGty Pubhie State f Nevada

;‘_’anw-nn oo ta 2 0171
";J My ApGt Fagires Dec 9, 2007




£ 4 1 MWNYY

056070111 LYTIGIPE'LS Q0 LLL'LW'ES 00°L00'860'1S 00°'YR6'6.8S ‘[e10L pig wvg
LS o) LR TS LIRS 0 (59°9% LN [T 1§45 o) DSYES ™ SE5§ vi 9 ey 3
NN S0E €3 EE EVT 93 (I IEIES o RIS N N6T LY (N5 W0 Ly ) 19 9% ™) $OEES v3 T AN RIIA ol
0 SENEIS 00 (T8 S TROITS s 6T 00 S¥URIS 00 LT (%) 524 5T% 00 SES 0§ LLP'6LS 0S 97§ 41 SEL Speay sy 3
00 NZ6 P8 00 TI8 L9 950°5S £E LIS 0 (TH TS KO TIS ) 01 +S ks ) 15198 [THEH 41 0y g alrumig [
M 506 LS SLTIS £E €5F 9% trors 00 $06'LS SLTIS 00 INE (S s TS NS ES 48 07y [ U . 9) fvy ind o€ S| 2
N} L8657 of (§ EE [59'9LS £ 13 0 LL6STS ETS 10 L85 £T3 HHE IS 00 £6 €IS 0L 0% I [ iay 9] s awBlly s [i]
115 959 LS i £€ R20 [ 00 901 LES 09 ¥ L] 5L TS 03 959'ECS SL¥S 3 (TN OV .£) Fmang waley s 1]
[T [CIETET EE £5E 44 WNE (Nl 201 S MBI s [COLTTRE [LIETTEY LR W) (HL S E H whidy Bwiapd LOGN, 17
0 0NN PY§ L9 LIE9S o 005 €45 00 00% {11 M) (W) 193 00 00G 093 00 SEFSOS 51 1 Yavys [
N zTISHIIS LY NTTELTS 05T EL1S R N 0113 [CIELCTRNET] m ZI5 RIS 51 1 nesmsadu) pyueg &l
(00 (NN} 578 0 IS TIS NN TS 0 0% £ 1% 0005T 41§ LTI 00 00U'5ZS DU DOE'SZ§ ¥ 1 A Basee)) jmaid iy 81
M) 00'PLS ) XN LS 0 SLELLS N 545 128 ) O0ELS 00 000 kLY 1ML INN) LS CRETTT W 521598 T 521598 51 1 wepegasay jew g 1]
M 0N I ES O (NNFJEES EE ELODLES £E ELIFOET 00 000'IEES 00000'9LES 1M (NH) ELES 00 000 {158 00 DZT1TT8 00 0ZZ' 1TZS ¥ | S=pmy [T}
(M) $00°(h$ [LIALL ANFO06 [RE OO TS ISP LETS LOHTEDS 1K1 (MN) 168 O 1S W) STTLIS i) S9T8 A) $9 Smpyy puw RS sy Haoee) 51
00 nZy'ss M DRE 1S 10 T 5S nnnigis 00 00T ¥S 00 0L 1S (0 7% 0 SIS ™ NTs 53 00 08K 15 vi b wYLIeG pu] pamy a7 | 1]
[CIETLE 05 RIS 1991968 L1 968 M} OOE IS 0 EYE O M TS 00 STIY 00 NS0 013 5 0015 41 [} HagR) L)Y Ve £l
) 00E KIS MRS 0 $56°%IS 0 556815 00 00E BIS 00 00 51§ W) M S TS 00 000 §TS ™ 505 E1S U S9SELS 51 1 IS DARS SEM ]| T1
$ L9 181§ WS 19TiS 0 100% s'Llg [T mnIizos N} rSY Fi 1 “id 5t WS PR ¥ 08 WS -] 11
00 $21'3S AT 00 ¥55 8% 00 7RIS ™ 1§ D0 OITS T 0vd 5§ 00 0% 13 Fyl Ly *hd 10 P IOr WA s O WS 0i
1) (73 XS £€ 6§ N} OE0'RS 10 YRS Do s N1$ [T o 0558 o LS 41 S04 #hid JAd 5T NS DU ¥ Pe| .
N 28 O 1198 LR ES 9 1568 00 0y 78 Wo19s T LS 00 00R'ES O} USL 1S [ LE] ¥ Veniay) Hmas LS ANm-ten 1
[ 0% LS 00 i1 P1Y M 0510LS LA g LS '8 1S ) (K168 ™0 68 [EEAE] LE] H HORT N 1Mo LTS PP 1
M) 000 ™95 00 NZLS 0 DB 8S OIS 00057618 D0 GBES DO 009 [T DO 00 7% Ad 0§ wegEARTLy 33U 9
INHISL LS Ty 195 £E ERSITIS €E LIS ) M) RIS 10 963 ORI N1 NS [T In) (95 A gL 1 pasgg ¥
[T ) 5TE 1§ L9 #1638 [T 1M 000 528 00 000CTS [ETEENE L misTr 1§ ™ STy 1S ST [ g Y P ] Sy r
[T ™} INIT X% £9 916 %3 L9916 T8 N (M1 RS 00T &S 10 (W) 5% M) 1 S5 M issELS S LIS 51 [ Ow) Wiy Antedm ) 3
[ ER MO 1S £R K9 113 00 075 RS 00 OZS €5 s O L1S 0% 06 LIS o0 (05 RS 00 DOS '35 51 | rgwe) wyss] Dmsedma)y [
(VDEERLS LD P FLY LAY (M AMMIHE LS 00 IR OE 15 A 18 () RN SIS BLS M ULERLS 51 ] IR EA] PR SUEIIAS I []

VIO AW LIND TVLOL 2084 LINN TVI0L T Tynly wpling i
mpamgsee’) (LN BRLIAIIIN0T) FPRAMN SIS wepnOmme) ¥4
* B jsop vy axsBey
auna) Luels eagn
YO0 OL g
0TOTA/1L iR
Ruoandug 1o uny deepae] Snuadg g
Luno)) Axolg

JUBLJ JUIWYEIN ] JIJEMISEAN ITENIRY [IH PIOD
IWHOA DONINAJO dld




SECTION 00410A - STOREY COUNTY
BID FORM FOR CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant
PWP Ne. ST-2020-312

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE | + Bid RECIPICNL. ... cveeemieircesies e ettt eeee e es s e ees et sases st seess s ssesesoesseoon 1
ARTICLE 2 — Bidder's ACKROWICAZRITICNIS ....c..o.oeieiriiivaiset s eemt e sseees e eeessseanassensasss s ees oo eoeeos 1
ARTICLE 3 - Bidder's REPrESENtAtoNS .......covvveriresiuersreeeeeeieeooiess ot eses s eneesseseesseesesees oo osesssess s 2
ARTICLE 4 — Bidder's CortiflCation.....o.c.iiiuiiieieiiimceiecee e secsn sttt ee s oo 3
ARTICLE 5 = Basis 0f BiG. ..ot vt ss e et et 3
ARTICLE 6 — Tirme of COmPIEtion. .........ooviiiieciieie et cvsss s csssss st s s s s esse s 8
ARTICLE 7 — Attachments t0 This BI .......cc.cc.ovuvriieimmererresieieis st eeeeeeee e oee e st os s 8
ARTICLE 8 — Defined TOMMS . c.cvvietireeiceteis oot se s eeam st st tees e s e e s et e s e st os et 9
ARTICLE 9 ~ Bid SUBINIMAL ....cooiviiicice st e ese e e ee s s s es et e 9

ARTICLE 1 - BID RECIPIENT
1.01  This Bid is submitted to Owner address as identified in Section 00100 — Advertiseiment for Bids.

1.02  The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement
with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in
accordanec with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

201 Bidder aceepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without
limitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid sceurity. This Bid will remain subject to
acceplance for 60 days aficr the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may
agree to in writing upon request of Owner.

EJCDC® C-410A, Bld Form for Construction Contracts.

Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Enginears, Amerkan Coundil of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civl Englneers. All rights reserved. Page 1



ARTICLE 3 - BIDDER'S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01

In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A.

a

Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, and any data and referenee
iterns identified in the Bidding Documents, and herchy acknowledges reeeipt of the following
Addenda:

Addendum No. Addendum Date
1 10/13/20 5 — ll]z’zo
2 10/16/20
3 10/23/20

4 — fyz0

Bidder has visited the Site, eondueted a thorough, alert visual examination of the Site and
adjacent areas, and beeome familiar with and satisfied itself as to the general, local, and Site
conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performanee of the Work.

Bidder is familiar with and has satisfied itself as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect
cost, progress, and performance of the Work and including all American Iron and Steel
requirements.

Bidder has carefully studicd all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface eonditions
al or adjacent to the Site and all drawings of physieal conditions relating to cxisting surfaee
or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identificd in the Supplementary Conditions,
especially with respect to Technical Data in such reports and drawings, and (2} reports and
drawings relating to Hazardous Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjaeent 1o the Site that
have been identified in the Supplementary Conditions, especially with respect to Teehnical Data
in such reports and drawings.

Bidder has considered the information known to Bidder itself; information commonly known
to contractors doing business in the loeality of the Sitc; information and observations
obtained from visits to the Site; the Bidding Documents; and any Site-related reports and
drawings identified in the Bidding Doeuments, with respect to the ¢ffeet of sueh information,
observations, and documents on (1) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work: (2) the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construetion to be employed by
Bidder; and (3) Bidder’s safety preeautions and programs.

Bidder agrees, based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding
paragraph, that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests, studies, or data are
neeessary for the determination of this Bid for performance of the Work at the price bid and
within the times required, and in accordanee with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding
Doeuments.

Bidder is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and others at the Site
that relates to the Work as indieated in the Bidding Documents.

Bidder has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or discrepancies
that Bidder has diseovered in the Bidding Documents and confirms that the written resolution
thercof by Engincer is acceptable to Bidder.

EICDC® C-410A, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.

Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Sadety of Prafessional Engineers, Amarican Council of Engineering Companies,
and Amerkan Saciety of Civil Englneers. All rights reserved.  Page 2



. The Bidding Documents arc generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of all
tenns and conditions for the performance and furnishing of the Work.

J. The submission of this Bid constitutes an incontrovertible representation by Bidder that
Bidder has complied with every requirement of this Article, and that without cxception the Bid

and all prices in the Bid arc premised upon performing and furnishing the Work required by the
Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 4 - BIDDER’S CERTIFICATION
4.01  Biddor eertifies that:
A. This Bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed individual
or entity and is not submitted in conformity with any collusive agrecment or rules of any

group, association, organization, or corporation;

B. Bidder has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any other Bidder to submit a falsc or
sham Bid;

C. Bidder has not solicited or induced any individual or entity to refrain from bidding; and

D. Bidder has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or cocrcive practices in competing for
the Contract. For the purposes of this Paragraph 4.01.D:

1. “corrupt practice” mcans the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence
the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non-
competitive levels, or (¢} to deprive Owner of the benefits of frec and open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or amrangement between two or more Bidders, with or
without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to cstablish bid prices at artificial,
non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practice” mcans harming or threatcning to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or

their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the cxccution
of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5 - BASIS OF BID

5.01  Bidder will complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following
price(s):

STOREY COUNTY

GOLD HILL PACKAGE TREATMENT PLANT

Bid
Item

1 Mobilization and Demobilization 1 LS 5 1500000 | $ 15 ho.00

Description Quantity | Unit Unit Cost Total Cost

EICDC® C-410A, Bld Form for Construction Contracts,

Copyright © 2013 Natknal Sodiety of Professionat Engineers, Amarican Council of Englneering Companies,
ond American Society of Civll Engineers. All rights reserved. Page 3



2 | Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS 5 1'}: 0250 | $ ]?‘fm
3 | Temporary Erosion Control 1 LS b S.00000 | % £.000.00

4 | Existing Leach Field Abandonment ! LS $ 308,00 $ 1.000.00

5 | Earthwork 1,750 CY |5 4h.t0 _smim_
6 | Rock Excavation 50 CY 1'% 128 04 $ 08400

7 | 48-inch Sanitary Sewer Manhole 2 EA | § 1m_ 3 18,080, 00
8 | Two-way Sanitary Sewer Clcanout 4 EA | § 1.800.00 S 22080

9 | 6-inch & 8-inch SDR 35 PVC Pipe 105 LE |'S 1pomn S 10500
10 | 8-inch CL 53 Protecto 401 Lincd DI Pipe 47 LF $ 22300 M
11 | 2-inch Sch. 80 & 4-inch SDR 35Pipe 115 LF | % w000 $ 13,2500
12 | Water Service Connection 1 LS 5 2500l | 8 25.000.00
13 | 12-inch RCP Culvert 100 LF $ 12500 Mm_
14 | 12-inch Flared End Section 4 EA |'§ 1.500.00 S LN
15 | Concrcte Base Slab and Building Foundation 65 CY | S t4mn0 | S91.000.00
16 | Building 1 EA | $3733000.00| 5378 200.00
17 | Package Plant Installation 1 LS | 8§ 3500000 | 3 IS.A0.00
18 | 4'x4’ Precast Conercte Vault 1 EA | 3§ 2500000 | S 250000
19 | Electrical Improvements 1 LS Subopapn | 8 110, 280.00
20 | SCADA 1 LS $ MM
21 | NDOT Driveway Apron 2 EA $ Shoosy |3 1280000
22 | Site Asphalt Paving (3” AC) 8,110 SF 3 218 $22 3258
23 | Site Aggrcgatc Base (6" ADB) 19,990 | SF 3 L3 £ ﬁm
24 | Class 300 Rip Rap (6" Thickness) 620 SF $ 15.00 b 23w
25 | Drainagc Swale 410 LE |3 1p.0n $ 410000
26 | Livestock Fencing 735 LF 13 3500 m
27 | Vehicle Gatc 2 EA | S 279000 | SS54mm
28 | Bollard 6 EA |3 35a00 $ 450000 |

TOTAL BASE BID STOREY COUNTY (items 1-28) PRICE -5_|, 04§ 00900  (no alternates)
$ iliop i 3 Notents

In Words

EICDC® C-410A, Bid Form for Construction Contracts.

Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Engineers, Amarican Councll of Enginecring Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Page 4



5.02

5.03

5.04

5.05

Bidder acknowledges that (1) each Bid Unit Price includes an amount considered by Bidder to be
adequate to cover Contractor’s overhead and profit for each separately identified item, and (2)
estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and arc solely for the purpose of comparisen of Bids, and
fina] payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actyal quantitics, determined as provided
in the Contract Documents.

Unit Prices have been eomputed in accordance with Paragraph 13.03.B of the General Conditions.

The requirements of Nevada Revised Statues (NRS) shall apply to this project. The BIDDER is
responsible for compliance with all applicable statues. These statutes include, but are not limited to:

A. NRS 338.020: Hourly and daily rate of wages must not be less than prevailing wage in County.

B. NRS 338.080: Exemptions

C. NRS 338.141: Bids to include certain infonmation concerning subcontractors; when bids
decmed not responsive with respect to subcontractors; requirements for substitution of named
subcontracts,

D. NRS338.147: Award of Contract to Contractor who subinits best bid.

Contract shall be awarded based on the amount of the Base Bid only.

ARTICLE 6 — TIME OF COMPLETION

6.01

6.02

Bidder agrees that the Work will be substantially complete and will be completed and ready for final
payment in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions on or before the dates or
within the number of calendar days indicated in the Agreciment.

Bidder accepts the provisions of the Agreement as to Liquidated Damages.

ARTICLE 7- ATTACHMENTS TO TIIS BID

7.01

The following documents are submitted with and made a condition of this Bid:

A.  Required Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond (EICDC C-430),

B. 5% Subcontractor List (Scetion 00440);

C. 1% Subcontractor List (Section 00441) within the required timeframe per NRS 338.141;
D.  Contractor’s Waiver of Preferential Bidder Status (Section 00446):
E

Required Bidder Qualifications Statement with supporting data (E}CDC C-451);

=

EEO Compliance Statement Form RD 400-6 (Section 00460,

G.  Certification Regarding Debanment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion (Sectjon
00461);

M. Certification for Contracts, Grants and Loans (Section 00462);

I Contractor’s Waiver of Retainage Investinent and Interest (Section 00463);

EiCDC*® C-410A, Bid Form for Construction Contracts,

Copyright © 20131 National Sodety of Professional Engineers, Amerkan Council of Engineering Companles,
and American Saciety of Ovll Engineers, All rightsreserved,  Pages



Al

()

Cernfieate of Qwner's Attorngy aned Apgenes Concurrence (Secuon (046.y;
Evadence o authority o do business Storey County and the State of Ney ada:

Contracter's License Nu: 25565
altachment;

e aay be combmed with wnothe

Manutocturers” Certification letier of complinee with Section 746 of Tilde V1) of the
Camsolidated Appropriations Act of 2007 (Division A - Agreulture, Rural Development, Food
and Drug Adoumistration, and Related Agencies Appropriations Act, 2007 and subsequent
stitutes mandating domestie preference for all equals or substitutes approved by Addenda for
Anterican Iron and Steel products as provided in these Contract Docunments,

H Bid amount eacevds $HO000, sgned Complianee Statement (RD 300-0). Refor W speailic
cqual vpportunity coquirements set forth i the Supplemental Gieneral Conditions.

1T Bid amount exceeds $25.000. signed Certilicanon Regarding Debarment. SUspension,
Inehpibility and Voluntary foaclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions {AD-104K);

H Bid amount exceeds $100,000), signed RD Instruction 19:400-Q, Exhibit A-1, Cerulication for
Contracts, Grants, and Louns,

ARTICLE 8 - DEFINED TERMS

SO The terms used in this Bud with inial capital letters hase the mcanings stated i the lnstructions o
Brdders, the General Conditions, and the Supplementury Comlitions.

ARTICLE Y

=~ BID SUBMITTAL

BUDER fndicare «orrect mane uf hickhag cnptyf

13
[Sighatuief
{Primedname] — Kevin L. Robertson, President . —_—

M Bukber is a corporation.a fonited liabilin: COMPy, o partners g or a foint vefure, aliuel
cvidence of authority o .\isfn.,),

Alleal:

ISt

[ Printed name f Marct Mar !!N

\
)

Litle _secretary /S Treasurer . L — .
Subnmal e ~November 4, 2020 i .

L)CDC® €-410A, 110 Form for Construction Contracts.

Copyright © 2013 National Sucicty of Professional Engineers, American Council of Enginecring Comparnes,
and American Sacicty of Civil Fngineers & righte rospropy. Pagc &



ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
| OF
SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION, INC.
MARCH 2, 2020

The undersigned, being all the directors and shareholders of Sierra Nevada Construction,
Inc., 8 Nevada corporation (the “Corporation”), do hereby unanimously approve, adopt, make,
ratify and confirm the following:

-WHEREAS, Kevin L. Robertson acts in the capacity of President, Craig D. Holt acts in
the capacity of Vice President, and Marc T. Markwell acts in the capacity of Treasurer, Chief
Financial Officer, and Secretary of Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

WHEREAS, Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt, and Marc Markwell as officers of this
Corporation may be required from time to time to execute agreements on behalf of Sierra
Nevada Construction, Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned directors and shareholders of Sierra Nevada
Construction, Inc., resolve as follows:

RESOLVED, that the following individuals are appointed to service as officers of the
Corporation in the specified capacities:

Kevin L. Robertson President
Craig D. Holt Vice President
Marc T. Markwell Chief Financial Officer/Secretary/Treasurer

RESOLVED, that Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt and Marc T. Markwell as officers
of this Corporation are authorized to execute agreements into, between or among Sierra Nevada
Construction, Inc., and third parties without further authorization from the directors and/or
shareholders. :

and, further

RESOLVED, that Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt and Marc T. Markwell in their
capacities as officers of this Corporation are authorized to take all necessary and appropriate
steps on behalf of the Corporation to effectuate the proposed amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Corporation.,




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the directors
effective March 2, 2020.

Directors: Shareholders:
~p s v PF—

Kevin L. Robertson

and shareholders have executed this instruinent

Kevin L. Robertson

C-‘yD‘H’M C—?‘DHM
Craig D. Holt

Craig D, Holt



Address for giving notices:

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc,

P.0. Box 50760

Sparks, Nevada 89435

Telephone Number: _775-355-0420

Fax Numbcr: 775-355-0535
Contact Name and e-mail address: Kevin L. Robertson, President
bids@sne,bjz
Bidder’s License
No: 25565
{where applicable)

EJCDC® C-410A, Bid Form for Construction Contracts,

Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Engineers, Amarican Council of Engineering Companlas,
and American Soclety of Civit Engineers. Allrights reserved.  Poage 7



PENAL SUM FORM

BID BOND

Any singular reference w Bidder. Surety. Owner or other panty shall be considered plural where
applicable.

BINDDER t Nume and Address): Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc
2055 East Greg Street
Sparks, NV 89431

SURETY (Nume. and Address of Principal Place of Businesv);Liberty Mutual Insurance Company
1340 Treat Bivd. Suite 400

Walnut Creek, CA 94597

OWNER (Nume und Address): Storey County

PO Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440

Bl

Bid Due Date: 11/04/2020

Description (Project Name  Include Locationt: Gold Hill Package Wasterwater Treatment Plant Installation

Virginia City, Nevada ; PWP-ST-2020-312

BOND

Bond Number: N/A

Daiwc: 10/14/2020

Penal sum *Five Percent of Bid* S “5% of Big*

{Words) (Figures)

Surety and Bidder. intending to be legally bound hereby. subject 10 the terms set forth below. do each
canse this Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer. agent. or representative.

BIPDER SURETY

Swatra Nevada Construction, Ing {Scal) Liberty Mulual Insurance Company (Scal)

Bdder’s Nanyrporme Seat Surety 's Name and Corporate Seal

R\r /é@ By i ‘ L \ “ot Y
Signature Signature (Attach Power of Attorney)

Patncia Owens

Print Name Print Name
“‘ﬂlm Attorney-In-Fact
Tufe ~ - Title
o .
Attest - 4 ] Attest: ap ‘

i
§ 7 &“' Signature ,
Title Sony! “.“f ITceasures Title Agent

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.
Provide execution by any additivnal parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.

EJCOC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form), Published 2013.
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Comimittee.
Page 1 0f 2




EJ ggg% PENAL SUM FORM

1. Bidder and Surcty, jointly and severally, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum sct forth on the face of this
Bond. Payment of the penal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum
under the terms of this Bond shall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the
Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents
(or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agrecement required by the
Bidding Documents and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents,
or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3  Owner fails to issuc a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding
Documents (or any extension thercof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to
by Surety when required by Paragraph 5 hercof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payablc upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days after
receipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be Eiven with
reasonable promptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount duc.

3. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice
of Award agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award
including extensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety's written
consent.

6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days afier the notice of default
required in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year afler the Bid
due date.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in & court of competent jurizdiction located in
the state in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses
shown on the face of this Bond. Such notices may be scnt by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by
United States Registered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to
be effective upon receipt by the party concermed.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attomey evidencing the
authority of the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal,
and deliver such Bond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of
any applicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set
forth at length. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said
statute shall govern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force
and effect.

11. The term “Bid" as used herein includes a Bid, offer, or proposal as applicable,

EJCDC® C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). PubNshed 2013,
Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Paga 20f2




B

currency rate nterest rate or residual value guarantees.

Not valid for mortgage. note. loan, letter of credr,

This Powar of Attorney limits the acts of those named herein, and {hey have no authority to
bind the Company sxcept n the manner and 1 the extent heren ststed

1.a h(‘rt'\' Liberty Mutual insurance Company
[\/‘ lllllﬂl The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company CenfcateNo 8200430
) West American insurance Company
SURETY
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOWN ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That Tha Oho Casustty insuisnce Company 1s B corporation duly organzed unger the iaws of the Siste of New Hampshie that
Liberty Mutual Inswrance Company @ 8 corporation duly organized undss the laws of the State of Massachusetts. and West Amencan insurance Company i3 a corporation duly organzed
under the laws of the State of Indiana (herewn collectvely called the ‘Companies’], pursuant to and by suthorty harenn sel forth doss heretyy name, constitute and appon|

Andrea M Cantlon, Cassandra Meding, Patricss Owem Nicholas [ Rosse leri | W -

al of the cy of _ ~ Rew __ sasol NV " sach dwouaily 4 era be more e one named T e and lawhl attomay-n-fact io make
execute s8al. acknowedge and delver, lor Bk on .ts benaif as surety 8nd as its act and deed any and all ungertakings tonds racognizances and other sursty obigabons n pursuance
of these presents and shall be as binding upon the Companies as f they have been duly signad by the president and atiested by tha sacretary of the Compames in their own Proper

persons
IN WITNESS WHEREQF, trus Power of Aftomey has beer subscnbed by an authonzed officer or oM of the Comparwes and the corporste seals of the Companies have bean affixed
therelo ths  iinh  gayol Januury 2ot

. iberty Mutual Insurance Company
The Ohic Casuaity Insurance Company
West Amancan Insurance Company

.ot
. /,.‘, -
X Ao . """
By

Diavid M Carey. Asuistant Secretary

State of PENNSYL VANIA
County of MONTGOMERY

Onttis  dnh  dayof Janwany 2014 belore me personally appeared Dawd M Carey mnwmmmummtquummlmm
Company. The Oho Casuslty Company and Wast Amencar insurance Company and that be as such beng authorzed sa to g0 execute the forsgong nstrument for the purposes
heren contained by sgmng on behal of (he corporabons by himsetf as a duly authonzed officer

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have nereunto subscribad my name and affixed my notana: seal at King of Prussia Pennsylvana on the day and year frst above whtten

COMMONWE ALTH OF PENNS YL VANLA

Mola o e . n]
: u--l'”'l-- -.;— \we‘; :‘“ s By: ?Z/'M’J#J éd’ é //‘_,
R R e e orasa Pastela N Pube - _

Cecta e et Acaaad N me

Thes Power of Atlomey 15 made and execulsd pursuant lo and by authonty of the fokowing By laws and Autnonzatons of The O Casualty nsurance Company Liberty Mutual
insurance Company and West Amencan insurance Company which resokubons ste now i fuil lorce and effect reackng as fokows.

ARTICLE IV - OFFICERS: Section 12 Power of Altorngy
Any officer of other offical of the Corporation authonzed for that purpose m wiing by the Chairman or the Presdent. and subyect to such hmdation as the Chawman or the
President may prescribe. shall appont such atiomays n-fad. as may be necassary to acl n behalf of the Corporation 6 make, execute saal acknowiedge and delver as surety
any anc all undertakings bonds. recognizances and olher surety cbligabions Such atiomeys-n fact subyect 1o the lmitabons sel forth in thesr respectrve powers of gtiomey shall
naveh.uripouorbbmdtheCapambymursgnamremdusmbmofmymmstrumm!sandmunamm«uomwdme(:mahm When 30 execulsd such
mSHUMents shall be as inding as 1f signed by the Prasident and attesied 10 by the Secretary Anypmuaaumortygmtootomyraprwuhwuruuuney-n-ruuunaerm
provisions of this artcle may be revoked 8t any bme by the Board the Chawman mﬁmtummeoﬁwaoﬂmgmm SUCH powen o authonty
ARTICLE Xil! - Execution of Cantracts: Section 5 Surety Bonds and Undarigkings
Any officer of the Company authorzed for that purpose i wnbng by the chawman or the prasident andg Subyect lo such imitahons as the charman or the president may prescribe
shdappomﬂmmanmmhqmnﬂyunmmnmmrdmemnmytomaku execute saal aunmbdgewﬂelwassuru'ymyandwunm‘
DONGY. fecognizances and ofher surety oblgatans Such atiomeys-in-fact subyect to the kmitabons et Rt in ther respectve powers of attomey shall have il power bo bind the
Company by therr signature snd execubon of any such instrurents and [0 attach therelo the seal of the Company When s0 exacutad such :nstruments shalt be as bnckng as of
signad by the resigent ang aitested by the secretary
Certificate of Designation - The President of the Compeny acting pursuani o the Byiaws of the Company authonzes Dawa M Carey. Assisiant Secretary to appoint such attomeys-in-
fact as may be necessary to act on bahalf of the Company 1o maks exscute. seal. Bcknowledge and dsiver a8 surety any ang all undertakings bonds recognizances and other surety
obiigatons
Authonzation - By unanimous consent of the Company's Board of Dracirs. the Company consents that facsamie or mechanically reproduced signature of sny assistan secretary of the
Company, wherever appeanng upon & cerihed copy of By power of attomey issued by the Company in cannection with surety bonds. shail be vaid and binding upon the Company with
the same force and effect as though manuaily affxed
| Renee C Liewellyn, e undarugned, Assitan! Secrelary The Ohio Casusity Insurance Comgany, Liberty Mutual Insurance Company and Vwest Amencan Insurance Company do
hereby certify thai the ongnal power of tiomeay of which the foregaing 15 a Uil true and corredt copy of the Power of Attomey executed by sak’ Companes 18 in il force and eflact ang
has nol been revoked
IN TESTIMONY WHEREQF | have hereunic set my hand and afhxed the seals of saig Comparestmis  |4ih  dayof Oxtober HI}

Plasn-

Renee C Llewellyr: Assistant Secrelary

MY 12873 N OCIC WAIL MR Co 6208

To confirm the validity of this Power of Aftorney call
1-610-832-8240 between § 00 am and 4.30 pm EST on any business day

i



SECTION (0440
5% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Per NRS Chapter 338.141, cach Bid submitted must include the name of the prime contractor and cach first
tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the prime contractor

Ifa Bidder fails to provide a complete list, their Bid shali be deemed not responsive. Subcontractors must
not be on a disqualified status with the State Public Works Board.

Completc the tollowing tablc for the prime contractor and first tier subcontractors who will be employed
and the scgregation of the Work each will perform if the Contract is awarded to the party or parties listed
herein.

First tier subcontractor is defined as a contractor who eontracts dircctly with a prime contractor to provide
labor, materials, or services for a construction project, as defined by NRS 338.141(8)(a).

Percentage of Subcontractor’s Name, Add'ress, and -
Work to be Performed Total Contract License Number

(Prime Contractor)

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

P.0. Box 50760

Sparks, Nevada 89435 License #25565

L All remaining work except
those not required to be
listed per NRS 338.141 U4

{Subcontractor)

2.
lehrical (parkial), SLADA : .. Lic % 006 F820
shinllpti) H.5% guﬁkgfhuﬁwb,%pwks,nv 643

3. S‘IL wau-lﬂ (Subcontractor)  Lig MIZA‘IC,
Souslabon (url), it | SepmnBrihes bushcon
budding (st i) 1515, 18nSheck, Sparks, NV SM3)
a.

(Subcontractor)
5. {Subcontractor)
6. (Subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered Pages may be attached if needed,

Storey County B0440-1 FWE #167)
Gold Hill Treatment Plunt 3% Subcontractor List Bid Set (October 20205



SECTION 10441
1% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Per NRS Chapter 338.141, within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the bids, the prime
contractors who submitted the three lowest bids must submit a list containing;

(1) The name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide lahor or a portion of the work on the public
work (o the primc contraetor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding
$250,000.

OR

(2) If any onc of the prime contractors who submitted one of the three lowest bids will employ a first tier
subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the prime
contractor for which the first ticr subcontractor will not be paid an amount excecding $250,000, the
name of cach first ticr subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public
work to the prime contractor for which the fust ticr subcontractor will be paid 1 percent of the prime
contractor’s total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater.

If a Bidder fails to provide a completc list with all requested information provided, their Bid shall be deemed
not responsive. Subcontractors must not be on a disqualified status with the State Public Works Board,

Complete the table for the prime contractor and first tier subcontractors who will be employed and the
segregation of the Work cach wil| perform if the Contract is awarded to the party or parties listed herein.

First tier subcontractor is defined as a contractor who contracts directly with a prime contractor to provide
labor, materials, or services for a construction project, as defined by NRS 338.141(8)(a).

- Percéntage of Subcontractor’s Name, Address, and
Work to be Performed Tatal Contract License Number
. L (Prime Contractor)
All remaining work except v/ Sierra Nevada Constructian, Inc,
those not required to be 444 0 P.0. Box 50760

listed per NRS 338.141 Sparks, Nevada 89435 License #25565

(Subcontractor) Li¢ & pD7 820

2 . ; .
echrieal (postia) SCAMA | 439, Ty S 1o Sparks, N €343

h E
™
{Subcontractor) Lic 8D l21_ st

4 buldi thers Lustruction
el by | #437% |B T i g

4. (Subcontractor)

5. (Subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed

Storey County vgd44i-1 FWE w671
Gold Hill Treatment Plant 1% Subcomiractor List Bid Set {October 2020}



SECTION (0441
1% SUBCONTRACTOR LIST

Per NRS Chapter 338.141, within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the bids, the prime
contractors who submitted the three lowest bids must submit a list eontaining:

(1) The name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public
work to the prime contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding
$250,000.

OR

(2) 1f any one of the prime eontractors who submitted one of the three lowest bids will employ a first tier
subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the publie work to the prime
eontraetor for which the first tier subcontractor will not be paid an amount exeeeding $250,000, the
name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public
work to the prime contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid 1 percent of the prime
contractor’s total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater.

If a Bidder fails to provide a complete list with all requested information provided, their Bid shall be deemed
not responsive. Subcontractors must not be on a disqualified status with the State Publie Works Board.

Complete the table for the prime eontraetor and first tier subcontractors who will be employed and the
segregation of the Work each will perform if the Contract is awarded to the party or parties listed herein.

First tier subeontractor is defined as a eontraetor who contraets direetly with a prime eontractor to provide
labor, materials, or services for a construction projeet, as defined by NRS 338.141(8)(a).

Percentage of Subcontractor’s Name, Address, and
Total Contract License Number

(Prime Contractor)

l.
All remaining work except " Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.
those not required to be 441 [ P.0. Box 50760

listed per NRS 338.141 Sparks, Nevada 89435 License #25565
(Subcontractor) Li¢ £ 00b7820

2. _ : ,
dechrieal (porkinl), SCADA | 1439, 'gt"l;\ ::s\ﬁ'{%\ewhswh'w 8431

(Subcontractor) Lic #80124 8[L
W79 | Ropweu Bitherotausieuckion
' 1515, 108 Shck, Spaks, NV 3443

{Subcontractor)

Waork to be Performed

(Subcontractor)

NOTE: Additional numbered pages may be attached if needed.

Storey Cotinty Oi44i-1 FWE #1671
Gold Hill Treatmen Plunt 1% Subcontrocior List 8id Set (October 2020)



SECTHON 30446
CONTRACTOR'S W AMVEROF PREFERENTIAL BIDDERSTATLS
(NRS 338,147

Conttact Gold Hit] Package Wastewate, Treatment Plant

As acondivon of award of the said Contraes, the andersigned Bidder acknow fedges that be i i are elilhe
provisions of Nevada Revised Stutgte 135, 47, whieh provides for Preferential Bidder Status in Award of

the Contract,

Phe udersigned Bidder turther SRR loowin e and does lrereby wane all s rhits W Preterental Bulder
Slatus as provade by sad statote upon thye vhidvrstanding that the regulations of the lending apeney prohibi

such iy estmient and that, w thout s waver, fos wnd or erant funds tor this Projectwall not be gy wlahle
INBTINESS WHERECHE Brdior Iy evecured these presents this

Ah dav ol November .o2020

_Sierra Nevids Copstructiop, Inc,

Hidder P '
Hy L -'ngﬁ_:_____ﬁ_m_ e — —
Fitle Kevin L. Robertson, President ——

NOTE T mstrament shoyld be wetted by the ofticer who executes the canitract and m the

SN anney

Mool oy hedde [ ¥ BV
ol Ot P B T | Y S I AT ] ed Soroid o, I
Butdor Snouzs



SECTION 00451
QUALIFICATIONS STATEMENT

THE INFORMATION SUPPLIED IN TIIS DOCUMENT IS CONFIDENTIAL TO THE EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAWS AND REGULATIONS

1. SUBMITTED BY:

Official Name of Firm: Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

Address: P.0. Box 50760

—Sparks, Nevada 89435

2, SUBMITTED T0: Storey County

3. SUBMITTED FOR;: Gold Hill Package Wastewater Treatment Plant
Owner; Storey County
Project Name; Gold Hill Package Wastewater Treatment Plant

4. TYPE OF WORK:

Per project description located in the advertisement for

bids.

5. CONTRACTOR'S CONTACT INFORMATION

Contact Person: Kevin L, Robertson
Titte: _President

Phone: 775-355-042(0
Email: bids@snc.biz

EJCDC” C-451, Quallfications Statement Schedules.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Engineers, American CouncH of Engingering Companies,
and American Society of Clvl| Enginears, All rights reserved,
Page 1 of 10




AFFILIATED COMPANIES:

Name:

Address:

TYPE OF ORGANIZATION:

[J SOLE PROPRIETORSHIP

Name of Owner:

Doing Business As:

Date of Organization:

[(J PARTNERSHIP

Date of Organization:

Type of Partnership:

Name of General Partner(s):

Xl  CQORPORATION

State of Organization: Nevada

Date of Organization: 3/2/88

Executive Officers:

President; Kevin L, Robertson
Vice President(s); Craig D. Holt
Treasurer: : Marc T, Markwe]]
Secretary: Marc T. Markwell

EXCDC™ C-451, Qualifications Statement Schedules.
Copyright © 2013 National Soclety of Professional Englnoers, Amerlcan Councl! of Engingering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Englneers. Al rights resarved.
Page 1 of 10




O LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY

State of Organization;

Date of Organization:

Members:

[} JOINT VENTURE

Sate of Organization:

Date of Organization:

Form of Organization:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

Name:

Address:

Joint Venlure Managing Partner

Name:

Address:

Joint Venture Managing Partner

Name:

Address:

EJCOC” C-451, Qualifications Statement Schegules,
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companles,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved,
Page 3 of 10




10.

LICENSING

Jurisdiction: State of Nevada Contractors Board

Type of License: Contractors License

License Number: 23565

Jurisdiction: _Nevada Secretary of State

Type of License: Nevada State Business License

License Number; NV19881009372

CERTIFICATIONS CERTIFIEDBY:

Disadvantage Business Enterprise:

Minority Business Enterprise:

Woman Owned Enterprisc:

Small Business Enterprise:

Other { ).

BONDING INFORMATION

Bonding Company: Liberty Mutuaj Insurance Company
Address: 1340 Treat Boulevard, Sujte 400

Walnut Creek, California 94597

Bonding Agent: L/P Insurance Services

Address: 300 East 2nd Street, Suite 1300

Reno, Nevada 89501

Contact Name: Andrea Cantlon

Phone: 775-336-1987

Aggregate Bonding Capacity:  _$120 miilion

Available Bonding Capacity: $53 million

(as of date of this submittal)

EJCDC” C-451, Qualifications Statement Schedules.
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Sociaty of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companles,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 4 of 10




11.

12.

CONSTRUCTION EXPERIENCE;
Current Experience:

List on Schedule A all uncompleted projects currently under contract (11 Joint Venture list each
participant's projects separatcly).

Previous Expcrience:

List on Schedule B all projects caompleted within the last § Years (If Joint Venture list each
participant's projects separatcly).

Has firm listed in Scetion | ever failed to complete a construction contract awarded to it?
LJYES XINO
[f YES, attach as an Attachment detaits including Project Owner's contact information.

Has any Corporate Officer, Partncr, Joint Venture participant or Proprietor cver failed to complete a
construction contract awardcd to them in their name or when acting as a principal of another entity?

O YEs XINO
If YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.
Are there any judgments, claims, disputes or litigation pending or outstanding involving the firm

listed in Scction | or any of its officcrs (or any of its partners if a partnership or any of the
individual entities if a joint venture)?

Oyes XJNO

IT'YES, attach as an Attachment details including Project Owner's contact information.

SAFETY PROGRAM:

Namec of Cantractor's Safety Officer:_Jcremiah Merritt

Include the following as attachments:

Providc as an Attachment Contractor' OSHA Form No. 300 and 300A - Lop & Summary of
. Occupatignal Injuries & 1llnesses for the past S years. see attached

Provide as an Attachment Contractor's list of all OSHA Citations & Notifications of Penalty
(monetary or other) received within the last 5 years (indicate disposition as applicable) - [F
NONE 8O STATE.  Ngpne

Provide as an Attachment Contractor’s list of all safety citations or violations under any state all
received within the last 5 years (indicate disposition as applicable) - IF NONE SQ STATE.

None

EJCOC" €-451, Qualifications Statement Schedules,
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Soclety of Professional Enginoars, American Council of Englincering Compantes,
and American Soclety of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 50110




oMb T Y TEeY popplecs L pucs rou o] BE TR G .
AN RO Bewamninn ] 4T TFH- e ey pomish g SS VIIED ‘He e MOWUSEN] 551 T Rnoge mrp i w scobdi e S A8 A3 SO O Coma

G 3y mm ) Iy e ZE90 P AP ¥ LTS B RN R e 18 T el L 2 tmamsh ) - L et Sy
T P pOpow CRp XY S PR UK SRR i) RN @ e Papap i on i o g X OF PIENTI 8 WOy SR T8 MR eyl 3] KHY SLsads Y
. gn:—..ﬂ}‘wm uespy ov3 L5 p sl oy B 1wk ap po or pocdy 0) 1 Krnagey wox abed Kxeunors snp1 1509
! ! sreQ - - g
T Pt ! 0z ss¢ Sl o SoTSIULYE S0 |1V ta) 0 suonpuos Kigmadssy (g)
L

N M _ ) 0 w501 BuuwaH] (g} 0 SRPXRRP WIS (2)
‘F1dwWe? put "HNnot ‘nn e PORCY A shuuonog {» sunfug (1)

1O 152 1 03 1TAI PUR JUSLROOP STY| PIALIIKGS Satry [ Teyl {Jiss | 0 g

)

P« w yyueas G jarundop s Mg Aidsieeay " Jo Pqum o)

2+ ubis

mu&m_. ssaul pue Ainfug

w —.N.wwm 1024 ) 2sopdun e L poyxie Lmog [ER0]

3] v}
69¢ fordusa Jo Soquumy Bessa gy vZs LE
(-orcmeiss s im aBod Lsns A w0 12XYH UOIDLAS 10 RJSURI yom was) {eme
24t 2 ramdyf weyt aamg | wop i ff) sopeuiou) Juswloychug qof jo skep Jo soquiny 0L SARP JO SoquIU (MO,
sAeq jo Joquuny
IZITEE " R 3) Waoey 1) (ST VN WURIYSSEL) (RLASHPU) WD LOUNY UON
O [(y] {1 ) 2]
0ieLed 1] 14 z 1}
(G128 " 22) w0y 1 '(DiS) UDUEMGIESR] ) [RASIPU] PUwpUTIS f =2 o) UOTLHISDS MOM WoI) ABME
IQUPIoIN IMN[IO 10 saysuen qol SAEP glim SISTY apep
uoansuoe) JORqWIN 0] ST JO DL O F JOBquau o] JOIRGUINU Kol
- SISCY JO J2quIny
d 2 A
Lepeg % ANTS syedg

U0} IS}
J0p SUOISIMOKT SSAITE Q] L SERIDD SNLTY JOF ﬂ:?ggnaoswnvahémmuﬂamgﬂa&oﬂ&5«.:5&11«0!&2
SSFIG DAVURT SARY OSIB AN ARLGUS TP W O0E LU0 WHSO Y} maads 0} pybur dy) asry SSAnjuataniar gawg pu2 Aopdesd Kuof ™ kopchery
0. M ‘SOSED ou Py noA i Do sy Jo abed Aana
LAY SAUTUS 4] PIODB a4 N0L IS DU “IMORN] SIICI ) I UYL %gﬁ_uﬁmEinﬂaﬁ%oﬂtg ‘Bo7 A Duesyy
AIPUUATS ST DURNOWOD 210G IENOR DUS HNTUITD 08 SHAUD N 184) Arn CF BOT j) MdADs 0 RQUIALDY
SR 3 BUIND PALNII0 STSTHA K0 SANTUT DIIRISF1IGM O J Uard 9800 AIBUNING 1) SIN0UICT N POEL LR AQ DRIAAGD SRRWYSHIGRISS IY

198115 Baug yseq gsgoz ™

‘U] "UOIINUIISUDD) BPBASN BLIG " meswiwanss wa
HONTLLUIO I JUSLNSHGELST

un_oN:u l-..-o..;-.l..lll..
s Eoes - T N T LT M A TN A el S e A L ML T AUESE L v TR R T T e B s VR i L AT e T i e S R Y T - W ﬁ 1?‘&
40q¥7 jo Jueunszdeg "S'n Eﬁﬁm&uﬁaﬂs%%iﬁuﬁ Sassouj]] pue sauniul polejay-3Jioa jo NEE:W

T,

ﬁ_\mn B 61 0T 1894 T anes pui tisog sess orey eniins Sy v m v (o020 %24 /O0C ULIOSH S, VHSO




® & ® @@ W e e . — — . ..
7 ¢ g abeg uuog & ppy L -yndujases g gy P 0 VS A ] £ P g gl iy paisat
= u- .M _ s R - M Ty g — b el f e— pa— U0 PR et v ATl W S EALOp o S phs. 2 0 e |
qw 1 m *u w u ] o B il ST 7 WAMIOPT S M TAL PP S pu YOk Epp g O P M v a—
itk ¥ 1 B 1 o ks e Sy SO Teterdoms ] O | | ML 01 RIS = g o A0 G g SO SOaede ALY
g 0 0o 0 0 9 ¥Zs LE 0 ¥ 2 0 o SO edeg
- e ‘ e —
DIIDIID J J JJ ) =
iy . : e —
JIVVVI T T D 00D ; =0
DIIIII =~ J 0 I D = T ==
T e e s -
[ " P rb @ A e —_—
000 e - - < [ <) Buuswweyyoel siym WBss yOEE  SINUL -SSIOT  pz / g JAIOGEY afies ‘mummyrznbupoy  Q[weey)
S e ey
1z [ = -
5 _ J ® < ) Bunsoys siiym UENS MOQIS yBRY  scurLems-emet g /g Roqe opeukay ‘wikmaany G [psy]
I JJ® g e 2 ) ey —
300 e e ® I I uue Y3} paInpey pue 1o aysqOr Tz’ 9  ssqey  esof ‘esanboN ¥ [weew)
®) 2 J ,@ J ey _
Jap|no -
) {v o ..Ou — I PINCYS Ya| pauIeS pUB |84 UOSIBD -3USQOr  pzf g Jai0qen uaue(q ‘yesy m!
ur e J D @ ) wmousBujaso : S -
0 e e - ujasoys opum Amfuls2omoys  enaBan s -ausaer 7 7 7z aabBely epuipep ‘ueqga gz [weew)
. ® 201 iy L Q .r\g {M v | ot —_—
Wauxdinba ojuc Sugund nym Lnlul BAA N - oy 1 ,
® BMOB O W o o AT SUMANSUSON gz! L mendo  awesdrabey i [emg]
b iy} @ (%] o)
M _
E- S ————— i, s g
W peig ey i mSts ve _......!1..»: for. 3
— - -“J!Unu‘l 2 parafun Lipvanp L]
HI..l...l.bll REan 2N — P IR RI Qe Pus IR (s yiow gug Sipeo] T 3) e . ~2a ;
ti&i-ﬁi‘!ﬂ 3'\.!‘.-!0“...."&“ 105 9ten0 Lut.wJKEu.ﬁ.cﬁhnmnn Apey o -i.!!._.._lbs_su.ahln PALINIIT |SIAD ._..!33 .r.a-l._ » sy _Eit_h...in ui-c:ohuilu uIU!.
IS i Iy
L § &
AN mx._waw ﬂsgknagﬁﬁgsﬁnﬂﬂgﬁ!! WOEATOR! $7 BEES B AMHIGA R0 Jou &1L00d i Ry Sy wvo pagiicoay Ssau J0 Anf Loes
U] ‘USIDILISUOD BPEABN BLBIG ™ 7 u\o?tnn_m&uﬂigiﬁriﬁu!u_auﬂuﬁtmiihuh}ﬁgﬂ.“> diaﬁnlﬂnﬁiﬁh&&g!nuﬁzﬂ ‘081 uSnaug
R.:.:'-..BIIIII.& Bﬁb%:wvs‘ n-ﬁﬂggﬂihlgiﬂiggggax ﬁlgi}g%ﬁhg-ﬁhﬂp&g
T AT AT AT T I ST e TSI - TR AP AT L T 17 SO LR T s s B T P s L 2 G - oy o il .:oo-.g IR0 POH ek Lsas it gbﬂgaﬁ
n - " il P A b s
20q¥7 o -..oEtnMun sn ﬂmw&.ﬁ Wleay pue Ajpjes Euolednono “Arudaidde t¥ AnI-08 01 pRiUeBd e § ‘
e oon | e e o e | e e Dap 10, sounfuy
Py utioy oW AN URD NOA “FINOOP 10d
1941 JRUUEW € ul pASN 3q JSw pue Ypeay sodwa | | snewseaen, ae abeped Budaaypiooar sng w s ITNEOIg vmﬂ mhmmlxhaks &Q ma
0) Buyera :o..—nE.—O__.- SUIBTUGD WO} SR ), SUOIIaNY M BAFE PUR ULDS S oy ndus odA) :-n.”»h“ﬂ\g =nopn IN

{FOD2IL0 “hael) 0o¢ ELO.IL m..qtmfo



19ans baug) 1seg ggoz &

‘OU) "UORDIMUISUDY) BPEAGN BLDIG ~ > = rwrrr= =
VO ELLIOIUE JUSUASHGEISS

FSAIOR DALY ANY OTIE AsiLL

AN TSy amwm——") gpl 'y YN Sty
o

e g %) prosyimas wp a1 Wow 30
-

B B ] i e i) S AL ¥ Sy ) RS A Sstyd 18 LA T ) PO Gy PGt e b fdeaty] by b kg o i Syt
B . P prer virp v sapel e I TSRS B na1u 5 e Snpao ewede Od Cummes § Sl o pemmn 1 memg) o tecneges sup wy wpey Pegacd ey
«:un_no..wwm.,. : w0 ) g pessana Jeedk sy Bupmoijoy ek syy jo ot udy 01 3 Kivnsge s woey sbed Leunans w1504
m _ ..Qm ! _ = Q.ﬂ_ —Q .lﬂmm- ﬂ o SSSE IR 1Y (o) 0 suonpuos Aoneindsay (o)
L »\h ?u
1 MO TR [0d) 7 ' 0 ss0f WARH (5) 0 Ssaposp %S ()
A v AN AR SHAUS ) 3 s stuvonog ) o] ()
JO 13 A 01 IR0 PUE TDUADOPR S PIILWEND DATY | Tyt AJI1ED | Q 2 o
a1 & # jjasaa {xu; jmamndop sy S (e ASnwney 7o Rquint (Ao}
asay ubsg sodA} ssouyyy pue Linfuf
BZ6E0G =4 o =kogdac e g payox smoy o | o o
o8¢ Saiopdies jo coquanu lenae oy ot 19
{13 03 Kbl yXee agp WO 1IREOEIO Y O3 )0 DSOS WOm L) LEme
o 73 SRS snp 3 e wad [ op @ LIy Jaewhopdury 90! Jo shap Jo Aqamu mo] SAEp 10 JoquINe o)
OLELET sAeq jo 1aquny
(TITIEE " T2) wmoary §1 (SHVN) BONFOISSIL [rLMRpE] aRoLaany [aoN
%0 (r} 1] 1] [5)]
£ 4 1 0
(145~ 32y mmowy 31 '(D45) WOMDG AT LSRRy parputys bt DORMIS3S  yaaw way) fene
2QEPIIA; IR0 10 psuen qol s SAPp g S9TEd yreop
uoqoniysuoD FPqOWEo] S o oqemumol o squee oy J0 Squmd ot
(sraposs yonn soxn fo vy “33) wondiomp Kantpan
oz > SI500 JO Joquiny
LEVB8 ” ANTTS syedg *°

UK ST8Y)

HoF SUORIAGX ETI000 BU] U0 SN0 SNy J0f WV DUKIBERIO0N 5, VHSO U SE POGL Vid HoD 62 P85 WayeANDS 53100 L0 UK YHSO 94 0

AIBAIS TY U] 005 LUOS YHSO St MMAL Of Ryl $U) SARY SRAFRURTRAIM SN DUt ‘FeA0pI L JeuLIy “SOIAONRT
-0 S TeSEI 0U pay nok Jj Do ayp o Aded Kaas

WY SMAUD I DAOOE IAN0L &t BUpRe: ‘MG TR W) S1pM LBy] KABKED D8 K] FPEW NOL SHIUI ADMIE M Junay B gy By

Ay spg Supaachiod JU0JQ EILNICOE PUT MO0 BT SIS ) 1oyl Agrea of 507 BT PR O) ML SRS

1804 By Db DRINTIIC SETEIURE JO SIILY DOIEIRLI0M DU ) UGAD ‘sl8d Usunung £an MiMdwaD JENik pOSL KB A DaISAOD SRBUSISIQRISY Iy

e TR H LTS 1 o A, L R R T D 1 e S i s £

RpENY (g 8QOPY by g DUEN ©ad NOA DARE uaty

PUF SRR LLO) 1IGUA 8t oun wdd) Led nod SIUmLNOOD 40
Shuewaqer, ue $lnped Buldeexpiooa) s L UL sl ssnesag
U OARS Pu oy Sy opa snduy odly ura no A :eon

B o o0zeo

AL P Tl LT L AL ) AR TR OGS T S T L kS B D A W S b WL 3D TLIE B T Y el ¥

sossaujy] pue saunfu] pojejay-yion jo Areununs
roszno s YOOE W0+ S, ¥YHSO



® & B W w L e

siidly

0o 0 ¢ 0 0 # LE1

JIIII® =
JIIIIe -
SJIIOII® e
DdIIVIe
JIIII®
JIOIJILV®
JII0D0e

@ 5 © @& o

Svougy jo sdl} soe sneeye
20 mangas _Lmfiy, #40 1000S

BTRH f o e
rmmmuiuﬂ.

— —1 . —c—e L v o v pcdimas g P e ] nﬁl‘lnna.ﬂa’ﬂ.lﬂwﬂiﬂ
| ;98eq o ppv| - s3ndup enes Y T e e e e e
o A . e - - - W . RO U Sl it g ter i Srgd g ey amRan
- Bopaprm ‘v § b - o S v my sy, Susprdey sppy
19 e v 0 4 mmmsizy
— i —_
- J < J I ? =)
- . L} -
u J J 2D ' [omm ]
— Lo —
DR Y 243 U eIg0 Bussnid 51/ zL  solRISdD AL ‘sousus  g[wey]
~— e —
- J0 9 D) 100§ 330 UE 3N} ALNig Susqor gzl or  sage] ue| ‘6ucy 2 [
— - —
- ® DA B | 243 U 199Iqe UBI2I0 susqor g /g sasoqE] of9j0 'sowey  9[mmy]
— i rm— —
o ® S YouaJ} oy ))a WSQOr g /gy JaloqE) SOIPILSY ‘ezeved  G[ween)
PR L} -
- o) D D saunury abpers yim my uonesse) sy oUSQOr gz 5  sepdsepei |PRVOI 'ONND RQ b [we]
— . —deprge —_
e D ® D ) pueypsysews seuco 'Ysno pueH peoy AU oz/ g Jebbely ualD ‘Weysq £ [weeu]
— =) —
2 [ )] <D urydes o dune e uo pedders weas yorg Ped¥orul gz/ ¢ s5oAuQ wes yuoppues-jows  Z [weww]
— 2 —
® < J O paguo dajs passw ‘uens yorg PedPIL ¢ty g uAD) ‘sdiiyd | [}
tu o w W
B oSmoTmmrasm e _—
ey pyles ww ey 22u85p (aig "5

X3} g et 2o e pEAR{w L)i00ng 1)

!‘l]li‘hlﬂcé iii{ﬂs.u&_ s (oppeg Ty -
ipoq o iomd agn 0 Laleg spoamy  prismooe meaas 3y 2imm ol ] ) 4o umn o {opey

2 1] v

ey t———p————
LHET Oy,
1 a5 Juo J LT pate
WD I IC) X0 INOD ATAG IDTTIS
IR scoondusseoll s anaquasoa | wos19d a1 o

AN

3L 3121 W g0 paraddy s
T

BEREDRRRPY Yhivey pur Duyry respedeseg
Joqet jo yeunsdag “sn

J 8l 0Z 188

TS O AT L LI e = Ay i N

suedg ®©
U] 'VOBONASUOD) EPEASN BLAS T

Q0f 13 Aot o p

G JOp SO0 WHS O SI00) NOA JRD “BQURINS 51 SEW3 & SIS SIS J0U B1AGA ) UKCY Txp UO PN ESRUp J0 A irwe
Ay Xy KpaanDe JC (0F #1303 YHS () SO0 KOO SIau P ik VR 8o J8rs MO/ "0) PO NOK SR BN € Ky SOUY DAY SN Gf 98 B84 T} $06) winong

§ P08} V0 FD 52 U1 POISY SUSYSD Sugiacns JESNCE By1 10 AU 100w 08 S0STS Din BB DINFA-LIOM DIOGI! G0 JLAE ROJ, FUORINAd BT RSN DESUSOY
2 DS Aqd B 40 POSOUDID &R FRJI ST PV LRUNkN DOJFLI-YON JEIDR QISR 0K IEIND 1G), DI KA PUGASY AW MOpew 10 5w ey Jear tirp mesei

» ey R ST S0 ANk DERRIR- L AIBAD FIXIR DUW HIPRE DOJIRRL- 10 K1BAD JIOGR LOMILLLIONS DICOI FINN O

o ﬂowm.&:a uieay pue Alxes |euopednaoo
] pas 13Q 5 UOUEULIONY ) oy qrasod
Uaixa ) o) Saakoidwa jo Aepuagyuon ay B3at0sd

1By} JSULEL © Ly DISN B4 JSTW Ul Loy sakophua
01 Butlejas LOHELIOJ SLIEU0D WLD) ST | SUOIUSNIY

madaxsde s& amnoea-one o peuaueBond Biw R0 By
“USHDNE A "JOpRTY I d #qopY 93y Sy Bursh Sindun inok Bass L)
PUR SAY Ulio} 1N WY opa adA) Le POA “TLAUMDOP J0d

SN SIGeR. A S0eed BUdaaNICOAN SRy L SULIOY SRy DEMEDeY
"I Saxs pur LU} SKY) Oy iwhy edl: ueDd no, eroN

e, Fom i ame WAL R L TS T, T e RN s, T S Tyt IR Y R PR, - ¢

sassaujj] pue sauniuj
pole|ay-yiom jo 6o
troozno a3 ANE W0 S, YHSO



Touge FEp w fmmy piivieto: SE PO 08 00) TN 20 ey
AN TS ST DOE Wby Moo WAy RORSoRTS M 3080 YHSD 04 0 iesemm] §r) II606 Somaefjat sl FEg AP AN 38 TURrER
ey 2y wod J| “oqunt jomins NG PORA Spmimo § Glmgdie 3 u]’ii‘%oil%!i"!ijﬁj]li‘l}l

PR TP P MG N PUT WAL YRR e Fii%glixitilliii
v e S w0y ey Ay swal wepy szek aip jo o pdy o8 L Amroaged ivox sbed Lamiromg S0 1804
! ! g Aoqd
L YIRATIEA L) Quhg - S mhurnsu o SERUN BQNO [V @) o suoutpaos Kauendssy (g)
ErF3F AFKM ° ssof BoumaH (g} 0 SRPOP NG (7)
!nnaoia.uihui a0L) am S ) a3pajmonny £
JO 1534 341 01 I PUR EDIUNDOP L) PIUTLINES JAry [ WY ARR3 | 0 Amosed & ¢ B”_.&E

2635 u 01 s e juamnaop syt Foidiste) £i2mouy | jo squan oL
oy ubys ssouyy) pur Linfuy
ZhppZs iim ssadoglan v 4q ppow samoy 00 ), - o0
e 3l Ry
252 dma jo 1aq o fA4
ﬁ!!!aﬂuuenanj..s%.!&_ BOTELISAT A) LyjsTRn WM uR AEnE
gt 2 “F2ouB5f st 2asny 1,uni? w0l 1) LOLIRULIONT) L qol Jo sAep 10 Xaq Lt oL, sAep Jo fGLINY (B0

DLELET
(TTZ9EE ~T3) W0y 31 “(SITV M) UORESISSAT) [RUSNPE] WBUMIY qUON

%0 0] 0} (] o)
L z 0 0
($12¢ “33) nwomy 1 (D1S) SotesysseL) misTpu) papng 2R3 uagPLS pom way Lems

JQUPIOOU LHHO I mpsmen gol i simp QM SHWD spop

UORDINNISUOD) PROY - UORDINIISUOD) Jobquet ol AP jORqUMNGO]  joRqunamol 0 Jquna ol
(e yoma mwm fo amocfmoly ~33) aond: Angapay

s0SCD JO raquunpy

LEvee™ AN syedg

DY Fso
0 SUOEWO.Y SS90 M L0 SPRISP SNLNY JOf ‘oL Supleayuoods 5. YHSO o 'SERO6L IR MO 67 #8S TUeRANDE 5§ S0 [OF oY VLSO o &}
STRIR DAL GABY OR8 Aoy AMyms Ty L O0C LGS YHSO YT Ml 0] 1YBL ) GADY SANBRIGSXIG JOU] DUR Saalopom L0y Soeiopdury
+ O Sl SOER3 ou PO NOA 1t B} 0 0 aded Lman
KUY BOUIIS SY] pA0Pe a0l LN BUDO 'MOpq SRI0] LT SHIM L[ Eﬁﬁﬂh«ﬂ!hsn!!ig!aggnui
ARPURING SR Bugiyhinys X040q HRNTOR PUG 9)Sp0LI0 /2 SIS St g Apa 0f Bor] B mame 0 SIQUINIGY
Rad 8t Bexanp PAUNIIO SHESOUD JO SO DAJYDIHION OU § LG ‘alied Lounung s 300D [SPW O8] B AG PARADD SILGURSHEN iy

18ans Baig 1se3g 650z

“OU| 'UDGINULSUD)) BPEASN BLIG " ommmwemes may

SLETILL = D preankiy mmy

iyphdpepmypy vipeny gy Dooguy

S g S paaSEvey J0d seopy sas o Sum erdm nod e vea | SBSSAL]] pue soLnfu] pajejay-3ioM jo Areununs
1| OZ 48B4 w_ﬂiﬁimtﬂaﬁadszﬁﬁﬁﬁa ‘ o
A r0si0 Y YO0E UlioH S\YHSO




sl )

il

¢ 0o 0 0 0O €
DIJIIID
JIIVIDD
DIIIII
GSIIIID
JIIIID
JIIIII
DdIII0D
JIIII®
GIIIJ®
JIIJIIJe®

W K W @ ol

FITHS

i

P
i

I
i

§

d
PoE
|1

R b
NI
t

by e

2
k]

T Ty oy pepphis ey i e Sy] 0 20 20 WRAUREy " —y m— (DL P
o

ey Telpry P U0 YHED e >

Iayoem Buling - uless xeg

o]

¥R JO RO UC DESY FH - PR O] LONEI0E

2l =l Al

]

MOPULID) -~ DU LY *FBUG SIPDRL OF LIOTRIOT™)

— -

essugy o i) sus svasys
= wmmgen _lanflay o 1nages

i

b
TEEn s
g lweny
3
o

§

Sy sy s G havy Sl i S pee— g P L] e ot D1
i i el ST PR, SONVEITPS 3 SO M AL .-Il-:llllq-l.il:llt!u
L = —_—
.Y —
' ==
-l N —
! =7
-l 3 _
d o]
o _—
' =1
.l % e
! (o]
- N —_
! [meay]
—r. e
b =

“sesodind yyeey pus Al9Es [EUOREONTI0
] UDITILLIORY K SM gssod
@ 10 Aeguepguod sy soajad

18] RUUEL 8 W POEN 84 1EMU pue ugeoy aakodius
o] By UONELLIOK| SURFUOD UL0) SA|] SONUILIY

udosdds B8 MEONS-04E o)

"uopIDPE LY "Iepey JQd a3y ag Bupsn snduy o/ aars Uy
Wy Ol ] LD Nod “TIUSUNOp 40d
Saiuavael. A siored SuKdewnucoa) S U L) ) ShERS
"] SARE PUR ULIO) SR O3] pchey Bdiy uws no s 0N

TRXE 8] 0}

sassoaujj] pue sarniuj
paje[ay-4oMm jo bo
(roozno sl OOE WO S, YHSO



AR M O g o s e 10w 00 W[ T D0 ey
AN TRELLY BERAFNES D) pOT TH-IEN VY "RL{NEY prpe o SOUTD YHED ‘X0 JO Aomedag] 5] LMD WRMOHD S A 1 ST s (6 i LigSipld Stven pedve iverem—

e 3 Bad 1] IR panea GLICH PR 4D § Livpdep i RO TeOrIIoE jo Eroges i 9 Peeds oy posmhon jOU 268 MENLE,) SCIIFSCAVIN [ SENDSROE M L] U Mgl
‘I.B_ull..lhl-nuﬂ.lul.lusl A s T M) d R g FIiad ¢ PR | . e e 0f wopmg Tamsnk vy
“wioy s Ag p JeaX oup Buy y Jwak w3 jo agangu!n&unl&bl:!:a NN Iwod
H_ rig! __O ™ Q1ho " ¢Gf T GLL 0 SISSIUN 110 1Y (5} 0 suoipuod Asopeirdsay (¢)
E:_..uu-w b.unn_uu
m. \- m o sof Juuwey (g) 0 1PIONP WAS (Z)
Su_mEoo_xB.a_n:_uu-.ﬂﬁuhﬂ:Eu | adpopnotoy Aw e T—— Sunf ]
J9 153G A1 21 IBY) pud JuLoep Y PAUTWERD 34Ty | ey 1o | 0 9 w0

Uy w Al NS AVW Juaundop () Supdrgeg SBupmoury 1T JO RQum [mo )

eroy ullis

sadAy ssaof pur Lnlup

BEPEGE =4 sxadordua v £ papsom smoy (0]

3] o)
@NN sbopdws [0 1qainy 3MSAN fenauy "we e
{ o o E~§ X1 i 1304 UOLILIS 30 JA[SURIL R oY Azmn
A 238 TR 2y 2uoy Lunp wod J1) wog ojtn pfurg qol Jo tdep Jo Rqumu Moy £43p Jo s3qumu oy
sAeqg jo Jaqiunpy
(ZET9LE “3'0) nugury J1 (S YN) UOTROYISIN]) [FEISAPUT THNTY TUON
¥0O [y o [CH] (9}
LG 1 14 L 0
(5125 *23) namony )1 “(4HS) OOy tem) PuIpN] Rapueig = UMIMASY pos wayj fene
Aqepio%ar o 1o sysumn qof yum sAep im 5200 ey
conozbmcoo JORqUINI R0y SISED jO 1OQUIM MOL Jonqummoy  Jo Rquinu mop
e e Iy
d
lepeg*? AT syJedg w

d.:ca.ane
20) SUOEIAQAT STADNE T U SINFOP LY JOf HOU BUISSKMOR! S, YHSE U1 SEPOSL WR HID ST 085 WerRAb 51 X0 LOE LU YHSO ) Of
ST PR SARy OT Aaiy) ARUTUR S 11 0OE UOJ VHSO P MaARI O 5L 3] SARY COATERISTRICNS AR PUE TeeAORhtIS S0 ULIOY Koy

. O BJum TEERD Ov DY oA 1 B0 sy o alled Kane
E%!cgu!.ag!ﬂhi MO STRIO) YT LM LY E!ﬂﬁ-:&gag%gla:kaoglhg

sap Buapitinos aiojoq PUR BDIGWIOD Qi SN MY 1 ARIBA O) BOT BG1 MEAA OF JOQUILNY
i!aggghggigaiigabgﬂa!%gvoﬁ—I&aat!uﬁ%-{

19axs Baio '3 g5z ™

"OU| "UCHIUISUOD BPBASN BIDIG " wrewrmwmss may
WO RULIOJUN JUMANIRIIGEI S

SLIESITE o8 g0 prrasils way

o oaed S ot o3 e s o g | S 0SS OUMI Pue seunfuj pajejsy-yiom jo Aieununs
B o1 0Z sz04 T s s sty S e St ey 0 #2390 troazno 0 O0C UWUOS S, ¥HSO




@ B o & @& W Iw.-lwuiaoc; ] m, = “.“.....,....ﬁ.,. R dup oA J— h‘rﬂﬁ%!!ﬂ”ﬁhﬁ*i&'ﬂiﬂ!bli{hmﬁ
i H m .c,hm_.:tmn_wﬂgﬂ\ f\,.,..u..._,.___ .._ i Nﬂ T g ERSE— o sy ani ) N ARG [1YYC) (Arts SIS v Adrplup 3 ACTEE BEEECGAS - S S ¢ Meeder
BHid!q T e LT T L T T AT T e e
1 4 . L _ _ E LY | -p UL o Dt
"¢ 0 0 00 9 ¥z ir : ¥ t 0 4 =moieles
oy oy T : —  an— g —
DIIIII - . J PR B : ==
DIIDIID = - J I I 0 ; =)
— — i .} —_
DIIOVI T 0 0 D ; ]
; — — " s s —_
JIIII0 == J 00 2 i , [wwen]
DIIII® - J® D ) “s01wy6u vo py soyuew paddolg ausqor Ty i Jesoqe foi, spelg | ofmwa)
J 8 ey J L)} J. J  esseuobu uens yay xogieab Buyn Bueisny g /5 1010 BUOY UIURLY G
. ) 8ol 'iadg  pleuoy ‘uipuely  G[wemy]
GdIIII® e J J 8 ) eae uiosB u weds iy prejoq Bumyn apsqof |m|,__.|qu. Jo1essdo Aaugar ‘juay b [eea]
DIIII @ o L ® J L) etwa pwas o Bunes smym 1oeg oy s e sysqor |_..!s..ﬂ oesadpy auabng ‘sauor ImE
DIIIIe ® D J D onmwompinobumes sam umas sou SAOr ‘gz !y sesoqe]  wemag ‘mienBoN  z{ween)
DI DJ)@ “wgg v J ® L o sebuy wepen i ot uowesson osop wd o ausqor gz/p  owewoen maipuy ‘Ueols 1]
W & ® W W o ) " w () o
R I O e et T
. w Wl ¥ pamymy . - -!I:u_uwh-r.u.ll!-_l..f . - O .
sqngies gy} ” 2 -
rowoumy o adis sue seseuo SERA Sk s iy Inl3 104) iﬂ?«“!ti‘hlﬂ”ﬂ e.nu..u.h..u-ﬂ.ﬂnuﬂ-h..h :-».I.Hu.ln ?In._..__im_ L A ELL L B WY

2o wampse Lnfi, i 130003 \.Ili-l‘ihal!u-h-u

48) IO SLAUST LI NI UG P @

ACT YI0I L) X5Q THO ATND 12TTAS
asea oy Apssepn

AN

DU] 'UDEONASUGT) EPRADN BLBIG T T

BA11T1 T AR posankds many

spedg ©

3

wvossod ayy Kuuapy

Ry 1) BORIO WHST) AECY 1K U0 "IOUENGORI S DRI B JONKgs it Jou 1,004 3 W0y SRS 10 PR St 20 k] (8o

0 Uiy Jommariind 20 (0F UI03 YHSOY PO KD SEoug Jus Ly o $0phuod fs NOA "0 PRaU 0§ S2wD afurs & J0y SOUY OM] N OF BRI} 8 1 POB1 YBNON]

G'POSE MR kD) B2 L2 PRITY SUORO BuguOruis Jgoad il J0 L 00T MR STEEPING (48 SEUNLT DORIRI-ICH QUM CIPE Hoy 130/, TRUORIHAT BAPD LR Ptiady
Bi-kgsligigggi‘uIa» P IR PROKG MAITSGT MR S IO Ay Lane siap e

90/.20 AJABI8 30 DT STUTRODEUD JO EEOF SBAKALY F SOOI 10 Ak Suyapm) 110ms AISD IO DR 1R DOV xi A [P LRSS [INCORS D RO,

20QE7 jO Juscradeg Sy

gl 0cZ e84

0 ‘sasodind yyeoy pue Gayes |evogednooo
wenxe o o e o AIFRpLIPGUEO BI ERalad
1B1) JBUUR B U] PESN 8 IS pUB YRay aakoihwe
1 Suneres LORRULOILY SUIFIED ULy S SuonRUENY

"ARpdoxide S0 ER-ne o pauAEIBal B ULy My
e T Eoxidx m eones ot 3 sossoaujy] pue salniuj
PUR $ptat) Wioj indes aun o1y adA3 LD nok *Hususioop JOd
LSRRG, e 0eped Budemninicoar kY W RO} S SENE3g
I BARS DU LLO) S o nduy ad e nop tejon

paje|ay-yiom jo 6oy

trooznio w8 ANe LLIOS S,YHSO



OG0 N O g paepEes o) e o o] 70T K ey

‘A ey Mafimpdeec) DOT ‘YN T TRANEY Rty ilaogiﬂillulnsiiuilli_illtiilllilaiiiuﬂa
A wane il g ot 0 PS4 pumim 3 wieP I3 SEOrEE BeERLIAI] ¥ WATRO{IGS Sy Of pauden: 0y PONRDA] 10U AN VIR WO % WiReg ) Al p T
— T 1 PP Ry o e P Timer ‘SRS S AT o) ) Bupapey ‘sewsden 104 iy 05 Sfass oy oW 5 ald TP 05 g oprwdes gy
mdupeses. - ) S 4G PO Seid s Buymogoy reek Bp jo OF Radv B L Krensgey woy sled Kmanans spp 1904
27 1eg /] ™1 UPHO 55§ 5L W o FRIIC[T IR0 [TV {5) o swomIpood Aropendsay (g}
opiL Sl Kwdoon
A Jdd“uﬂ‘.ﬁU' 0 %07 3wy () 0 toplofip TS (z)
“Rdmos pus ‘apumass ‘ann am (500 % odpaMouy Ao d %) Rum(i] (1)
301539 9 01 1) PUR JDAWN0P £ PUITINLT AN ] Gy ATLRO | 0 Aogose z o
Uy § uf yusa L¥m JrTmRoop ) Sapipeey dfemacmy T IO Bquing (Wo],
" I
7904 yre] weafordus i T L
L1GZBE ™4m ™ 49 poysoss 4oy e, 0 b0
061 eA0don Jo Bqtomm affenas nwTyY 8¢
(2minen o1 23Dd BBt dags w0 j2ITYIOM ToNMNSA 10 IgjsTen XI0M TIOL] AR
3 395 'saundyf 5oty sucxf Luop nod [} voRSuLiopy el opdary qof JoeAep o Jaqumn mo| 24%p Jo saqumu oy,
st o e e o L anmm ]
w0 w} w (] )}
oL 0 2 0 0
(128 *¥73) naomy ) (O{S) SOpgRI [ papong Fareo UURmEL 3w mog Awen
IR0 B 10 Ry qol Qe SA¥P Q. sareD Feap
uojongsuos Jo Bqune o). BIFED JO 12w W0, J0 RGN Mo]. Jo lsqunn Qo]
i g L o
i
[ieveg™  an™* eyedg P
Pang LK SEOL)
1904g Beug i1se3 5507 1% SUOMAGK] 338008 81 11O SYEIOP 6HLN; 10f ‘o BUCSYI00G! 8, YHSO U TE POSL Hec] H-10 67 005 Waeanbe By 10 408 iy YHSO 6 0y
SVE08 DO ARy OGIW ABYY .gegssmsbmsmo-sisaozitzagzggiaui ‘sealodtule Jeuwny ‘veaiomiis
JU[ "UOBONISUOYD) BPBASN BLIGIG ™ Moummwys sy «'Ou SN FOCR0 OU poL{ NOA §| ‘507 0 J0 eBad Aons
HOREUUORY JISUKMSITRIsT :E.%:E:...Bﬁ!iﬂaisslie:a!tﬁn.‘Saiﬁlh%neaxiit!g!&sﬁs&ﬁpt:
Amring s Bugepiiiog Xpeq 008 DUB &OEILND 38 ReLIL 84 Jagy Ausaa 0y Boy ey) meias o) Jeque
!-sgsegoibg%ggag.&i&amginggsvghilbg%
elum s anopedbemy e o .. ..
ety WA e Lagey ke —— ,
‘ISpRSH 30d 8qopy eel oy Dusan ol gane
20G%] jo yseun medeg gy n:i:eieﬁ.nbfjha Euuo._m_. uucuu M@ﬂﬂ@-ﬂnn pue ﬂﬂ.::.ﬁ:- Buﬂ-ﬂ“&-&@g JO bﬂsgm
Gl 0c¢ 4B : ﬂgmhlggﬂi!lhcwaﬁﬁuﬂw apon (ro0z/10-Ao)
A V00€ ulioH s,yHSO




6 0D 0 0 0O 2 % 0 4 ) 0 o oo efag
Q00000 == O O 0 O e ~ =
000000~~~ O O 0O O = T
000000~ =" O O 0 O = T
000000~ =~ O O 0 O = T )
Q00000 =" O O 0O O e —
000000 = =" 0O 0O 0O O = N
000000 =~~~ O 0O 0 O e ~ @
000000~ =" O O 0 0 ~=tfees ~ )
O0000® = =" O @ O O nmweessve s v rral— =

- YO0 DRIy Gl POPRO) B we —iemn -
mwmwww 5] o0 m.,u ﬂ m w Tmm———— et o =

T B oSS mEmnrrmmy v (s oo

—— iin“,,w:m Tl i ...mm ey~ SRR

Ol “UORDNSUOD BPEASN BLUBIS

SLIOAIET v Gpp0 pesanbls mmy
L m e een g

PRSPV,

Wiy pew Segug
HOr] Jo preunyiedeg )

sessaujj] pue seunfiy
poejay-yiom jo Bo
w0 00 ULIO S, YHSO



Provide the following for the firm listed in Section V the following (attach additional sheets as
necessary):

Workers' compensation Experience Modification Rate (EMR) for the last 5 years:
YEAR

2019 EMR g2
YEAR 2018 EMR 62
YEAR 2017 EMR .68
YEAR 2016 EMR .72
YEAR 2015 EMR 85

Total Recordable Frequency Rate (TRFR) for the last 5 years:

YEAR 2019 TRFR 204
YEAR 2018 TRFR 284
YEAR 2017 TRFR 1.14
YEAR 2016 TRFR ~2.61
YEAR 2015 TRFR ~1.0Z

|
|

Total number of man-hours worked for the last 5 Years:

YEAR 2019 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 588718
YEAR 2018 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-IIOURS 563929
YEAR 2017 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS  524.412
YEAR 2016 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 459,438
YEAR 2015 TOTAL NUMBER OF MAN-HOURS 392,511

Provide Contractor's Days Away from Worl, Days of Restricted Work Activity or Job Transfer
(DARTY) incidence rate for the particular industry or type of Work to be performed by
Contractor (and each of Contractor's proposed Subcontractors and Suppliers) for the last 5
years:

YEAR

2019 DART _3 (4
YEAR 2018 DART 1,77
YEAR _2017 DART 0.76_
YEAR 2016 DART 2.18
YEAR 2015 DART 1.02

EJCDC" C-451, Qualifications Statement Schedules,
Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Enginearing Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Page 6ol 10




CHEREBY CELRHEY THAT T INFORMATION SUBNITUTED HEREWLIL INCLUDING ANY
ATEACHMENTS OIS TRUE TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWTEDGE AND B

NOTPARY ATTESNT: bwmpﬂi—-

SUBSCRIBLED AND SWORN 1O BEFORI: ML

NAME O ORGANIZATION: Sicrr;aycvadJj,’gusu;tlcli_un, ing.

By —f( //_Zl_é"

(Htk  Kevin L Robertson, Presudent

DATED. _Noyember 4, 2020

DARCIA A TAHPFNTER

'_ Notary PP ibiic - S1ate -4 Novada
[/ Appostimiert Hor ot o Naymoe Conty
No 96-3487.2 - Bapures Auy 1, 2023

s Ath DAY QF November I {21 4

NOUARY PUBLIC - STATE OF Nevada

COUNTY O Washoe

MY CONMISSION EXPIRES_August 1, 2023

REQUIRLD AT IACHMENTS

[

Seledule A (Current Baperiencee)

Sehiedule B iPresious Psperience)

Lvidence of authority tor adividuals hated in Seetion 6 1o bind orginmization o an agreement
Resumes of officers and hey andisadials giciading Satets Officert of firm named in Section |
Reyuired sadety progeam submittals sted in Section 12

Aadditional dems as peirtinent.

LJCUCT Casl, Qualitiwatiuns Statement Schedules
Copynght 1) 2013 Natiunsl Sucicty of Frolessional Engineers, American Councd of Enginecring Compamdes,
and American Sooety of Civil Engineers Al rghts neserved

Page J ol 10




ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS
| OF
SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION, INC.
MARCH 2, 2020

The undersigned, being all the dircctors and shareholders of Sierra Nevada Construction,
Inc., a Nevada corporation (the “Corporation™), do hereby unanimously approve, adopt, make,
ratify and confirm the following:

-WHEREAS, Kevin L, Robertson acts in the capacity of President, Craig D. Holt acts in
the capacity of Vice President, and Marc T. Markwell acts in the capacity of Treasuret, Chief
Financial Officer, and Secretary of Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

WHEREAS, Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt, and Marc Markwell as officers of this
Corporation may be required from time to time to execute agreements on behalf of Sierra
Nevada Construction, Inc.

NOW THEREFORE, the undersigned directors and shareholders of Sierra Nevada
Construction, Inc., resolve as follows:

RESQLVED, that the following individuals are appointed to service as officers of the
Corporation in the specified capacities:

Kevin L., Robertson President
Craig D. Holt Vice President
Marc T. Markwell Chief Financial Officer/Secretary/Treasurer

RESOLVED, that Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt and Marc T. Markwell as officers
of this Corporation are authorized to execute agreements into, between or among Sierra Nevada
Construction, Inc., and third parties without further authorization from the directors and/or
sharcholders,

and, further

RESOLVED, that Kevin L. Robertson, Craig D. Holt and Mare T. Markwell in their
capacities as officers of this Corporation are authorized to take all necessary and appropriate
steps on behalf of the Corporation to effectuate the proposed amendments to the Articles of
Incorporation and the Bylaws of the Corporation.




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the directors and shareholders have executed this instrument
effective March 2, 2020,

Dj:d/O's: Shareholders:;

Kevin L. Robertson Kevin I.. Robertson

Craig D. Holt Craig D. Holt




Resume Kevin L. Robertson

President

Project Experience

» Siera Nevada Censtruction, Inc.
President ~ Oversees all operations, estimating, and construction
2001-Present

» Granite Construction Company - Nevada Operations
Area Manager/ Chief Estimator/ Project Manager / Field Engineer
1993-2001

Notable Projects
» Firecreek Crossing Bridge - $4 million
> Sodalite Road - $2.8 million
> Spooner Summit - $9 million

Education

Bachelor of Science in Construction Management

Califomia Polytechnic State University, San Luis Obispo, Califomia
Certifications

Shoring/ Excavation

Confined Spaces
Traffic Control (ATSSA - 8 hour course)



Resume Craig D. Holt
Vice President

Project Experience

¢ Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc,

Vice President — Oversees CFO and all Superintendents and field operations.

2001-Present

» Granite Construction Company — Nevada Operations

Controller
1998-2001

» Granite Construction Company — Sacramento Qperations
Project Engineer

Oroville Airport Runway Project
1994-1998

Education

Bachelor of Science in Business Management, Minor in Mathematics
Loyola Marymount University, Los Angeles California

Cortlfications
Shoring/ Excavation

Confined Spaces
Traffic Control (ATSSA - 8 hour course)



Resume Marc T. Markwell
Secretary/Treasurer

Project Experience

s Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.
Vice President /Secretary

2012-Present

e Sierra Nevada Corporation
Corporate Properties Manager

2008-2012

e Dermody Properties/DP Partners
Development Manager/Partner
2004-2009

» Grapite Construction Company ~ Nevada Operations
Business Manager
2001-2004

e Granite Construction Company ~ Nevada QOperations
Project Manager

1999-2001
Education

Doctor of Jurisprudence ~McGeorge School of Law
B.S. of Civil Engineering — University of Nevada, Reno

Certifications
LEED ~ Accredited Professional

Nevada Bar Association
California Bar Association



Resume Jeremiah Merritt
Safety & Risk Director

Project Experience

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.
Safety & Risk Director
2014 — Present

Granite Construction Company — California Operations
Regional Safety Manager

2000 - 2014

Notable Projects

* [-5 Elk Grove - $59M
o 17.2 Mile Pavement Rehabilitation, PCC slab replacement, HMA overlay
« [-80 Colfax - $44M
o Bridge, shoulder work, barrier wall, drainage and AC overlay
* Hwy 20 Widening - $33M
o Two box girder bridges, stream diversion, excavations, blasting, AC
paving
= SR 99 Atwater - $33M
o Highway realignment adding HOV lanes

Education

Bachelor of Science in Occupational Safety and Health
Montana Tech, The University of Montana

Butte, MT

Certifications
OSHA 30 Excavation and Trenching
STOP Forklift Trainer
MSHA Leadership Development
Confined Spaces Fall Protection

ATSSA Supervisor Course First Aid/CPR/AED



Resume Dan LeBlanc
Vice-President of Civil Construction

Project Experience

» Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc,
Vice President - Nevada Construction- Assists the management team with job set-up, cost
tracking, material acquisition and delivery, and field needs.

2005-Present

Notable Projects

American Valve Company — Sitework Project - 1.8 Million
Casazza Drive Kirman Avenue Reconstruct — 2 Million
Reno-Stead Taxiway Upgrades — 2 Million

Caltrans Highway 49 Roadway Widening 1 - Million

City of Reno Unit #1 - 2 Million

VVVYVYYVY

o Kigwit Pacific
Glenn-Parks Interchange Wasilla, Alaska - 45 Million
Project Engineer Intern
June 2004- September 2004

Education

Bachelor of Science in Construction Engineering Management
Oregon State University

Certifications
Caltrans 24 Hour Storm Water Training

Confined Space Training
OHSA 10 Certification



STATE ot NEVADA

Storey Counts Business 1icensing B K nty of
P O Box 526 3y Tountp o Storep

Virginia City NV 89440 Business Licell.Se

SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION

HOLT, CRAIG

P.O. BOX 50760 Located: OUT-OF-COUNTY
SPARKS NV 89435 0760

Issue Date 6/02/20 Class € License ¥ 11-8287

SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION. having paid the required Storey County business license
fee(s) in the amount of $ 100.00 v hereby granted permission o transact business

under this CONTRACTOR license for the period 7/01720 through 6:30/21 in

conformance with and subject to the County Commissioners of Storey County, Nevada.

Conditions.

Fensnedosr VIt lopr = s Comn faesnn € orpa: ko Vit 0 brevivdor = 0 jgsanen Lo ket T
. Fie Mol

Please Post in Conspicuous Place

Nooom: - Q15918
NONTRANSFERABLE

t775) 8470900 - Fan (775 R47.0035 bushic ¢ storey county org




SETI ROBER [
Al MRSt

SRS NE AL CONSTRUN TION INC

Licensen since Juiy On 194n

0025565

A General b agener oy

Uetlitonted
W32
AY]
PO
- PR
R s
N * [
P BN
. U
wt :"ﬁ-}w/«
AL VR
Yoae




NEVADA STATE BUSINESS LICENSE
SIERRA NEVADA CONSTRUCTION, INC.

Nevada Business Identification # NV19881009372
Expiration Date: 03:31/2021

In accordanee with Tide 7 of Nevadu Revised stattes, pursaant to proper appheation duly filed and
Paytient of apprapriare preseribed fees, the above named s bereby granted a Nevada State Business
Licerse o busmess activiies conducted withi the State of Nevada,

Viahd unti the expiaton date Bisied vinless stispended. revoked o cancelled waccoidance with ihe
provistens i esada Revised Stetutes - Lvense os not transterable and ~ not i Beu of e docal ausiess
lieense. permit or regisiration

License must be cancelled on or before its expiration date il business activity ceases. Failure to do
so will result in late fees or penalties which, by law, cannot be waived

IN WHINESS WHEREOE | have hercunto set oy
hand and affixed the Great Seat ol Stte. at
efftce on 01 O6 2020

Certiicate Number B20O200: 00488634

! You may verty this certificate BARBARA K CLGAVSKI
t

¢ - —; - e — . 7L7-7;( @




S.NVC

PC Box 30760
ks My B9435.0740

2055 Evsr Srer Strcer
Sprky M. 89450

775 355 0420
7753550535

25565 LR EES]

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant

PWP-S8T-2020 312
Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada

Bid Date 11/4/2020

Good Faith Effort Documentation



Good Faith Effort

Sterra Nevada Construction, Inc.

Table of Contents

Section A -  List of ltems Made Available
Section B - Publications
Section C -  Bid Solicitation Logs

Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant



Section A

List of Items
Made Available



Project Name: GOLOHILL.  TREAT MENT

CATEGORY CODES
LANT Bid Date: /¢ '-?,@ 2020

VA0

Please check applicable boxes to solicit subs/suppliers and return to Martha as soon as possible
SUPPLIERS

*

*

T

w

4%%

Decomposed Granite

Rip Rap

Aggregate Base

Shoulder Backing Matenal
Slurry Seal Product Suppiy
Screenings

Erosion Control Materials
Guard Railings & Barners
Electrical & Signals

Misc. Iron & Steel Frame, Cover & Grate
Reinforcing Steel

Drain Rock

Asphalt

Asphait Oil Supply
Asphaltic Emuision

Crack Sealant

Concrete and Cement
Pavemeant Markers

Pipe

Fencing

Filter Fabnc

QAJ/QC & SURVEY

| [oL.Yo[@

Construction Staking/ Survey
Survey or Historical Monument
TRAFFIC CONTRCL. SYSTEM
Construction Area Signs
Traffic Control System
Portable Changeable Message Signs
EXISTING HIGHWAY FACILITIES
Cold Plane Asphait Concrete
Replace AC Surfacing
Remave or Modify Bridge Item
Pulverize AC

Remove AC Dike
EARTHWORK/GRADING
Roadway Excavation

Import Borrow

Clearing and Grubbing

Tree Removal

Finish Grading

Aggregale Base

Structural Excavation & Backfill
Embankment Construction
Place Shoulder Backing

EROSION CONTROL & HIGHWAY PLANTING

Highway Planting

Temporary Erosion Control
Landscape & [rrigation
Hydroseeding

Rock Slope Protection
Concreted-Rock Slope Protection

ASPHALT CONCRETE

Profile Grinding

Penetration Treatment and Prime Coat
Seal Coat

Slurry Seal

Micro-Surfacing

Crack Treatment

Place Screenings

Cold-in-Place Recycling

Cold Foam in-Place Recycling

Asphalt Paving

Pavement Reinforcing Fabric

Place Asphalt Concrete Dike & Misc
Shoulder Rumble Strip

Groove and Grind Pavement

Recycle. Reclaim Asphalt Concrete
CONCRETE FLATWORK

Concrete Curb and Sidewalk

Portland Cement Caoncrete Pavement
Clean & Seal Pavement Joints - Rout & Seal - Cracks
CONCRETE STRUCTURAL

Concrete Structure S LR

Minor Concrete Structure

Concrete Block & Masonry Retaining Wall
Sound Wall (Masonry Block - Concrete)
RAILING, BARRIER & FENCE

Metal Beam Guard Railing

Metal Railing

Metal Beam Barrier

Concrete Barrier

Fencing/ Railing

TRAFFIC STRIPES & PAVEMENT MARKING
Remaove Pavement Markings
Thermoplastic Traffic Stripe 8 Marking
Guide Posts

Object Markers

Pavement Markers

Pavement Marking

Painted Traffic Sinpe & Marking
SIGNS

Sign Structure

Roadside Sign

(OVER) X



PIPE
X _|Reinforced Concrete Pipe
Jacked Reinforced Concrete Pipe
Corrugated Metal Pipe (CMP)
Jacked Corrugated Steel Pipe
HDPE Pipe
X |PVC Pipe
" |Corrugated Steel Pipe Inlet & Riser
Pipe Appurtenances
Precast Drop Inlets -~
L |Precast Concrete Manhole ~ Y AULT 2>
PUMPING PLANT EQUIPMENT
Drainage Pumping Equipment
Sewer By-Pass Pumping Equipment
ELECTRICAL ,SIGNAL & LIGHTING
~~ |Etectrical
Message Signs, Lighting & Sign lltumination
Lighting
Signal
Loop Detector
Noise Monitoring
Traffic Count Station
Traffic Menitoring Station
Speed Monitoring Station
Ramp Metering System
Maintaining Existing Traffic Management System
Elements During Construction
CONSULTANTS, ARCHITECTS & ENGINEERS
Environmentat Engineer/ SWPP/ WPCP
Lead Comphiance Plan
TRUCKING
Bottomn Dump Trucking
Truck Rental/ Broker
Trucker
Water Truck Rental
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION
Building Construction
Masonry
MISC. CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
AC & Concrete Cutting
Adjust Utilities to Grade
Sandblasting
Jack & Bore
= |Sweeping
Concrete Pumping
Heavy Equipmeni Rental
Demalition
OTHER - ADD ONS

X 1 ScApa
1
1

All bid items are available and when practical. will
[ )be spiit apart to assist in bidding

»

WA P Y A3




Section B

Publications



Focus Journal Ad

Publication: DBE GoodF aith (DBEGoocdFaith.com)

Published On: 10/14/2020 @ 04.23:04 PM Pacific

Expired On: 11/04/2020 @ 11:59:59 PM Pacific

Message Notifications Sent To: mmedina@snc.biz

Published At: https.//dbegoodtaith.comvitem.php?item_type=ads&ad_adid=49383

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.
SNC Is seeking quahfied DBEs

Geld Hill Package Treatment Plant )
Get in Touch

PWP-ST-2020-312
Martha Medina

Storey County

Mike Rooley
Gold HIlll, Storey County, NV

(775) 355-0420
11/04/2020 at 10:00

(775) 355-0535
We are soliclting material/ suppller quotes for: Rip Rap;
Aggregate Base; Erosion Control Materials; Electrical;
Asphalt; Asphatt Oil Supply; Concrete and Cement; and Plpe. P.0. Box 50760
We are soliciting subcontractor quotes for: QA/QC; Sparks, NV 89435
Construction Staking; Construction Area Signs; Traffic
Control System; Roadway Excavation; Aggregate Base
Placement; Temparary Erosion Control; Rock Slope
Protection; Asphall Paving; Concrete Structure{Building

Slab); Fencing; Reinforced Concrete Pipe; PVC Pipe; Precast
Concrete Manhole & Vault; Electrical; SCADA; Environmental
Engineer/ SWPPP/WPCP; Building Construction; Sweeping;
Bottom Dump Trucking; Truck Rental/ Broker; and Water
Truck Rental.

SNC Is a unlon signatory contractor and Is an equal opportunity employer. We will require that ali
particlpating companles carry Warkers' Compensation & Llability Insurance and be bonded. We will
assisl with obtaining Insurance, bonds or lines of credit, equipment, supplies or materials necessary
to participate in this project. Plans & specifications are available for viewing at our offices or maybe
available on-line.

Page I Ad Proots - Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant...



How to get in touch
Martha Medlina

Mike Rooley

(775) 355-0420

(775) 355-0535

P.O. Box 50760
Sparks, NV 89435

Send a message

Page Hi Ad Proots - Gold Hill Package Trealment Plant..



Trade Journal Ad

Publication: DBE Journal (DBEJournal.com)

Published On: 10/14/2020 @ 04:23:04 PM Pacific

Expired On: 11/04/2020 @ 11:59:59 PM Pacific

Published At:

http//dbejournal. com/index.php?show_ad=493838ad _project_name=Gold+Hill+Package +Treatment+Plant&co_namesSierra+Neva
da+Construction¥:2C+Inc.

SNC Sierra Nevada Construction,

Qutreach Coordinator I nc -
Martha Medina is seeking qualified DBEs
Estimator
Mike Rocley
Project Name

Contact Information

P.O. Box 50760
Sparks, NV 89435

Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant

Bid/Contract #
Telephone PWP-ST-2020-312

(775) 355-0420
Awarding Agency

Fax Storey County
(775) 355-0535

Proyect Location
Gold Hilt, Storey County, NV

Bid Date
11/04/2020 at 10:00

Project Details

We are soliciting material/ supplier quotes for: Rip Rap; Aggregate Base;
Erosion Control Matenials; Electrical; Asphall; Asphalt Qil Supply; Concrete
and Cement; and Pipe. We are soliciting subcontractor quotes for: QA/QC;
Construction Staking; Construction Area Signs; Tratfic Control System;
Roadway Excavation; Aggregate Base Placement; Temporary Erosion
Control; Rock Slope Protection; Asphalt Paving; Concrete Structure{Building
Slab); Fencing; Reinforced Concrete Pipe; PVC Pipe; Precast Concrete
Manhole & Vaul; Electrical; SCADA; Environmental Engineer/
SWPPP/WPCP: Building Construction; Sweeping; Bottom Dump Trucking:
Truck Rantal/ Broker; and Water Truck Rental.

SNC is a union signatory contractor and 1s an equal opportunity employer. We
will require that all participating companies carry Workers' Compensation &
Liability insurance and be bongdad. We will assist with obtaining insurance,
bonds or lines of credit, equipment, supplies or materials necessary to
participata in this project. Plans & specifications are avaifable tor viewing at
our offices or maybe available on-line.

Page IV Ad Proots - Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant._..



Tweet

Publigshed On: 10/14/2020 @ 04.24:03 PM Pacific

Published At: htips:/twitter.com/dbagoodtaith/status/1316520171394 170881

PLEASE NOTE - The image below is a representation of what your tweet may look like. The appearance of your twea! can vary
dapending on a varety of factors, including the type of device the tweet is displayed on and Twitler's infernal settings. For a real-
time copy of your tweel, please use the link provided abova to view on Twitter.com & prnt the screen from your browser. You do not
nead a Twitter account to view or print this tweel.

lB DBEGoodFaith.com ( Follow ,

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. is seeking
DBEs in Gold Hi ...
dbegoodfaith.com/item.php?item ...

Page V Ad Proofs - Gold Hill Package Treaiment Plant...



10/19/2020 Nevada Department of Transportation

| Return To List

SUBJECT REQUEST FOR SUB-QUOTES FROM CERTIFIED DBE/WBE SUBCONTRACTORS & SUPPLIERS Gold Hill
Package Treatment Plant PW No. 5T-2020-312 Gold Hill, Storey County, NV

ORGANIZATION  Nevada Department of Transportation
POSTED 10/19/2020

Slerra Nevada Construction, Inc.

PO Box 50760, Sparks, NV 89435
Phone (775) 355-0420 Fax (775) 355-0535
REQUEST FOR SUB-QUOTES FROM CERTIFIED
DBE/WBE SUBCONTRACTORS & SUPPLIERS
Gold Hill Package Treatment Plant
PW No. §T-2020-312

Goid HIIl, Storey County, NV

Owner; Storey County

Scope of Work: Site improvements for wastewater treatment plant
Bld Date: Wednesday November 4, 2020 at 10:00 AM

Seeking material suppliers for the following : Rip Rap; Aggregate Base; Erosion Control Materials; Electrical; Asphalt;
Asphalt Oil Supply; Concrete and Cement; and Pipe.

Seeking subcontractors for the following: QA/QC; Construction Staking; Construction Area Signs; Traffic Control System;
Roadway Excavation; Aggregate Base Placement; Temporary Erosion Control; Rock Slope Protection; Asphah Paving Concrete
Structure{Building Slab), Fencing; Reinforced Concrete Pipe; PVC Pipe; Precast Concrete Manhole & Vault; Electrical; SCADA;
Environmental Engineer/ SWPPP/WPCP; Building Construction; Sweeping; Bottom Dump Trucking; Truck Rentalf Broker; and
Water Truck Rental. All bid items are available and when practical, will be split apart to assist in bidding.

Estimator contact: Mike Rooley Emaik; mrooley@snc.biz

SNC s a union signatory contractor and is an equal opportunity employer. We will require that all participating companies
carry Workers' Compensation & Liability insurance and be bonded. We will assist with obtaining Insurance, bonds or lines of
credit, equipment, supplies or materials necessary to participate in the project. Plans & specifications are available for viewing
at our offices or available on-line.

hitps:/indot.dbesystem.com/FrontEnd/QuireachSearchPublicDetail.asp?X1D=8298& TN=ndol&0ID=5CEEIEDE 1DCOB4CD7642B 30D 1377CB0ESTIAS... 14



Section C

Bid Solicitations

Telephone Logs
Email/ Fax Transaction Log



‘pepioses-aid aie sjjed oN “erdoed el AQ peuuoped 8ie S|[B |

‘apew oq sidwene 1eyo
ou Jeyl sisenbe teales [1ews s ue1deds) syl Woy esuadse) oyl INun SHEWe Joaliop A|In)sseaons o) sidwene WaSAS UCHBINIS 8Y] «

‘apew s Jdwehe | Auo ||BD ey} SIemSte
uewINy B J| |[ea ey} Jamsue Jou secp uewny e se Bug) se xey e Aienep Ajnjsseoons o) sidweye g o) dn sexew welsAs uogeIijos euj| «

‘walsis BuiBbo) pue uonelIes pelBWOINE S,WoY YIBJPo0DIGQ UBNO0IY! PEXORI) PUE JUSS 2J0M SBXE) PUR S|IBLO Ny »

s|jelaqg Bo1

Aunoy Asi0)g :Aousby Buipiemy

¢1£-0¢0¢-1S-dMd # p!gAdeauod
Jue|d Juswiess] abexoed ||IH PIOY) :awep 199[oid

Bo7 uonenojjog
auoydaja] ¥ ‘xed ‘ylewy

SES0-6SE (524) xey

02¥0-GSE (G24) 181

SEVE8 AN ‘SYEdS

09,06 %08 "O'd

U 'UG{IDNNSUDD BpRABN BLIOIS



“Weld lusugess| abexorg H poo - G0 uonEoog

| efed

38Q :ve)

WO SNDONIST@IAHDIA

‘PONPOYDS Jed puz ON 1Z 1B 2¥29E2EG/ L Xey

SY2LEZESLL WL

"INy S XOQU |BLWsOloA 8y ) "slonb B Bugliugns peuado pe|red #0268 AN 'AITIVA JOHSYM

Ul pejsesei ere Asy) Jeyleym uLIYLCS O] SlqeUn 1Sd We 00:80 18d we £0:60 ¥ LINN ‘N S6E AVMHDIH SN 06t

- IN} IFBWBAOA - 1 Sd wd £Z:60 @ 0Z02/91/01 1 I1eD 0202/51/01 0202/51/01 ONI SNOILNTTIOS BNIATING

38Q ‘48D

WOD SHOLDALOHdLTYHISY@EYNAOJE

£26£.28G// Xe

"POINPALYDS e Puz of ‘T NED 999G/285/L 81

peuedr) Inyssacong 90568 AN 'ON3Y

‘pefoxd sy 104 sjonb B Bugwugns 1Sd we poig0 15d we 1080 1336 1S NOSHIANY LNNOW 0LOPL

Jou ‘oN - uosiiiy - L5d wd 92:£0 & 0g0Z/9L/01 1 IIED 0202/51/01 0Z0/S O *ONI 'SHOLDALOHd LTYHISY

390 :ueD

WOD COHYADIEONITYISYVY

¥989/€£6// xeq

"peINpeyos |jea puz oj 2 118D SIPISPISLL BL

pelanjeg peiied 21568 AN ‘ON3H

“wefaud sy o) ejonb & Bunywans 1Sd we 0080 15d We £0:80 5624 X08 Od

10U 'ON - J0TRWAST - | Sd wd §Z:£0 @ 0202/91L/01 1 8D 0202/ 170} 0202/51/01 *ONI DNMVYAS LTYHISY NYDIHINY TV

3849 e

WO TIVHO@DTT ILIHONOD LS3d

pelIsn euoN ‘xB

"POINPOLOS 120 puZ o T |1%D 6589¥PSSLL JI8],

peued() EEYER AN ‘AQTIVA NNS

Walosd sy} 10} slonb e Butuwgns jou 1Sd we g0:80 L0 HOLdINDS 2945

‘oN - i1sjuondecey - 1Sd wd vZ:£0 @ 0202/94/0) 1L HED 0202/54/01 BA 071 DONIdVISANYY ® JLTHINOD +V

380 veD

"POINPEYIS Ifea puz op Z 11eD WO IOVBZONIAVAIY

L6V 158G, Xeg

Sinep C6FLLSRSLL 0L

peloud By Jfe Lum (18LS010A & o] “ajonb B Bunywgns paiengeq [nysseasng L2668 AN 'ON3Y

U pelseselu) 8rB ABL 16UIBLUM LUYLOO O} BjgeL} 1Sd We 00:g0 1sd uwe L0:80 TIvdL IDIOHIHD 06F1

- ewesioA - 1Sd wd €2:50 @ 02091/01 1 HED 0202/51/0L 0202/51/01 ONIAYI "R Y
snes Aeaeq 3 smmg Aroajeq 3

siimeq 118D 9)8( pueg |jeury eju( pueg xeJ Aueduwiod



“Eld Wewiead | ebmpord JIH pioo - S0 uonedies

111 efe4

"PEINPAYIS Ifed PUg ON :Z HED

‘PABUUSSID S1equnu euoyd ey ‘elonb e Bugywgns
Ul PeISeIgIUl e ABUL JOUIOYM ULIYLGCS ©) BiqeUl)
- pedeuuods|] - 1Sd wd pE:e0 @ 0202/91L/04 L NeD

"POINPOLDS ||BO PUZ ON T 118D

‘s|elep

alord eyl He L (IEWedioA B 38 "slonb e Bumuugns
Ul pejsaselul ede A8L) JGLIeUM LLIYUOD O] 8|qeur)

- leWaoIoA - 1S4 wd eE:20 @ 0202/9 1701 <1 €D

"POINPBYIS ||BD pug ON *Z 118D

‘S|relep

weloid ay) (e yiwm rewesioa e Yo "ejonb e Bujwans
Ul pajseleiul ae ABU) JBLRSUM ULIJUOD O} BKTEUN

- IBWBMOA - 1S4 wd LEB0 & 0Z02/91/01 1L 118D

POINPBYIS (|82 puZ ON :Z |18

‘efoxd siy sop elonb B Buniwgns
1ou ‘oN - Uyor - 1Sd wd 0€:£0 @ 020/91/0L JLIIRD

‘PBINPOLOS |[BD PuZ ON :Z 118D

‘syeiep

106l0.d 8y} |1e yum [rewedca B Jeop -slonb  Bunuwans
Ul paISOIBIUI B1E ABY)] JOLRSUM LIYUOD O} S1qBUN

- RWedIoA - 1Sd wd g2:60 @ 0Z02/94/0L L 1D

paJaAleq
1S5d we p0:80
0202/51/01

peieaieq
1Sd we 00:80

0202/51/01

peuado
15d We 00:80
0202/S 104

peusdo
1Sd we 00:80
0202/51/01

passAleq
1Sd we 0080
020¢/51/01

pafey
1Sd we /0:60
0202/54/01

pairey
1Sd we g0:80
0202/54/0}

e

B

e

380 ‘ued

WOSTOV@L82VIOHYDQa

+220LL50€6 ey

8850.£450¢85 181

85196 ¥D ‘FOHVL VI HLNOS

WL X08°0O'd

"ONI "ONIAVd ¥ DNLLVAYOXE VIDHYD NOG

J9a Hwed

WOD TIVWD@IL LTYINT™
HOBEEYBS/L [Xe
LOBEEYBSLL (8L

20768 AN ‘NOT1vH

826 X08 '0'd

OINIE DNDIONHL NOXIO

38Q ‘w8l

WO IVYWO@LHOJSNVH LA NYINNQ
PBISM BUCN :XE|

SEYLEZESLL 8L

2Et68 AN 'SHHVYS

SEE X0 O d

071 °LHOdSNYHL A 2 d

340 :uen

WO TIVWOBANDNINYI1DDD
PeISr BUON X84

8690Ey8GLL (6L

12568 AN ‘ON3Y

JAIHQ UINWNH SLHI6

971 ‘3JIAHIS DNINVTD OO

38Q ‘ueo

WOD DNIHIINIONINONYIBILNYNIWT
PaIST] BUON :XBY

CIEEOSBGLL (19

L1568 AN 'ON3H

8002 31INS 'JAIEA JLVHOLHOD ONIY 88ts
QLT NDIS3A ANY SNIBIINIONI N B O



“jueg Jusunee)) ebmped 1K plog - 607 uogenxog

Al 8bey

‘PeINPaYDS |[es pUg ON -Z 118

“ajep enp piq 6y} 8iojeq
19A0 )y pues jm Key] -alonb B Juwiqns o} puaju; ey 'se s
- Isjuogdesey - 1 Sd wd 0#:60 @ 0202/91/01 S1 118D

PHINPOYDS |20 pUZ ON -2 LIBD

"elep enp piq
8L ©.0J8q JOAO Y PUSS |Itm ABY) "810ND B GRS O) pueln
Aoy 'sop - LuBD - 1 Sd wd §€:€0 @ 0202/91/01 L 18D

'PBINPOYOS |IED puZ ON 2 HeD

"s|ielep

weloid 8yl e yum FEWBN0A B Yo "e1onb e Buignugns
ut pelseelul ese Aal) JBLIeyYM LIYUCS O] S|qeupn

- (IRWBIOA - 1 Sd wd 9£:£0 @ D202/ L/01 <L 114D

POINPeyYDs |jes puz ON 2 11eD

“pelosd sy Joj elonb e Bugugns Jou
‘ON - 1SIuondesey - 15d wd §E:80 & 0Z0Z/81/01 1 118D

"PeINPaYIS |1eD pug ON T 118D

"paisalelu|
§ Ades m J0jBWIRSE BYJ "8JNS 10U ‘palSelslll 8q
Aeyy - 1siuopdesey - 1Sd wd GE:g0 @ 0Z02/91/01 11 D

paanieq
1Sd We 00:80
0202/51/04

pauedp
15d we 0p:80
0202/51/0}

pelaAieq
1Sd we 00:80
0202/51/01

pessneq
1Sd we 00-80

0202/51401

peounog
1Sd e G080
0202/51/01

[ryssa0Nng
1.5d We 10:80
0202/51/01

B/

INYSSB0aNg
1Sd wWe 10:80
020e/SL/01

Inyssaoong
1Sd We 10:80
0202/51L01

poyed
1S4 We £0°80
020e/51 /01

34Q ‘Hen
L1INIWVEO 19085 LHOJSNYH LN
6EL01E8GLL T xey

cS191eesss el

LEFEE AN 'SHHVIS

Z# A" ONVISI 30I4S S1L9
OTINOUVIHOdSNYHLE BN

384 ‘ved

WOD IVWODBATddNSHILYMNISYELYIHD
pels|] BUCN xey

1900529522 (18

80¥68 AN ‘A3TINY3A

Td HILINIM 9€9 'LHNOD NOITIVLS b221
OM AddNS HALYM NISVE LV3HD

390 ‘ued

WO SIHIHOWOID® 4093

POZEL665LL xed

£9v98126+9 181

£2568 AN ‘'ON3Y

"'HA AHNSXOY 0262

277 ‘SWALSAS NOLLYAHOANI HdHONO3ID

3494 ‘ued

WOD'ANSABNAL

£S29PP920. "Xe4

0SZE¥P920L 1181

2068 AN 'SYD3IA SV HIHON
"JAV 331 HI13d NHOT 0056
“ONI ‘SLSITVIOALS BNIDON3

39Q ‘Hed

WOD ONILLO HINYNAGEOINNYL
LYELESYSL) (XBy

02Er60vSLs (18l

90568 AN ‘ON3Y

HID SNITTO0D S694

OTT ONLLLAD F1IHINOD JINVNAQ



“jueld ueuneer) afexded |iH PoY - Bo uogeldoS

A 8fieg

“PetNpeyds |fea pug oN T [I*D)

‘e

Siyt 18 Syqe|IBAR JOU JBGLUNN "8INS Jou ‘pelsalelul eq KBy

- 8|qe|ieAY 10N - 1Sd wd ¢¥:0 @ 0202/91/01 *1 11¥D

"PaINPByIs |[BD pug oN :Z (%D

‘s|ieep

1etord syl (1B Yum jlBwBdIcA B Y6 “sjonb B Bugywgns
| paISaIeIUl 8Ie Ay Jeylaym uLyLod o) Sgeun

- IeWSNOA - 18d wd £4:€0 & 0202/91/04 4 HRD

"POINPOLIS ||BD PUZ ON ST I1%D

eloud sy 104 ejonb e Buntiwgns
lou ‘oN - sAeq - 1Sd Wd Z¥'E0 & 0202/91/01 11 IeD

"PRINPeYDS |[BD pUZ ON T 1eD

"spelep
120foid ey jje yum Bwasioa B ya -elonb e Bunywgns
W) paiseJselul ue Asy) JSUlayM LWLYLIOD O} Sigeuf)

- rewsoA - 15d wd |#:20 @ 0202/91/01 i1 (18D

"PeINpPaYas [fed puz o T 18D

“1oloid snp Joj ejonb e Bumiwagns

lou ‘o - Aoieq - | Sd Wwd Op:E0 @ 020291701 ©L WD

PeNOND ¥ peusd(

1Sd we 00:80

pasanieq
1Sd we g)'g0

020E/51L/01

peseareq
1Sd We 00:80
0202/51/0}

pasanjeq
LSd we 0080
0202/51/01

peuedo
1Sd we 0080
0202151101

0202/51/0}

pejey
15d we 90:60
0202/51/01

)sseons
1Sd we L080
0202/51/01

Inyssexng
1Sd we 10:80
0202/51/01

e/

Inj5s830Ng
1Sd we 1080
0202/51/01

39Q Hed

WO ONISJIAHISAdIdEHINNGad
€21206.e08 e

$2L20GLE0E 8L

€208 00 'H3ANIA

LS VILNIIVA 'S 1022

*ONI ‘3DIAH3S 3did

349 ‘e

WOD ONIONIHD TIOVNNIEVNILSIYHD
L616/82G/1 "xed

LZ9E2S55LL el

LOSEE AN ‘ONIY

022 31INS '022 ALINS 13FHIS TUH 542
O ONIAOOHS ANY DNIANIHD FNIVNNId

384 ‘Heo

WO ANSASS@&ILSIHHD

L1651 LEESLL IXed

L0601E€SLL (19L

LEPES AN 'SHHVIS

JAY TIVANTTD L661

NDIS ¥ 3gVOHvd

31VLS HIATIS vaa 9177 ‘ONILINSNOD NOLHMON

3aa ‘ueH

WOO 3ANE&OMISY3aINgsn
PoIS BUOy Xe4q

S21648.GLL (0L

20568 AN 'ON3Y

#rivi X08 Od

J71 SH3aAdTINg ON

380 :ueo

WOD TOHLNOJINOISOYIAITIINEVIANYID
909922£8.L xed

SSLLECESLL 8L

21568 AN ‘ONIH

‘LS YdWVL g-56EC

ONI “JTOHLNOD NOISOHR A3 7113



“IUE|d Juswieel) efexoed |IIH Plo - Boq uoueydog

1A ebed

"PEINPBYDS B3 PUZ ON Z ITD

“fing S| xoquy rewesjoa ey elonb e Bupywgns
Ul pajseselu| ale 217 Jayleym UUyuCo o) S|geun
- Iny jrRWSOIOA - 15d wd 92:¢0 @ 0Z0Z/91/04 1 118D

"PeINPeYIs |2 puZ Op T D

‘S|reBep
weloid aup /e yum [BWasI0A B 48] "alonb e Bunywigns
W PaiSaIaIUL QI Aol JOLIBUM ULIYUDD O} BIqRUN

- IeWBOA - 15d ukd 62140 & 0202/91/01 1 119D

PEINPBYIS ([eD PUZ ON ‘T NED

‘emates Bupsmsue ey o)
S|[E18p B [[B @ABD '8INS JOU ‘paISaIaIul Bq ABW - 801AeS

Bupemsuy - 1S4 wd €200 @ 0202/9L/01 i1 18D

‘PRINPOYDS |[BD pug ON =T 118D

‘Joalosd spp 10) eyonb e Bunyiwans
10U ‘ON - Jolewns3 - | Sd wd 1240 @ 0202/94/0) 11 NED

"PaINPaLRS 11BD PUZ ON =T (18D

‘sielep

wefosd e | yum EBWadIoA B Y8 "eyonb e Bunpugns
U1 PBISEISI SJB ABW[l JOLISYM ULIYUDO 0} Blgeul)

- HEWSDN0A, - 1Sd wd 02:+#0 @ 0202/91/01 :1 18D

pesenjeq
1Sd we 00'80

0202/51/01

pesealeq
1Sd we 00:80

0202/541/01

peseateq
1Sd we 00'80
0202/54/04

peusdo
1Sd we 00:80
0202/51/04

peusdQ
1Sd We 00:80
0202/51/01

jryssecong
1Sd we (080
0202/G1/04

|NSS8Ng
1Sd uwe L3:80
0202/64/01

|nyssaaong
1Sd We 1080
020e/51/01

e

B/

380 ¥y

WOJTIYWLOH@&MODAA

L6 16EGBS.L - XBA

¥SeagezsLs (8L

£0568 AN 'ON3Y

ANVH.LS 3HL GizL

ANVdINOD YD-D0 NOLLDNULSNOD 3HL

3890 ‘va)

LAN'X00@SHIMOLSD

22ES28620L 'XBd

6/8608v20. (191

£2168 AN 'SYDIA SV

HA VIJWATO 6421

FONVIIdNOD HILVMWHOLS SHIMOLS

394 ‘Hed

LIANTIVECTIDDESSONIYY ITHIONIHGS
214195852 (XBY

LLL19GESLL S8

60568 AN “ONIH

133HIS HOTAVL M EFL

JNI SHIATING XI3HD ONIULS

38q :ued
WO OHIANIOLYS@MIHANY
PoIS(] BUON :XE-4
00t52esss 18l
20568 AN ‘ON3YH
V 31S 133415 HYSSYA p2e
ONI SINVITNSNOD TVLNINNOMIANT OLVS
380 ‘Hed
WOD ONIHISNOHHIMOJ@NINGY
PeIs(] eucN :xed
66692ESLL 191
90668 AN ‘ON3H
QY SNIDDOD 0625
“ONI NOLLONH1ISNOS ISNOHHIMOd



JuE)d Weuness | ebexord HIH pioD - 607 uoneoloS

Il ebed

"PeINPaLOS (B0 pUE ON ¥ 18D

sgreep
wafoud ay; IE Yum eWeNoA & Ya “sjonb e Bunywans
Ul PalSaJalL; BJE ABY] JELIAUM LLIUCD 0] BIGBUN

- IfreWsdICA - 1Sd Wd EEP0 @ 0202/9L/01 4 118D

"PBINPaYLOS (B3 pug ON Z 118D

spEep

peloud ay) (e yum pewesion e ya sjonb B Buniuqns
Ul paisalelul ede Bl Jeylsym LLILUOD 0) BiqeuN

- IIRWBDIOA - 1Sd WA LE#0 @ 020&/9L/04 1L e

"PEINPSYOS B Pug ON T Wed

‘sieep

woload oy (e UM RWENOA B Yo "sjonb B Bunpwgns
Ul pajsaleul ede ABy] JeUlaym UUuoD 0} a|qeun

- rRwediop - 1Sd Wd 0E:50 @ 0202/91/01 L B3

"PEINPALRS |[BD puzZ ON T 11D

“Apoeip
WSl AQ POIDEIIOS 5 G] 8Yl] PINDAA "84ns jou ‘pajseleiul
aq Aey - JayioY - | Sd wd 62:¥0 & 0Z0Z/91/01 11 118D

POINPAYDS fED pUZ ON 2 118D

‘s|reyop

oejoud syl [le yum pewesioa e Yo "ajonb e Bunywans
Ul PaISaIaiut 81 Aey) JeLjeym WULUCD O} BITRUN

- IBWB3OA USIEY - 1Sd Wd §Z:p0 & 0202/9L/0L *L [¥D

peiaaiaq
1Sd We 0080
0c0g/51/01

pasoaieq
1Sd We 00:80
0202/51/04

paloAreq
184 ure g0:g0
0202/51/01

pauadQ
1Sd we 00:80
0202/54/01

PessAleQ
1Sd ure 0o:80
0202/51/01

|njss8aonNg
18d We 10:80
020<¢/51/01

[NJ$Se3NG
1Sd We 50:80
0g0e/sL/oL

pejey
18d we £0:80
0202/51/01

e

INj$8805nS
15d we 10:80
0z20e/sLol

3840 ‘ven

WOD ANNOANYONOVIS@AZYId M)
999589920, :xe4

G99588920/ (191,

ZE068 AN 'SYO3A Sv1 'ON

801 3LINS ‘IJAVY INNIAIHD M S6EE
NOLLONHLSNOD NOANYD

MOVI8 vaa "INI ‘SLNIWLSIANI ASHOHAIM

3aqg ‘ued

LINONI-OHM@ASJAD

0980T 1ES.Z "B

EBRLPZESLL (IBL

L2¥68 AN "ZUNHOS

951 X086 Od

"ONI ‘NOLLONHLSNOD HIAIY HINTYM

38Q :Hed

WO TIVHO® L TYHASY ¥D3IA
9LvIEskSLL xeq

869992954/ ‘|lel

LEPES AN "SHHVCS

F#31S QA8 1HOd334d S8E
ONI ONIAYD L1 TYHASY ¥O3IA

390485

WOO ANNILSONMULSNOSHOMIIH HIHLYIH
pasr suoN :xe4

6.e2ce98LL Pl

11568 AN "ON3Y

¥P0Z 3LINS "AVAMYHYd 3DQ3M P28l
SHOLOYHINOD HNIHIINIONT NILSONNL

343G ‘ved

WOO FDVSIHLEOONILHOTHISH
9019856, Xey

LOELIEEGLL (8L

116568 AN ‘ON3H

¥ 3LINS "INV ATTONOT 811§
DNILINSNOD IDVS [HL



CURRENT EXPERIENCE

SCHEDULE A

Project Name Ownier's Contact Person Design Engineer Coniract Date Type of Work Status | Cosl of Work
Name: Name:
sec attached Address: Company.

Telephone: Telephong:
Name: Name:
Address; Company:
Telephone: Telephone;
Name: Nome:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:

Copyright © 2013

EXCDC” C-451, Qualifications Statemant Schedules.

| Society of Prof E 3,

Councll of Englncering Companias,

Ar
and Armerican Sockrty of OVl Enginears. AN
Page 8 of 10

rights rasarved.




05196 vD) 'Soye]| CEO-ZYS-0ES| uosyeD Apuey S0Ue ] LZ/0L/90 | 00 [96'961 $| ooosL'Eve $ PISUoda Y U ImQELEy PEOY 0Z02 FOyE | BYET YINoS o 1)
e WS Wans g Dvil =T Phog
85196 VD 'S0yRL{0/S6CrS-0E5| Memaisdor  [usBeq ysem| 1Z/0e/90 [ 00 HO9'ZZS 8 | DODEEZEZC S WONNS Lud g 581 [T
e Ynog 'L/l xog O'd
£Z¥68) YIZITBLSLL Q3 vor HGH \Z/0E/90 | 009SSOFL  § | 00 Z00FPSCE & PrnsuGoag FE- Ty Runo seiinog|
AN ‘Usputy ‘BLZ x09 'O'd
80568 BPBABN| LOCE-/€/-S.L| 1955 Wy Bugynsuon LZ/0E80 | b0'ZS9’98Z § ) o0Ole’9sn’t  § SHOMIRG suapues) Auaglew) wng
‘ouay “anug Ausghen ooge pleyuBK
L1568 AN ‘ol £059095-6.2| ualleT foag BpasaN 1z0es0 [00GRELYSL $| 0OBYOXILE § HONINS R SNEAT VADL UDGONISUOT) 3100,
“anug smsodio]) owdy DEES TN T SUnped
20568 0608-958-5.4| \WsuoIslud AN | Duuseudus { T1Z/0E/B0 | 00PPSOSE  § | DOEZ0¥YO0T & Yomaps U @ ouy UGIDRNSUOD) pamury
AN DU Seas m 06ES QuEry
ZLLBE AN AND{1526-01Z-20L[ Smad 2ulioy LOON 1Z/0E/90 | 00/SLSSRY S | 00 ZiEBKOE S PROsUoIRY unsny /18EM  Uchzpodsurl] jo wewpedey Bpeaen
UoiiE3 i§ LEmAIS S ez
g0veR| Z¥aSERGLL sodwe) Swmsubua | izsiv0 | 00858 PSE s [ o6l LIS ] R1IU0]7 epuEs] SI0IE N99d
AN ‘A3IUR 5 ‘3au0) poUeD 00 -alawy aueq g
L¥¥68 AN[6ZLL-Z0E6L]| vewod Wmsng | uweewluy | oZ/leTt | 00Z1Z695 2 $| DOZOOYEST S UOGEAISRI ] IHLBAR] Bupepnsay fempeoy 0z0Z KunoD uokT
‘uoBue A 13aNg WeW S /7] 1o L )
Z1568| B0ZB-0RS0ES| IAORDS usboy Ruma)y 0Z/LEZL | 00625 652 sl ooissrerz § UOGEARSRIC JUSUIBABY |95 Aunis 12/02 RunoD soysep)
AN ‘OuS 1945 YN '3 Lo0L 20USBAL
ZOGEE AN ‘Ousd| #IBL-SEE-G//| uosqE #a9g saERotsy | OZ/LE/ZL | 00ZZE€905  § | 00/96L08S uogeAIssald MSlRARY INELRUIBW PAREIIMAGI 0ZOZ[  UGISSILLUCY USRFLOSURIY feUmBay
‘801 aung ‘Aapn BuuLRy SOLL 7 sown
12568 AN ‘o] 5/29-22E-622 W10 naug Rassippo oZ/IL/ZY [ODELE'SZZ'E S| OD9PIHZSOL § HOMIUS ¥8n | joeloug URrUSUED) VoIS Y
‘004 9¥NS I NUPVES 08
L0468 AN GSEZ-LBEGLL| UBRWeRI{UST | Aypuosien | OZHEZE | Q0LSZZIZLL 3] O0SIR9656L § PARsUCIaY 12305 UOKIED WRNOS HYWD Ko uosie]
“AuD uomsey) ‘Aepa NG 505C
12568 AN 'OUe[ 8B28-1Z¢-5., uomog edoy Keespo 0Z/LEZL | 00'090°SEL'YL $| DOYIBSOLSE § HOMIUG ¥ 3s8Ud JDAN UOEHLISUOD) UOISTY
‘00L auns *iq pUpUeS 06
1216 w0 'ousuy] /998-129-665] ®aeD oMRD  foussijo Aup[ OO/l | 0O 06FkZZ | § | 006ECE99C S UonEAesald LRILaARY oS Auns §suU| 7 ysjuing ousald o KD
‘BNURAY SSON UBA L7/
06196 ¥ "soye)| 2y09zrs-0cs| Joel oD oupIBD 02/08/LL [ OORLOBOLT  $ | 0D00009SZC § PSUCOFY PG FOUEL v SoUR] Fye ynog B
e YINoS WIS OOl L
1Even| Z.51-¢E2-5/ uos3 lowsy sseouifuy 0Zoe/tL | BOLEY'D8. BIEET 3 PSiaoay RIS RN NSl 7 Aepp Jah) spedg )6 ki)
AN 'SR Kep SEId LEY anr
ZOSEB AN 'oUrd| LEBL-GEEGLL| 18D USLEM ‘Buzmueg | OzZ/0E/LL | 00 LG9E0LF & | 00Z9Z09% ) S PNAsUcoad UORSHNQELSY SALQ ISOYET|  UoiSSAUWAY uohEUodsUR | puoBey
‘BOL SUNS ‘ABAA BUMWLIB] SOLL wgjse3
02568( 0008¥ER-SLL| a3 noog Bumeaubus | 0zZ/0f/11L | 00BYESPE  § | 00006402 & Womang uonmns diing woRLoog RouuTy BTRA SMOPEZ W SN |
AN '0USH ‘ELOOE X08 'O'd #EYS
VOB AN|SSEZ-/895is| uewedijer [ Rwpuosied | OZOE/LL | DO9IBZIS  § | DOZ00'LSE s PRisumey [ RNRSUGIGY PEOY § PURIBIEAN maAnd J LS
‘Ax0 vosie?) ‘Aep ming 505t
ZOSGR AN OUSH[ GB81-GET-5/Z] AORW bhoQ SUPRY CT/DE/IL | DOZSFO600F § | O0BZBPEZ LY 5 12005U00a)y Z 9seUd 1ans BUTIA|  LOSSIMALG) vogenodsiel jruodoy]
‘8Ot IHNG ‘ABM JRUILIBL GOL )
LE¥BB AN|L90{-€5€5LL] mowurug o S0P | GZ/LEI0F | DOTSE'S96 $T00469LKIL § HOMING solbosleag UoONOSUOTY TR0
‘Syedg 1eenS 1812 'S 0501
ZL288 AN 'AND| O¥OE-5885.L2] SoUaimE] maiply LOON OZLEMH [ 00PL8'640L ST O0Z¥LSIZE § [ IE=Y] JOpAyS goREN| Uotepndsuel {0 paueda BPRAN
:Oq:.mU 1S UEMRlS 'S E9Z1L
SSWPPY JBUMQ Suoyd Joums PERICDJeumMO  :aubu3 T pancdwod Junowy JoRnuDY PRQUOD Jo adA] Jwepn gor Asuaby
ubisaq uondwe) wnowy

SSIUD0UC NI HHOM - NOLLONYISNOD YAVAIN Vi3IS



SCHEMLEB

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE (Include ALL Projects Compleled within last § Years)

Project Name Owmer's Contnet Person Design Engincer Contract Date Type of Work | Status | Cost of Work

Name: Nanme:

see attached Address: Company-
Telephone: Telephone:
MNane: Namc:
Address Company:
Telephone: Telephane:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephane: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company.
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name.
Address: Conpany:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:

Copyright © 2013 National Sockrty of Professionsl Engineors, American Coundl of Engineering Companies,

EJCOC (451, Qualifications Statement Schedules.

and American Sodety af Ovll Enginsers. Al rights reserved.

Page dof 10




SCHEDULE B

PREVIOUS EXPERIENCE (luclude ALL Projects Completed within Lust § years)

Project Name Owner's Contaet Person Design Engineer Contract Date Type of Work Status | Cost of Work

Name: Name:

see attached Address: Compuny:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Compuany:
Telephene: Telephone:
Nome: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Name: Name:
Address: Company:
Telephone: Telephone:
Nume: Name
Address: Company
Telephone: Telephone:

Copyright © 2013 Natlonal Sodaty of Profossianal Enginee

EHDC C451, Quakiy St

P

s, Amaricsn Councll of Engineering Companias,

and Amarican Saclaty of Cvil Engineers. All ights reserved.

Poge 10 of 10




SOTSA ¥2) UG0S ' SAY UOWSTRH J 04F1] (107997 GX TN CHITES o T BABTCOSY NS | 00ES0G0Z T T
1hiee AN VOEIFD T NS JPANS JORMD N 10Z)  SGUZ-LR9SLl A gy ] PRREOCSTY o0 | AN | D0 TEZE0LE |
TIIBR AN 5D 0K 3G 1BMAS S [OZ)|  LKE-Le9Sil] ) eEus [ SLEE0 T DhRILOCAY MWD [ 00 1OC 156
Z0GBH AN COid | BTG KB ABLRS) DBZ|  00RY PINGLL ANS $Or| § 1AL/ RARUGODY oS | S VAL B 5 §
TI0EGE ¥ SIAGYD WAl W TE0L | OBOZ P65 Lo Y WS $GW5 [ D Go 26K | [
OIT09 AM TP WaaAS W T 1001 PTGl COuSSA PR  SL/ILe0 RSO PO | ST 106 0G0
TOSM AN OuRY eeaS N 0TS  IFOIFSLL USELREVGT W] SHATB0 WOMRIG, | 96 00 T2 T v
0I5B AN 0w oans 186 3 100b] OrOCWZT-5L1 ooRmea S| SHS DL aCUmsRLRY) WEOTY | 100 S F §
088 AN TorD UOER0 T WS 95 UoRW0 N LOZ]  SSTZ-(RWGLl] Lo YTV T ERLESWMOOGH G A | 00 (40 CBD VT U PIY VORALEILI | SWEAA TR TS LS
S0S68 AN '00% 006} %00 Gd| LY ¥ECGLL VO BRI DLOIIT BERoeY RS | D0 0L TET " iy e SR SO0 EIT LT
12560 SpwAaN GMY 001 WS Ty PPWS 006| 5129 LIESLL s ) Woways | 00 BLY 9o TOVALG SEOH PR, VORNARIGT DAY
LOLB8 AN Ry owmD T mS 15 VORND W LZ[  SeeC-Lee5LL] w0000 DNEARCOY POOH | OO J00BoF 1§ VRGN WIS NN g vorms)
T eamse AN Ko oo Keapag mowenp 18 ZZLOFESLL [ T T ) Womans [ OO YR EPLT O1 FEoRpee.] g WP, THRFI0T) 588
19190 Vo saoni] PENY FIid JeUO0 TS0 H  ZTSC-TE-0ES 1y on|  WLOLR0 PRATI0R] PoL] ¥ YOM] | DO0GBL 650 € T oekug Pt ¥ PRI STEC ART] 00U PAgIIT) $490r] SOuN,
- DL/l ]
[ E] " H oI
BLOLE0 L7y
) [%3
[ L
[7)
[ 0w
AL
[ COW6S AN OUSH 001 WG MM IRRDSI GOLL| SORISTLSLL | FOWMBO;  Liigin ]
SLECH VO OewB.SBS 1eanG (Wt /Z41 ] £L06- 0N 0ES UOHOA P 1020
CSVEB W WUSHY WONS | PH JWAD] M OZ9] Y6LRBEL G080 FEy MakAy | [LAOUBO0
FLESS AN TRING 1 09 O d] YRR EIVGLL [ ) BFTVIT. Y
Y
FTVT ]y
T
06196 ¥ SOUR| #i LJNOS Teuwr) MWL Z50L| BEOWTYCOES !._“W_ LR
T OZSE0 Wpeabw Oumy IenS 88 5 1001] FPOCREESLL B [A%H
TORBE AN "o Vs AR 1561 WALL-LLISLL BIL T
SOGER AN Cusy OOBL XOF O d] WECOCWGLL [T BT T
19190 D WOn] Pty LXGily weRu) COL01| VCBZ CU5 005 [ T TR = TV T
TR0 B [
T VY
] [Tz
E T T
RaURn 051 GIAGOL
L
e men] 6100
WPRII UNS| 81 LR0
yBrognDoW N00ST BL/LORO
OZOER AN UM RvE S0T WA0d WG (5 SRR SEI S| iy vea| 817100
Z1588 AN 'OLMY DRANNOE JIDURG DOOL]  Z19(FI9-SL]] HOUYY wepchy(  E1/10/80
IE¥8R AN SUSH RN RO DIE]  OONEEUSLL| e mo|  sLioeg
CI0BE AN PRUPICD 215 X08 Od| eOM Sovsis] Teoya]l vaxag|  BLIGOE
TLIEG AN T9ESA 377 Or| WG BNUBAY 0381 M G10%| (52969 Z0L WSS | LG
DLF6E AN WRARULTE WION GOL AT [0YL|  PEILPRi Sl WODET OPD|  BI/LON
CLY0F AN W0 BLE 08 O'd| CLEVIRLSLL wiwr[  BUIeGL
1Cree AN ouey Tam mepro OiE]  OOCHE L wes Bee[  sUtOAL 3 2
IEYES AN o0y TOM WP CIT| oyl w9 Sl vosdhooy wes| ™ sinoi oS KUNSARNED OVPRIC/mIOMAIeS| OO L00 158 € Kims laune Wk 1275 LOGN DORELIGAEUISL J0 [he LA mdnE WoUARN
SOC98 WD UOKDOS | ShuRAY UCIeINH E3 0401 OODTV9r-60% T TTE R TV wesdns| QOO0 $ $1-10C RO Wnbwor Ueg Koo Umbwor Ues|
1088E AN 0N3 Srusiy oBED 1S LrElLLI Gl PO e B1L/LOZ1 Sofnc oy 000ver € Fures oow 10T IR
SOV AN UG ToL NS TpAE S || oZZe s urwop el B 1905 PUARRd DY AIEIG coues BND| 00 Z00 WS | § — Baomnrey TENSo LT T Kunod wedy
Zired AN EwmDG [SUYOH Od) WSTIGHELL E T YT Buomrsocmmes OR0| 00 L0095t § TR SAARIISAL]] WSRT B10Z] IS o Kol
FLO58 YO FAR] L NG DA BNy £7]  9995-/C/-0CG| -ﬂT 5102 1495 wowronees KewSaremy Oyl 00009671 8 mos Lums - swag i )| nam] 0 Koy
TILES AN KD WARD ks Lmaws 5 E0C1| | 9082 L2211 wnig woley|  BILEZY WS O] 0000l % o " THIEHS ¥ 0ASN BT LOUN UORRGdTULI] 10 O 0a] RO
ssupey| B uoyy uoLg naaﬂ_.‘n_ o Heguod o adhy | amowy 1923w Wy 0T Aauaby|

3ONTI¥3dXT 30 INIWILVLS ONi ‘NOILDONYLSNOD VAVASN VH3IS




r] ) 1

7 wpuag L URSARRXTY WRG | 05 FRY 90F

T TZA0 [T T T G T
W05 AT SRR WPy | 00 (35 900
% 0 UGNASUCOe Y 18RS | 00 00 2512
AT ey VL0 ARNDRE VIO LARIT0H WIAS | 00 (00 29 T
TUa] oW Y] LOGIARSUCSE ! Jeans |00 [00'LEL
TIG56 VO ' WUEINS WRAS ROL [Z11]  ZBPEAE-00S TOBLAIGH WP | 21/ o0 Repasg pmiary | 00 009692 §

90LB8 AN RHD VoL TEAGUw EREnpU | PRE NG,  CHOIOL WG | DB 2R Lv8
9NTSE VO UMIRORS WaNE WOt LIL)| O oSG VRl [ EBLOE UGEARUCORY PROY | 00 L0005V L | § SeYOUL OE POLRLCD TURAIND
05106 VO ouL WAv 1 oS ] KL 1501 §N3a~ OGN W ZWIOL VOfRRARRTYY RS | 00 t9h LT S VoS RrmeY PROY 7107
GIUSE Vo WLELNS WeeRS WOC LZL1|  LLWS ZRS0ES o N N ZLARTLL Prntioey peay | 00 (00 LT § ToyeA WenbS FOO0I L E0 SUeRRD|
UGIOAURI0Y RS | 00 10 90T § Ry WoBEA COrce LOOM|
R P R0 RIS sARUSARI | 00 {0T%I0F ¥ ATy ¥ PRI SARIARL T HOZ|
VR UoreTARLL DU ] I SeN| 00 (005, 8 URY UOHERALISUNI] PW D) Je: MoN
EGEGINN P skt 0000 855 H S YOS T SURRET
e T bl
94537 punodlapu/iSkExDay }ealS| 00 Z00 Bi0 b 8 Gie Wl aahg
Baompidcom [ GCTR e § Peialg BUTERTLN (L7
I [ L s YEH R
BrURUCaY SAL SRS

BGEIE UdTY | 00 (0 LY L § SARORE 90T 45 C1 9L LOON
FAISMIOMARS 00 O00001 . § Kuwory g wing
1807 G5 JGTH NOUGEY] 00 (00 UTL  © TG S H0GNE IROeY RARRD]
GogeAIITaLT Wanned] 00 D0 S99 5 ¥ Wl RIS S e

12580 AN SUSY DOZ RIS #0N) PRIISe)I] 00501 BEEL 900511 LT BT

LUPBR AN TG K N 107 L RTSiL o oL Y

L1958 NN R00H 10 G 1805|1555 8] Eor o) PIBHTI

05196 WD 'e0USL S GNOG WA} WL IG0|  [Z09-LYS06S, L2 TS BYY

1CY50 AN T30S TBAA SRS CIE|  OYOL SB6-5L7 I YR
l&gﬂaﬁvﬂ. OZIS OIS GLE WS Koy PR
07560 AN Oy T000C @8 Od| FIAISICSLL]  wkgn wos] S
GZSEE AN %Y Z000L %09 O o| FLAL-SECGLL VR0 W05]  SULEIC

T OTSER AN TURY ZDOOE %68 Od] IR SEES, usth E&‘r SIAEND
- TLAGE YD SWaLmITE SAN] UOANIAY 3@ [ .w1|._ oas ams| D

u d Rl 9ial ]
3ONZH3dX3 40 INFWILVLS "ONI ZO_._.UDmthOO <D<>mz émm_m







SECTION 00460
EEO COMPLIANCE STATEMENT FORM RD 400-6

This statement relates to a proposed contract with _Storey County

(Name of borrower or grantee)

who expects Lo finance the contract with assistance from either the Rural Housing Service (RHS), Rural Business-Cooperative
Service (RBS), or the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) or their successor agencies, United States Department of Agriculture
{whcther by a loan, grant, loan insurance, guarantee, or other form of financial assistance). | am the undersigned bidder or
prospective contractor. 1 represent that;

L. 1[X] have, | ] have nol, participated in a previous contract or subcontract subject to
Executive Order 11246 (regarding equal employnient opportunity) or a preceding similar
Exccutive Order.

2. IfThave participated in such a contract or subcontract, I [ X] have, [ ] have not, filed all
compliance reports that [ have been required to file in connection with the contract or
subcontract.

If the proposed contract is for $50,000 or more and I have 50 or more employees, 1 also represent that:

3. T]X] have,{ |have not, previously had contracts subject to the written affirmative action
program requirements of the Secretury of Labor.

4. If 1 have participatcd in such a contract or subcontract, 1 [X] have, | | have not, developed
and placed on file at each establishment atfirmative action programs as required by the rules
and regulations of the Secretary of Labor.

| understand that if | have failed to file any compliance reports that have been required or me, 1 am not eligible and will not be
eligible to have my bid considered or (o enter into the proposed contract unless and until | make an arrangement regarding such
reports that is satistactory to either the RIIS, RBS, or RUS, or o the affice where the reports are required to be filed.

I also certify that 1 do no1 maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilities at any of my establishments, and that
1 do not permit my employees to perform their services at any location, under my control, where segregated facilities are
maintained. | certify further that I will not maintain or provide for my employees any segregated facilities at any of my
establishments, and that I will not permit my employces to perform their services at any location, under my control, where
segregated facilities are maintained. 1 agree that a breach of this certification is a violation of the Equal Opportunity clause in
my contract. As used in this certification, the term “segregated facilities” means uny waiting rooms, work areas, resl rooms
und wash rooms, rcstaurants and other cating arcas, time clocks, locker rooms and other storage or dressing areas, parking lots,
drinking fountains, recreation or entertainment areas, transportation and housing facilities provided for employees which are
scgregated by explicit directive or are in fact segregated on the basis of race, creed, color, or national origin, because of habit,
locul custom, or otherwise. 1 further agree that (except where 1 have obtained identical cetifications from proposed
subcontractors prior to the award of subcontracts exceeding $10,000 which are not exempt from the provisions of the Equal
Opportunity clause; that | will retain such centifications in my files; and that 1 will forward the following notice to such proposed
subcontractors (except where the proposed subcontractors have submitted identieal certifications for specific time periods):
(Sce Reverse).

According ta the Puperwork Recuction Act of 1995, an agency may not conduct or spansor, cind a person is nal requived (o respand te o collection of information unless it displays
a volid OMB controf nuinber. The valicd OM8 conirol nunber for shiy informailon collection Is 0575-0018. The time requived to compiete this informuiion collection Is estimaied {0
average 10 minutes per rexpanse, including the time for revivwing insiructions, searching cxisting dota sources, guthering and mintuining the data needed, and comploting and
reviewing the collection of infor matlon,

Pasition & RD 400-6 (Rev. 4-00)

Storey County 0o460-1 FWE #i67]
Gold Hill Treatment Plani EEQ Conpliance Statement Form RD 400-6 Bid Set {October 202()



NOTICETO PROSPECTIVE SUBCONTRACTORS OF REQUIREMENTS FOR
CERTHACATIONS OF NON-SEGREGATED FACILITIES

A certicatton of Nonsegregated Facihities, as regquared by the Mav 90 1967, arder (321,12, 7434, Ay 19, 1967 on
Llnvasation of Seprepated Facihies, by the Secrctury of Labor, must be subnnned prior o the award of a subcontiat
exveading STHO0H which i not exempt from the provisions of the Equal Opportimty Clause The certificanon may be
subiited cither Tor cach subcontract or tor all subeontiacts durimg a peried (e guarter!y Csemtannuadly L on annually

NOTEThe penalts tor making Bilse statenents mediers s prescibed m 151 S0 1001

bae: _Noyember 4, 2020 7?—'_/[&4&» | o

Nigrinther e of Bddor e Prospesciiong Conteag fos

Kevin L. Robertson, President

_ . PO Box 50760, Sparks, Nevada 89435

bndiosy o indiny Zip Coded

S T P thisdtns 2 S o)

Co A Fa g0 Bt fihe e NGt st J oo BV I8 B Serad b foan o et



US. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility
and Voluntary Exclusion — Lower Tier Covered Transactions.

This certification s required by the regulations implementing Exeeutive Order 12549, Debannent and
Suspension, TCFR Part 3017.510, Parieipants” responsibilities. The regulations were published as Part
IN o e Lwary 300 1989, Federal Register (pages 47224733} Copies of the repulutions may be
obtained by contacung the Departiment ot Agricalture ageney with wlich this transaction originated

(BEFORE COMPLETING CERTIFICATION, READ INSTRUCTIONS ON NEXT PACGE)

(1 The prospective fower tier participant certifics, by submission of this propesal, that neither it nar
s principals is presemtly debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared incligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this tansaction by any Federal
department oF agency.

{2 Where the prospective fower ter participant is wnable w eertity 1w iy ol the statements in
Lhis certification, such prospective participant shall attacl an explanation 1o this proposal.

SierraNevada Construction, e, | Gold 16N Package Wastewater Treatment Plant

Orannization Name PRSAward Number or Project Naiane

Kevin I.. Rohertson, President
Name(s) and Titles) of Avthorzed Representativers)

= - November 4. 2020

SlgllillllFC(s) Date

Farm ADTO4R {1:92)

LN RPN fistad PR atn Ty
G LA Ly cvitoecat Mlans FSI S AN Bicd Sot i dciabnr 020



Enstructions for Certification

By signing and submitling this form, the prospective lower tier participant is providing the
certification set out on the reverse side in aecordance with these instructions.

The eertification in this elause is a material representation of fact upon which relianee was placed
when this transaction was entered into. 1fit is later determined that the prospcetive lower tier
partieipant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to
the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this transaetion originated may pursue
available remedies, ineluding suspension and/or debarment.

The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to which
this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant leamns that its
certifieation was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
sircumstanees.

The terms “eovered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily exeluded,” as uscd in this elause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Covcrage sections of rules implementing Exeeutive Order 12549, You may eontact the person to
which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.

LAY ” oA

The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this form that, should the proposed
covered transaetion be entcred into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily exeluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or ageney with
which this transaetion originated.

The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submilting this form that it will include this
clause titled “Certifieation Regarding Debariment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion
— Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modifieation, in all lower tier covered transactions and
in all solicitations for lower tier eovered transaetions.

A participant in a eovered transaelion may rely upon a certification of a prospective partieipant in a
lower tier eovered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily exeluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the eertification is erroneous. A participant may
deeide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principles. Each
participant imay, but is not required to, clieck the Nonprocurement List.

Nothing contaitied in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of reeords
in order to render in good faith the eertification required by this elause. The knowledge and
information of a participant is not required to exeeed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transaetions authorized under paragraph 5 of thesc instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly entered into a lower tier eovered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which
this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.

Form AD-1048 (1/92)

Storey County 00161-2 FWE #1671

Gold Hill Treatment Plant USDA Form 1048 Bid Set (October 2020)



D Tnstruction 1940-¢)
Lishibir A-1

CERTHICATION FOR CONTRACTES, GRANTS AND LOANS

Phe undvrsigned certitios, w the best of bis o her knowledge and betier, that

LN Fedeval appropriaed funds base beeu pand or will be pasd. by or on behalf ol the undersipned, o an
person Tor mllueneing o stiempting o niluenee an officer or employee of any ageney. a Member of
Congresscan ollicer or employ ee of Congreas, or an emplosee of a Member al Congress 1o connechon
with the awarding ofany Federal contract, the making of any Federal prant or Federal loan, and the
extension. continuation, renewal, mnendment, or maodification of any Federal contraet, grant or loun.

=any funds other than Federal appropriated tunds have been pad or will be pand woany person Tor
grlucneing or atempting to udlucnee an otficer or emiployee of any agency. o mentber of Congress, an
affieer or emploves of Congress. or an employee of a Member of Congioss i connection with his
Federal contract, prant or loan. the undersigned shall complete and submit Stndard From 11
“Ihaclosure of Lobbying Activities.” o secordinee witly ts mstructions.

S he undersigned shall vequire that the language of this centitication be inctuded in the aw ard documents
forall subaswads atall tiers tincluding comtracts, subcontracts, and subgrants under grants and loans) and
that allsubreaipients shall certifs and diselose wcvondingls

Hus certilicavon s amaterial representation ot fuet upon which rehiance was placed when this transaction
was e or entered into. Submssion of this certification s i prerequaisite for makmg or cnlerimg o
thus ransacion imposed by seetion 13520 1itle 31, ULS, Code. Any person who Fails to tile the required
certiftcation shalt be subject to a el penalty of not leas than S LU0 atd not more than $ 106,000 (or
cich such failure.

S
> November 4, 2020

LN (RPN

Kevin 1. Robertson, President

[TV

OX 2091 PN T

Slwa Uendent ffe P wpny
Pt HAHD focumeong £y Covrfoatom DS jwin ) Hod Ser oo ndcr Tt



SECTION 00463
CONTRACTOR'S WAIVER OF RETAINAGE INVESTMENT AND INTEREST

CONTRACT _ Gold Hl Package Wastewater Treatment Plant

As acomditton ol asard of the smd Comract, the undersigned Bidder acknow ledges that he 1s aware of the
provisions of Nevada Revised Statute 3385105 wineh provides Tor mvestment of Contraet retamaeg. wnd
the pavanent ol mterest thereon o the Contractor afier completton of the praject.

The undersipned Bidder Lurther agrees twoswaive and does hereby waive all his rights to investment of and
pasment olintereston retaimagze. as provided by sind statute, upon the understanding that the regulations ol

the lending ageney profbit such mvestment and that. without s waser, Toan and-or prand funds for this
project will not b avalabice

INWIENESS WHLEREOFE, Budder has exceuted these presents this

4th  day ol November 2020 .

Sicrra Nevada Construction, Ine.
(RIS
/

I3 ‘7"‘/ f//

Tule  Kevin L. Robertson, President

NOTE: Thes instument should be exeeuted by the ofTicer who eaccutes the contraet and i the same
maner,

N et NI A F I
! i

[T ¥ P E Y T L) oot s e Betaia: [ER LT VY A S TR T

Bttt aond Lt



boxhibin ¢

e I PA United States
- . ‘
- Environmental Protection Agency

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS,
LOANS AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that

{1) No Federal appropnated funds have been paid or will be paid. by or on behaif of the
undersigned to any person for influencing or attempting to nfluence an officer or
employee of any agency. a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress. or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract. the making of any Federal grant. the making of any FFederal loan, the entering
nto of any cooperative agreement, and the extension continuation. renewal
amendment. or modification of any Federal contract. grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement

{2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated tunds have been paid or will be paid to
any person for influencing or attempling to influence an officer or employee of any
agency. a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant. loan, or
cooperative agreement the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL,
"Disclosure Form o Report Lobbying ™ in accordance with its instructions

{3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this cerification be inciuded in the
award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (:ncluding sub-contracts. sub-grants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooparative agreements) and that all sub-recipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly

This certification 1s a matenal representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Subrmission of this certification 1s a prerequisite for making
or entenng into this transaction imposed by secbon 1352, title 31 U S Code Any person who fails
1o file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10.000 and not
more than $100,000 for each such fallure

Kevin L. Robertson, President _
Typed Name & Title of Authonzed Representative

VY.
T «{//‘{,éf:: November 4, 2020

S:gnre.ture and Date of Authorized Representative

EPA Form 6600-06 (Rev 06/2008) Provious editions are obsolele

Moy Uy [IIPASY] FUE i
Cooaicd HEE Licatmcnit Ploan NEE Bequurenensy



Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization
Guidance to Borrowers and Prime Contractors

Appendix B

Form 6100-4 - DBE Subcontractor Utilization

The borrower must require potential prime contractors to submit Form 6100-4, as shown on the next

page, to the borrower as part of bid proposals.

Storey County 00820
Gold Hill Treatnwent Plunt SRF Requiremenis

FWEHIGT]

Oct 2016



£ EPA United Ststes OMB Control No: 2090-0030
N Envirunmental Protection
A Y 4 Agency Approved: 8/13/2013

Approval Expires: 8/31/2015

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program
DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form

This form is intended to capture the prime contractor's actual and/or anticipated use of identified certified DBE?
subcontractors? and the estimated dollar amount of each subcontract. An EPA Financial Assistance Agreement
Recipient must require its prime contractors to complete this form and include it in the bid or proposal package.
Prime contractors should also maintain a copy of this {form on file.

Prime Contractor Name Project Name

Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc. Gold Hill Package Wastewater Treatment Plant
Bid/ Proposal No. Assistance Agreement 1D No. (if known) | Point of Contact
ST-2020-312 Mike Rooley

Address

P.0. Box 50760, Sparks, Nevada 89435

Telephone No. Email Address

775-355-0420 bids@snc.biz

Issuing/Funding Entity:

Storey County

I have identified potential DBE .

certified subcontractors O YES G NO

Ifyes, please complete the table below. If no, please explain:

Subcontractor Name/ Company Address/ Phone/ Email Est. Dollar Currently
Company Name Amt DBE
Certified?
None.

Continue on back if needed

"A DBE is a Disadvantaged, Minority, or Woman Business Enterprise that has been certified by an entity from which EPA accepts certifications as
described in 40 CFR 33.204-33.205 or certified by EPA. EPA accepts certifications from entities that meet or exceed EPA certification standards as
described In 40 CFR 33.202.

2Subr:m'.tractor {s defined as a company, firm, Joint venture, or individual who enters into an agreement with a contractor to provide
services pursuant to an EPA award of financlal assistance.

EPAFORM 6100-4 (DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form)

Storey County 00820 FWE #1671
Gold Hill Treatment Plant SRE Requiremenis



g Un ted States OMB Control Noao 209500740
Enwicainingnta P .
\"EPA Au:r:f: nento: Proto L Approved HAE3 2014

Approval Expires 8731000

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program
DBE Subcontractor Utilization Form

Ieertily under penaity of perjury that the ferpomy statements are true and correct. Sipning this forn daes not
sSignity L conuniiuent o utihize the subcontractors above. Lam aware of that in the event ol a replacement of
subcontractor, D will adhere to the replacement requirements set forth in 40 CFR Part 33 Section 33.302 (¢).

'I'l'iu'u;jluiﬁ ctor Signature

7"/—//

Print Name

Kevin .. Robertson
Date

_ President . _ _ November 4, 2020

i %In.e bubllc reporting and re_ﬁordkeeping burden f(')"r“t-his collection of iniormah’(;n i5 estimated"to avn.\-/;rage three (3) H_éuurs
per response. Send comments on the Agency's need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden
esbimates, and any suggested methods for numimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated

; coliection technigues to the Director, Collection Strategies Division, U.S. Environmentai Protection Agency (2822T), 1200

 Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB control number in any correspongence, Do not send

Uthe completed fornm to this address

EPAFORM 6100-4 (DBE Subcontractor Utilization Ferm)

Shared € et TN P inT]
il e Treatment Pl SKRE Regierenrenis



Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utilization
Guidance to Borrowers and Prime Contractors

Appendix C
Form 6100-3 — DBE Subcontractor Performance

The prime contractor must require potential subcontractors to submit Form 6100-3, as show on the next
page, as part of bid proposals. In turn, prime contractors submit the data to the borrower.

Storey County 00820 FWE 41671
Guldd Hill Treatnent Piani SRF Kequirements QOct 2016



F e Y LEJniaad Stales . ] OMB Control No: 2090-0030
\"EPAAE:Irr‘ggmenta rotaction Approved: 8/13/2013

Approval Bxpires: 8/31/2015

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program
DBE Subcontracter Performance Form

This form is intended to capture the DBE' subcontractor’s? description of work to be performed and the price of
the work submitted to the prime contractor. An EPA Financial Assistance Agreement Recipient must require its
prime contractor to have its DBE subcontractors complete this form and include all completed forms in the prime
contractors bid or proposal package.

Subcontractor Name Project Name
Gold Hill Package Wastewater Treatment Plant
Bid/ Proposal No. Assistance Agreement ID No. (if known} | Point of Contact
ST-2020-312
Address
Telephone No. Email Address
Prime Contractor Name Issuing/Funding Entity:
Sierra Nevada Construction, Inc.

Contract Item Number Description of Work Submitted to the Prime Contractor Price of Work
Involving Construction, Services, Equipment or Supplics Submitted to the
Prime Contractor

DBE Certified By: O DOT Q sBa Meets/ exceeds EPA certification standards?
O Other: O YES ©Q NO O Unknown

1;!!\ DBE Is a Disadvantaged, Mincrity, or Woman Business Enterprise that has been certified by an entity from which EPA accepts certifications as
described in 40 CFR 33.204-23.205 or certificd by EPA. EPA accepts certifications from entities that meet or exceed EPA certification standards as
described in 40 CFR 33.202.

2Subcom:rm:tcnr Is defined as a company, firm, Joint venture, or individual wha enters inta an agreement with a contractor to provide services
pursuant to an EPA award of financial assistance.

EPA FORM 6100-3 (DBE Subcontractor Performance Form)

Storey County N0820 FWEH#]671
Gold Hill Treatment Plant SRF Regquirements



Jlulu Slalus UME Coutrol No: 2090 0030
Eoviruniental Protection
\I A Approved: 47147201 3

Approval bxpices: H/3 12201005

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Propram
DBE Subcontractor Performance Form

Feertity under penalty of perjury that the Torpomng statements are true and correct, signing this form does not
signily a comnutinent to utilize the subcontractors above. Tam aware of that in the event of a replacement of a
subvantractor, Dwill adhere to the replacement requirements set forth in 40 CEFR Part 33 Section 33.302 {c).

I’rlmc(unlr clor Slhlldlurc - o _1 . - o I;rnlntmm_t —_—
|
7‘///@4}2—“ | .o ... Kevinl Robertson
——— Tide e bate S
oo Presidentc_ i November 4, 2020 .
 __Subcontractor Signature | T T primiName B
B Coritle . T O obate T

The publu. reportmg and recordkeupmg burden for tluQ L-ullecuon of mformanon is esnmated to average three (3) hours
perresponse. Send comments on the Agency's need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden
estunates, and any suggested methods for nunimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated
colkection techmiques to the Director, Collection Strategies Division, U.S Environmental Protection Agency (2822T1), 1200
Pennsylvama Ave., NW. Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB control number in any correspondence. Do not send
the compieted form w lh:s address.

EPA FURM 6100-3 (DBE Subcontractor Performance Form)

N Cand REART U int
Cold e e o S Negarenenns




Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Utllizatlon
Guidance to Borrowers and Prime Contractors

Appendix D
Form 6100-2 — DBE Subcontractor Participation

The prime contractor must provide subcontractors the opportunity to submit Form 8100-2, as shown on
the next page, to:

DBE/MBE/WBE Coordinator

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9
75 Hawthorne Street (PMD-1)

San Francisco, CA 94105

Storey County 00820 FWE #1671
Gold Hill Treatment Plant SRF Requirements Oct 2016



[ 2} mgnul.d stl!utl.' Protects OME Control No: 2090-0030
nYironman on

7 Agency : Approved: 8/13/2013

Approval Explres: 8/31/2015

Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program
DBE Subcontractor Participation Form

Please use the space below to report any concerns regarding the above EPA-funded project:

Subcontractor Signature Print Name

Title Date

The public reporting and recordkeeping burden for this collection of information is estimated to average three (3} hours
per response. Send comments on the Agency's need for this information, the accuracy of the provided burden
estimates, and any suggested methods for minimizing respondent burden, including through the use of automated
collection techniques to the Director, Collection Strategies Division, U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (28227}, 1200
Pennsylvania Ave., NW, Washington, D.C. 20460. Include the OMB control number in any correspondence. Do not send
the completed form to this address.

EPA FORM 6100-2 (DBE Subcontractor Participation Form)

Storey County 00820 FWE #1671
Gold Hill Treatment Plant SRF Requirements




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 10 Min

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval to reimburse the
Storey County Senior Center an amount not to exceed $27,000.00 for costs directly related
to the COVID-19 Pandemic from March 1, 2020 through December 30, 2020. The funds
would be reimbursed from Storey County’s allocation of CARES Act funds.

2. 2. Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the reimbursement of an
amount not to exceed $27,000.00 to the Storey County Senior Center for costs directly
related to the COVID-19 Pandemic. The funds will be reimbursed from Storey County’s
allocation of CARES Act funds upon receipt of all invoices and proof of payment by the
Storey County Senior Center.

3. Prepared by: Lara Mather
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986
4. Staff summary: See attached.

5. Supporting materials: Storey County Letter of Request and Budget

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued
Agenda Item No. _ Iz

e
!y



A}

Agenda [tem No.

Staff Summary:

The Storey County Senior Center has been greatly impacted by the COVID-19 Pandemic and has
responded to the needs of the community. In order to address the social distancing mandates, they
stopped congregate lunch service and created a drive through lunch program. This required
additional resources including disposable covered lunch trays. They have had a substantial increase
in the need for food to assist the senior population and have re-arranged their office so staff can
continue to work and social distance. The Senior Center has purchased additional cleaning supplies
and gloves to keep the facility clean and safe.

The Storey County Senior Cehter is requesting $26,291.72 in reimbursement through the county’s
CARES Act fund allocation.



orey County Senior Cenfe&

PO Box 786 / 100 Mill Street
Virginia City, Nevada 89440
775-847-0957

November 10, 2020

Lara Mather,

Due to COVID we have experienced many different costs that we did not plan
for. Those costs include:

Paneils for office {socially distanced offices) - $1,063.96

Trays for Drive-Thru (no longer can come inside and eat off piates) -
$4,105.50

Laptops (for working remotely) - $1,259.98

Office Redo x2 (the socially distanced offices need furniture and supplies)-
$1,800.00

Emergency Trays (if we shut down because of quarantine)} - $500.00
Extra Gloves (for cleaning and changing between clients) - $420.00
Random Purchase (sanitizers, single use, etc.) — $642.28

Food Cost Increase {due to cost of food rising because of factories
shutting down and growth in numbers for 33 weeks) - $14,500

Total Costs = $26,291.72

We are hopeful that there are CARES funds available to assist us with these extra
costs.

Thank you,

Stacy York



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 10 Min

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Consideration and possible approval to grant the Storey
County businesses who have been awarded funds through the CARES Act a second grant
of equal value. The second award will bring the total funds awarded to $260,000.

2. 2. Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to approve the granting of additional
funds to Storey County businesses who have applied for and been approved an award of the
CARES Act Small Business Grant funds.

3. Prepared by: Lara Mather
Department: Community Relations Telephone: 847-0986
4. Staff summary: See attached.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
(] Approved
[1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued
Agenda Item No. __lﬁ_

—r—
[S—E—



Agenda [tem No.

Staff Summary:

Storey County has awarded 22 grants to local businesses from the County’s CARES Act funds
allotment. The grant application period is now closed. With additional funds available, the county
would like to double the amount each business received. These funds will be for expenses already
incurred by the businesses and each business owner will agree to abide by the conditions of the
original grant agreement initially signed. Each business will provide receipts for all claimed
expenses prior to the distribution of funds.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of determination
that continuation of the infrastructure tax is necessary for continued funding of
infrastructure projects and if that determination is made possible approval of setting a
public hearing to consider a new infrastructure tax expenditure plan for 10:30 a.m. on
December 15, 2020 at the Storey County Courthouse at 26 S. B Street in Virginia City,
Nevada.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner hereby move to make the
determination that continuation of the infrastructure tax is necessary and further move to
set December 15, 2020 at 10:30 a.m. at the Storey county Courthouse located at 26 S. B
street n Virginia City, Nevada as the date, place and time for a public hearing on the
consideration and possible adoption of a new plan for the expenditure of infrastructure tax
revenues.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4. Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
5. Staff summary: See attached staff summary

6. Supporting materials: NRS 377B.100, NRS 377B.160; SC Code Section 3.12.012

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

X  District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[ Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |4~



STAFF SUMMARY

In 2000 the Board of County Commissioners adopted ordinance 169 imposing an
infrastructure tax in the amount of one quarter of 1% on the sale of personal property in Storey
County as authorized by NRS Chapter 377B. That tax is currently codified in Storey County Code
Chapter 3.12. In enacting an infrastructure tax, the Board was required to approve a plan for the
allocation of the revenues to permissible infrastructure projects as allowed by NRS 377B.160
(attached). The Board did approve a plan for the expenditure of the revenues. Prior to the
expiration of an approved plan, the Board is required to determine whether continuation of the tax
is necessary for infrastructure purposes. If so, then it is required to hold a public hearing to
determine what the new plan for infrastructure expenses should be, NRS 377B.100 (attached). The
most recent plan was approved in 2014. That plan is contained in Storey County Code section
3.12.012. (attached). That plan expires in January 2024. Most of the projects in the 2014 plan
have been continued. There are, however, new and continuing infrastructure needs. The issue
before the Board then is whether continuation of the infrastructure tax is necessary for
infrastructure expenses. If that determination is yes, then the Board needs to set a public hearing to
determine what the new plan should be. If the determination is that continuation of the tax is
necessary, then it 1s recommended that the public hearing be set for December 15, 2020 at 10:30
a.m. at the Storey County courthouse, in advance of the public hearing on Ordinance 2020-317.
While proposed ordinance 2020-317 has a proposed plan of expenditures, that plan is not set in
cement and can be changed if the public hearing establishes that a different plan is preferable.



3.12.012 - Purpose of infrastructure tax.

The proceeds of the infrastructure tax under NRS 377B may only be expended for the specific
purposes allowed by law. The board has adopted a plan for expenditures out of the infrastructure
special revenue fund which may include:

Public works, water

Replacement Lakeview water

line .....3,000,000

Five Mile Reservoir .....300,000
Divide Reservoir restoration .....80,000

Building and grounds

V&T Depot purchase .....600,000

V&T restoration .....300,000

Gold Hill Depot restoration .....250,000
Court House remodel .....250,000

Fire Station #72 purchase .....250,000
DA/Sheriff building purchase .....300,000

Land purchases

Gallagher/Clark lot .....250,000

Courthouse parking lot renovation .....750,000
Eaton's lot .....100,000

Eaton's lot renovation .....100,000

Curtis lot .....100,000

Community development
Mark Twain

Lockwood

Flood control .....30,000
Community center .....30,000
Community garden .....10,000

TRI

County road repair .....500,000
County drainage and erosion .....100,000



Communications
Cassidian Patriot Vesta .....180,000

Painted Rock

Bridge repair .....25,000

These are not to exceed totals with the possibility of the board changing the cost estimates and
financing coming from other sources.



NRS 377B.100 County ordinance imposing tax: Enactment; contents; cessation; periodic review of
necessity for continued imposition; public hearing; plan for expenditure of proceeds; periodic review
of plan in certain counties; impairment of outstanding obligations prohibited.

1. The board of county commissioners of any county may by ordinance, but not as in a case of
emergency, impose a tax for infrastructure pursuant to this section and NRS 377B.110.

2. An ordinance enacted pursuant to this chapter may not become effective before a question
concerning the imposition of the tax is approved by a two-thirds majority of the members of the board
of county commissioners. Any proposal to increase the rate of the tax or change the previously
approved uses for the proceeds of the tax must be approved by a two-thirds majority of the members of
the board of county commissioners. The board of county commissioners shall not change a previously
approved use for the proceeds of the tax to a use that is not authorized for that county pursuant to NRS
3778.160.

3. Anordinance enacted pursuant to this section must:

(a) Specify the date on which the tax must first be imposed or on which an increase in the rate
of the tax becomes effective, which must occur on the first day of the first month of the next calendar
quarter that is at least 120 days after the date on which a two-thirds majority of the board of county
commissioners approved the gquestion.

{b) In a county whose population is 700,000 or more, provide for the cessation of the tax not
later than:

(1) The last day of the month in which the Department determines that the total sum
collected since the tax was first imposed, exclusive of any penalties and interest, exceeds $2.3 billion; or

(2) June 3Q, 2025,
E whichever occurs earlier.

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of an ordinance described in subsection 3, in a county whose
population is 700,000 or more, the tax may continue to be imposed after the date set forth in the
ordinance for the cessation of the tax if the board of county commissioners determines by an
affirmative vote of at {east two-thirds of its members that the cessation of the tax is not advisable.

5. The board of county commissioners in a county whose population is 700,000 or more and in
which a water authority exists shall review the necessity for the continued imposition of the tax
authorized pursuant to this chapter at least once every 10 years.

6. Before enacting an ordinance pursuant to this chapter, the board of county commissioners
shall hold a public hearing regarding the imposition of a tax for infrastructure. In a county whose
population is 700,000 or more and in which a water authority exists, the water authority shall also hold
a public hearing regarding the tax for infrastructure. Notice of the time and place of each hearing must
be:

(a) Published in a newspaper of general circulation in the county at least once a week for the 2
consecutive weeks immediately preceding the date of the hearing. Such notice must be a display
advertisement of not less than 3 inches by 5 inches.



{b) Posted at the building in which the meeting is to be held and at not less than three other
separate, prominent places within the county at least 2 weeks before the date of the hearing.

7. Before enacting an ordinance pursuant to this chapter, the board of county commissioners of
a county whose population is less than 700,000 or a county whose population is 700,000 or more and in
which no water authority exists, shall develop a plan for the expenditure of the proceeds of a tax
imposed pursuant to this chapter for the purposes set forth in NRS 377B.160. The plan may include a
regional project for which two or more such counties have entered into an interlocal agreement to
expend jointly all or a portion of the proceeds of a taximposed in each county pursuant to this chapter.
Such a plan must include, without limitation, the date on which the plan expires, a description of each
proposed project, the method of financing each project and the costs related to each project. Before
adopting a plan pursuant to this subsection, the board of county commissioners of a county in which a
regional planning commission has been established pursuant to NRS 278.0262 shall transmit to the
regional planning commission a list of the proposed projects for which a tax for infrastructure may be
imposed. The regional planning commission shall hold a public hearing at which it shall rank each project
in relative priority. The regional planning commission shall transmit its rankings to the board of county
commissioners. The recommendations of the regional planning commission regarding the priority of the
proposed projects are not binding on the board of county commissioners. The board of county
commissioners shall hold at least one public hearing on the plan. Notice of the time and place of the
hearing must be provided in the manner set forth in subsection 6. The plan must be approved by the
board of county commissioners at a public hearing. Subject to the provisions of subsection 9, on or
before the date on which a plan expires, the board of county commissioners shall determine whether a
necessity exists for the continued imposition of the tax. If the board determines that such a necessity
does not exist, the board shall repeal the ordinance that enacted the tax. If the board of county
commissioners determines that the tax must be continued for a purpose set forth in NRS 3778B.160, the
board shall adopt, in the manner prescribed in this subsection, a new plan for the expenditure of the
proceeds of the tax for such a purpose.

8. If the plan approved pursuant to subsection 7 by the board of county commissioners of a
county whose population is 100,000 or less includes the expenditure of the proceeds of a tax impagsed
pursuant to this chapter for a purpose set forth in paragraph {f) or (g) of subsection 3 of NRS 377B.160,
the board must review the plan at least once every 4 years.

9. No ordinance imposing a tax which is enacted pursuant to this chapter may be repealed or
amended or otherwise directly or indirectly modified in such a manner as to impair any outstanding
bonds or other obligations which are payabte from or secured by a pledge of a tax enacted pursuant to
this chapter until those bonds or other obligations have been discharged in full.



NRS 377B.160 Infrastructure fund: Expenditure of principal, interest and income. The money in the
infrastructure fund, including interest and any other income from the fund:

1. In a county whose population is 700,000 or more, must only be expended by the water
authority, distributed by the water authority to its members, distributed by the water authority
pursuant to NRS 377B.170 to a city or town located in the county whose territory is not within the
boundaries of the area served by the water authority or to a public entity in the county which provides
water or wastewater services and which is not a member of the water authority or, if no water authority
exists in the county, expended by the board of county commissioners for:

(a} The acquisition, establishment, construction, improvement or equipping of water and
wastewater facilities;

(b) The payment of principal and interest on notes, bonds or other securities issued to provide
money for the cost of projects described in paragraph (a); or

(c} Any combination of those purposes.

E The board of county commissioners may only expend money from the infrastructure fund pursuant to
this subsection in the manner set forth in the plan adopted pursuant to subsection 7 of NRS 377B.100.

2. In a county whose population is 100,000 or more but less than 700,000, must only be
expended by the board of county commissioners in the manner set forth in the plan adopted pursuant
to subsection 7 of NRS 377B.100 for:

{a) The acquisition, establishment, construction or expansion of;
(1) Projects far the management of floodplains or the prevention of floods; or
(2) Facilities relating to public safety;

{b) The payment of principal and interest on notes, bonds or other securities issued to provide
money for the cost of projects described in paragraph (a);

{c) The ongoing expenses of operation and maintenance of projects described in subparagraph
{1} of paragraph (a), if such projects were included in a plan adopted by the board of county
commissioners pursuant to subsection 7 of NRS 3778.100 before January 1, 2003;

(d) Any program to provide financial assistance to owners of public and private property in areas
likely to be flooded in order to make such property resistant to flood damage that is established
pursuant to NRS 244.3653; or

{e) Any combination of those purposes.

3. In a county whose population is less than 100,000, must only be expended by the board of
county commissioners in the manner set forth in the plan adopted pursuant to subsection 7 of NRS
3778.100 for:

{a) The acquisition, establishment, construction, improvement or equipping of:

(1) Water facilities; or



(2) Wastewater facilities;

{b) The acquisition, establishment, construction, operation, maintenance or expansion of:
(1) Projects for the management of floodplains or the prevention of floods; or
(2) Facilities for the disposal of solid waste;

(c) The construction or renovation of facilities for schools;

{d) The construction or renovation of facilities having cultural or historical value;

(e) Projects described in subsection 2 of NRS 373.028;

(f} The acquisition, establishment, construction, expansion, improvement or equipping of
facilities relating to public safety or to cultural and recreational, judicial or health and welfare functions;

(g) The ongoing expenses of operation and maintenance for services and supplies of facilities
described in paragraph (f), excluding salaries and benefits;

(h} The payment of principal and interest on notes, bonds or other securities issued to provide
money for the cost of projects, facilities and activities described in paragraphs (a} to (g), inclusive; or

(1) Any combination of those purposes.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required { ]

1. Title: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of first reading of
ordinance 20-317 regarding allocation of infrastructure tax revenues on infrastructure
projects within the County pursuant to an adopted plan of expenditures.

2. Recommended motion: I, Commissioner hereby approve the first reading of
Ordinance 20-317 providing for the allocation of infrastructure tax revenues to
infrastructure projects in Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4, Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

5. Staff summary: See attached staff summary
6. Supporting materials: Ordinance No. 20-317 ; Storey County Code Section 3.12.012
7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: ___ Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

X District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
1 Approved (1] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. |5




STAFF SUMMARY

Chapter 377B of the Nevada Revised Statutes authorizes counties to enact a sales tax on
sales of personal property for the purpose of paying for infrastructure improvements. Storey
County adopted Ordinance 169 in the year 2000 imposing a tax in the amount of one fourth of one
percent on all sales of personal property in Storey County. That ordinance with subsequent
amendments is currently codified in Chapter 3.12 of the Storey County Code. In order to impose
the tax, the County also has to adopt a plan of expenditures to determine what infrastructure
projects the county will spend the revenues on. The current plan of expenditures was adopted in
2014 and is set out in SCC 3.12.012 (attached). That plan expires on January 20, 2024. Pursuant to
NRS 377B.100(7) on or before the date on which the plan expires, the Board is to consider
whether there is a need for the continuation of the tax. In this case, most of the projects identified
in the 2014 plan have been completed. There exist, however, a number of ongoing infrastructure
needs. If the Board determines that the tax must be continued for a purpose allowed by NRS
377B.160 (infrastructure needs) then the Board is to adopt a new plan for the expenditure of the
proceeds of the tax. The current ordinance sets out a new proposed plan of infrastructure
expenditures. Essentially the proposed plan is a placeholder for an actual new plan of expenditures
which will be adopted following a public hearing on the proposed plan of expenditures. That
public hearing will be addressed in a separate agenda item.



Bill No. 128
Ordinance No. 20-317

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 3.12.012 updating the plan of projects for the
proceeds of the infrastructure tax

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code section 3.12.012 updating the plan of projects
for the proceeds of the infrastructure tax and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:

SECTION I: section 3.12.012 is amended to as follows:

3.12.012 Purpose of infrastructure tax.

The proceeds of the infrastrure tax under NRS 377B may only be expended for the specific
purposes allowed by law. The board has adopted a plan for expenditures out of the Infrastructure
Special Revenue Fund which may include:

Buildings & Grounds

VC Justice Center Medification $ 770,000
Justice Center IT $ 20,000
Historic Stairs on Taylor at Sharon House $ 150,000
Lockwood Sheriff Substation $ 100,000
Water - Wastewater
Upgrade of water system and tanks $ 250,000
Roads
According to Farr West Engineerings Road Plan (1-5 years)
TRI Center: Overlay, Seal, Reconstruction $2,648,435
MarkTwain: Seal, Overlay $ 5428
Virginia City: Seal, Overlay, Reconstruction $ 581,857

Community Development

Virginia City Highlands
Community Center/Fire Bay $ 150,000




Lockwood

Community Center Improvements $ 300,000
Mark Twain
Flood Control $ 300,000

These are not to exceed totals with the possibility of the Board changing the cost estimates and
financing coming from other sources. Total for this plan is $5,275,720

Proposed on , 2020

By Commissioner

Vote: Ayes  Commissioners

Nays Commissioners

Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens,
Storey County Clerk/Treasurer

This Ordinance goes into effect on the day of , 2020



3.12.012 - Purpose of infrastructure tax.

The proceeds of the infrastructure tax under NRS 377B may only be expended for the specific
purposes allowed by law. The board has adopted a plan for expenditures out of the infrastructure
special revenue fund which may include:

Public works, water

Replacement Lakeview water

line .....3,000,000

Five Mile Reservoir .....300,000
Divide Reservoir restoration .....80,000

Building and grounds

V&T Depot purchase .....600,000

V&T restoration .....300,000

Gold Hill Depot restoration .....250,000
Court House remodel .....250,000

Fire Station #72 purchase .....250,000
DA/Sheriff building purchase .....300,000

Land purchases

Gatlagher/Clark lot .....250,000

Courthouse parking lot renovation .....750,000
Eaton's lot .....100,000

Eaton's lot renovation .....100,000

Curtis lot .....100,000

Community development
Mark Twain

Flood control .....50,000
Community center .....25,000

Lockwood

Flood control .....30,000
Community center .....30,000
Community garden .....10,000
TRI

County road repair .....500,000
County drainage and erosion .....100,000



Communications
Cassidian Patriot Vesta .....180,000

Painted Rock

Bridge repair .....25,000

These are not to exceed totals with the possibility of the board changing the cost estimates and
financing coming from other sources.



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 202 Estimate of time required: 15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of second reading
of Bill No. 126; Ordinance No. 20-315 providing for the substitution of the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners as the ex officio board of trustees of the Tahoe Reno
Industrial General Improvement District. (TRI GID)

2. Recommended motion: | Commissioner herby move to approve the second
reading of Ordinance No. 20-315.

3, Prepared by: Keith Loomis

4, Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964
5. Staff summary: See attached.

6. Supporting materials: Proposed Ordinance 20-31

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

X __District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [1 Continue

Agenda Item No. ' (0




STAFF SUMMARY

Due to the lack of residents residing within the service area of the TRI GID, that entity has
consistently had problems finding qualified persons to sit on its board of trustees. At present two
of the five trustee positions are vacant. The Board of Trustees has asked that the Board of County
Commissioners act, ex officio, as the board of trustees of the TRI GID. Such status is authorized
by NRS 318.0953.



Summary — An ordinance by which the Storey County Board of County Commissioners shall
become the Ex Officio Board of Trustees of the TRI (General Improvement District pursuant to
Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 318.

Bill No. 126
ORDINANCE NO. 20-315
TITLE:

AN ORDINANCE BY WHICH THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD
OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SHALL BECOME THE EX
OFFICIO BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE TRI GENERAL
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT PURSUANT TO NEVADA
REVISED STATUTES CHAPTER 318 AND PROVIDING
OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING THERETO.

Recitals

WHEREAS, the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center ("TRI Center") is an area of partially
developed land planned by the Storey County Master Plan to be a large industrial business park
located in the northern portion of the County, which requires water and sewer service.

WHEREAS, NRS Chapter 318 authorizes a county to form a general improvement
district to supply water and sewer services (among other allowed basic powers) to customers.

WHEREAS, a general improvement district offers the most economical and functional
method of providing water and sewer services to the service area encompassing TRI Center.

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 318.055, the Board of County Commissioners of Storey
County ("BCC") formed the TRI General Improvement District (“TRIGID”) on February 1,
2000, pursuant to Ordinance #164 and subsequently modified TRIGID’s basic powers
(Ordinance #171 on August 8, 2001 and Ordinance #176 on June 5, 2001) so that TRIGID now
furnishes water and sewer service.

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 318.080, after adopting the formation ordinance, and prior
to appointing the first Board of Trustees, the BCC constituted the ex officio Board of Trustees
for the District and, in that role, established accounting practices and procedures, auditing
practices and procedures, a budget and management standards for TRIGID.

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 318.080, the BCC appointed the first Board of Trustees
(the "Trustees") for TRIGID, and since that time, the Trustees have governed TRIGID to provide
water and sewer service.



WHEREAS, Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center, LLC, as the master developer of TRI Center
(“Master Developer™), had the responsibility to construct and dedicate to TRIGID water and
sewer utility facilities for the initial build out of TRI Center, which it has largely completed.

WHEREAS, until June 30, 2020, TRIGID contracted with a private company, TRI Water
and Sewer Company, a Delaware corporation controlled by the Master Developer (“Operating
Company”), to operate the water and sewer facilities within TRIGID’s service territory and to
provide water and sewer service to TRIGID's customers.

WHEREAS, TRIGID and Master Developer entered into an exit agreement, approved by
the TRIGID Board of Trustee on August 24, 2020, that sets forth their respective rights and
responsibilities as the Master Developer winds down its involvement in the construction and
operation of TRIGID, and as of July 1, 2020, TRIGID has taken over all operations from the
Operating Company.

WHEREAS, NRS 318.080 requires that each Trustee be a qualified elector of the district,
which means they must be residents of the TRIGID service area.

WHEREAS, because there is a limited population residing within TRIGID’s service area,
the number of qualified residents of the TRIGID service area who are eligible for service as a
TRIGID trustee is very limited.

WHEREAS, due to the limited residential population within TRIGID’s service area,
TRIGID currently has two vacancies on the current Board of Trustees, which it cannot fill.

WHEREAS, in the event that any one of the current Trustees cannot attend a meeting of
the Board of Trustees, a quorum does not exist, and TRIGID cannot take any action to complete
the business of the District.

WHEREAS, this situation poses a serious vulnerability to the secure and sustainable
operations of TRIGID.

WHEREAS, due to their employment and other relationships with the Master Developer,
the current members of the Board of Trustees may have potential or actual conflicts of interest
with regard to certain matters that the Board must consider, which is unduly burdensome on
TRIGID’s operations and policy decisions.

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 318.0953, the BCC may at any time resume its role as the
ex officio Board of Trustees of TRIGID by adopting an ordinance to that effect.

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 318.0953, should the BCC adopt such an ordinance, it
becomes the board of TRIGID thirty days after the effective date the ordinance is adopted.

WHEREAS, at its regular meeting held on August 27, 2020, after discussion, upon
motion duly made, seconded and unanimously approved, TRIGID’s Trustees passed a resolution



requesting that the BCC serve as the Ex-Officio Board of Trustees for TRIGID commencing on
or about January 1, 2021.

WHEREAS, at a hearing during its regularly scheduled meeting on September 15, 2020,
the BCC approved a modified service plan for TRIGID.

WHEREAS, the BCC considered the Trustees’ request for the BCC to serve as TRIGID’s
Ex-Officio Board of Trustees at a hearing during the BCC’s regularly scheduled meeting on
November 17, 2020, which was held by teleconference in accordance with the Governor’s
Directive 006 related to social distancing criteria during the COVID-19 pandemic. The meeting
agenda was properly noticed as required by law. All interested persons and members of the
public were given the opportunity to comment via teleconference, after which the Board
discussed and deliberated on the issue of governance.

NOW THEREFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF STOREY
COUNTY, NEVADA, DO ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:

Proceedings were properly initiated and held for the BCC to become the Ex-Officio
Board of Trustees of TRIGID pursuant to Chapter 318 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The BCC
is authorized and empowered under NRS Chapter 318, in addition to powers elsewhere conferred
upon the BCC, to hear the request of the TRIGID Trustees and for the BCC to ordain itself the ex
officio Board of Trustees of TRIGID.

SECTION 2:

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County hereby ordains itself and shall be
the Ex-Officio Board of Trustees of TRIGID according to NRS Chapter 318. Pursuant to NRS
318.0953, the effective date of the BCC becoming the ex officio Board of Trustees of TRIGID
shall be thirty days from the date of approval of this ordinance.

SECTION 3: -
Within this statutory 30-day period, the county clerk shall promptly cause a copy of this
ordinance to be:

a. Filed in the county clerk’s office;
Transmitted to the secretary of TRIGID; and
c. Filed in the Office of the Secretary of State without the payment of any fee

and otherwise in the same manner as articles of incorporation are required
to be filed under NRS Chapter 78.

SECTION 4:

At its first regularly scheduled meeting after the effective date of the BCC becoming the
ex officio board of TRIGID, the BCC shall designate the persons who will serve as President,
Vice-President and Secretary/Treasurer of TRIGID according to the requirements of NRS
318.09533.



SECTION 5:

As the ex officio Board of Trustees of TRIGID, the BCC will hold the regular meetings
of TRIGID during the regularly scheduled BCC meetings on the second Tuesday of every
month, or at such other times and as it may determine according to the requirements of law.

SECTION 6:

TRIGID shall maintain staffing levels and necessary contracts to operate independently
of the County, including separate counsel and engineering services. Other than the change in
governance made herein, nothing in this ordinance shall be construed to alter the current
operations of TRIGID. TRIGID shall continue to operate according to its existing rules,
regulations, policies, contracts, resolutions and other directives and approvals of the TRIGID
Board of Trustees.

SECTION 7:
The District shall maintain appropriate rates and fees for water, sewer, and reuse utilities
in order to operate without any additional cost to the County.

SECTION 8:

The description of the current boundaries of TRIGID is contained in Exhibit “A” attached
hereto and by reference made a part hereof, comprising the area commonly known as the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Center
SECTION 9:

This Ordinance is based upon the following findings of the BCC:

a. If the BCC elects to serve as the ex-officio Board of Trustees for TRIGID,
TRIGID would be afforded greater security, functionality, and sustainability.
b. This security could provide more opportunity for economic development and

growth within the TRI Center, creating potential for increase in property values
and related increase for ad-valorem revenues, to the overall benefit of the
residents of Storey County.

c. Because TRIGID is required to operate independently of the County and collect
appropriate rates and fees for the services it provides to its customers, the BCC
serving as the ex officio board of TRIGID will not impose additional costs on
County residents or an undue burden on County resources.

"
i
"
"
"



SECTION 10:
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and
publication as prescribed by NRS 244.100.

Proposed on November 17, 2020.

Proposed by Commissioner

Passed on

Vote
Ayes
Nays
Absent
Abstentions

Chair



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: November 17, 2020 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [X]

1. Title: Discussion and possible action on the business impact statement for the proposed diesel tax
ordinance, Bill No. 127, Ordinance No. 20-316.

2. Recommended motion: Based on staff’s finding of no significant business impact [ move to
approve the business impact statement determining the diesel tax ordinance does not impose a direct
and significant economic burden on a business or directly restrict the formation, operation or
expansion of a business.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, County Manager
Robert Morris, outside legal counsel

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The 2019 Nevada Legislature passed and the Governor signed Senate Bill 48, an
Act relating to taxation; authorizing boards of county commissioners in certain smaller counties to
impose an additional tax on diesel fuel; along with other provisions. The legislation authorized
Storey County to enact up to a $0.05 (five cent) per gallon diesel tax. Before the Board may approve
the diesel tax ordinance, it is required under NRS 237, to consider a business impact statement that
determines whether the proposed ordinance imposes a direct and significant economic burden on
businesses or directly restricts the formation, operation or expansion of a business. The tax is an
incremental increase that does have beneficial effects. (See attached busines impact statement.)

Staff has determined there is no significant business impact. The business impact statement was
introduced November 17, 2020 and notice to potentially affected businesses has been sent. If no
response is received the county it is presumed that the ordinance doesn’t have an adverse effect.

Any responses will be considered during the hearing on this item.

5. Supporting materials: Business impact statement, ordinance

6. Fiscal impact: The estimated proceeds of the tax are $250,000. The funds will be split between
the state and the county.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[R— R

Agenda Item No. |7



Business Impact Statement

The following business impact statement was prepared pursuant to NRS 237.090 1o
address the proposed impact of Ordinance No. 20-316 adopting a 5 cent per gallon diesel
fuel tax.

1. The description of the manner in which comment was solicited from affected
business, a summary of their responses and an explanation of the manner in which
other interested persons may obtain a copy of the summary:

The county manager’s office mailed on November 16, 2020, or before, a copy of
the business impact statement with attached exhibit A, Process to object to Rule Causing
a Business Impact and a sample petition objecting to the adoption of a rule, to the
following: Nevada Trucking Association, Carson Valley Oil Co., Flyers Energy LLC,
Golden State/S.E.T. Petroleum Partners of Nevada, and Inter-State Oil Co., and has
copies available at the counter of the clerk’s office and on the Storey County website.

The Board of County Commissioners on November 17, 2020, introduced the
business impact statement and approved the first reading of an ordinance to impose a
diese] fuel tax in the amount of 5 cents per gallon. The material presented include the
draft business impact statement and the ordinance. The public hearing on December 1,
2020 will consider any comments from potentially affected businesses and determine
whether to approve the business impact statement. The second reading of the ordinance
will be on December 15, 2020. A copy of the ordinance and the business impact
statement are available at the clerk’s office.

2. The estimated economic effect of the proposed rule on businesses, which it is to
regulate, without limitation, both adverse and beneficial; and both direct and
indirect effects:

a. Adverse effects:
The approval of the diesel tax will increase the cost of purchasing diesel fuel in
Story County by 5 cents per gallon.

b. Beneficial effects:

A portion of the diesel tax revenue will be used by the Nevada Department of
Transportation to create highway truck parking areas in Storey County.

The rest of the diesel tax revenue will be used to maintain or improve roads
within Storey County.

¢. Direct effects:
The diesel tax will improve the roads and highway truck parking in Storey
County.

d. Indirect effects:
None known at this time.

Draft 12-1-20 1



3. The description of the methods that the governing body of the local government
or its designee considered to reduce the impact of the proposed rule on businesses
and a statement regarding whether the governing body or its designee actually used
any of the methods:

The county manager, on behalf of the board, concluded the ordinance adoption
could not really be simplified but that that all businesses should be treated the same.

4. The estimated cost to the government for enforcement of the proposed rule:

The county manager estimates no additional cost to enforce the diesel tax as it is
similar to the enforcement of the existing gas tax

5. Does the proposed rule provide for a new fee or increases an existing fee, the
annual amount the local government expects to collect and the manner in which the
money will be used.

The total annual revenue generated by the 5 cent diesel tax is estimated to be
$250,000.

6. Does the proposed rule include provisions which duplicate or are more stringent
than federal, state, or local standards regulating the same activity, and provide an
explanation of why such duplicative or stringent provisions are necessary:

No.

7. The reasons for the conclusions regarding the impact of the proposed rule on
businesses.

There is a direct and financial impact on diesel suppliers and diesel transportation
owners and operators, however the funds will be used to benefit those affected by
increased road maintenance and highway truck parking.

Based on the information considered, it is recommended that the governing body
or its designee determine the proposed rule is not likely to:
(a) Impose a direct and significant economic burden upon a business; or
(b) Directly restrict the formation, operation or expansion of a business.

I, Austin Osborne, Storey County Manager, certify that to the best of my
knowledge or belief that the information contained in this statement was properly
prepared and is accurate.

Draft 12-1-20 2



Austin Osborne, County Manager Date

Draft 12-1-20 3



EXHIBIT A
PROCESS TO OBJECT TO RULE CAUSING A BUSINESS IMPACT

1. If a business believes it is aggrieved by a Rule (as defined in NRS 237.060) adopted by the
Board of County Commissioners of Storey County, the business may object by filing a petition in
writing with the Storey County Clerk/Treasurer at 26 South B Street in Virginia City, Nevada or
by mailing to P.O. Drawer D Virginia City, Nevada 89444

2. The Board of County Commissioners will accept such petitions for a period of thirty (30) days
following approval of the subject Rule for one of the following reasons:

(a) The governing body failed to prepare a business impact statement as required
pursuant to Chapter 237 of NRS; or

(b) The business impact statement prepared by the governing body did not consider or
significantly underestimated the economic effect of the ordinance or rule on the

business.

3. Upon receipt of the petition, the Clerk/Treasurer will forward a copy to the Storey County
District Attorney, the department/agency/office that generated the Rule, and the Storey County
Manager.

4. Staff will consider the merits of the petition and forward a recommendation to the Board of
County Commissioners,

5. The Board of County Commissioners will determine if the petition has merit and direct staff
accordingly.

6. A sample petition is attached.

Draft 12-1-20 4



SAMPLE PETITION OBJECTING TO ADOPTION OF RULE

NRS 237.100 provides that a business that is aggrieved by an ordinance,
regulation, resolution or other type of instrument through which a governing body
exercises legislative powers, except pursuant to Chapter 271, 278, 278A and
278B of NRS (herein a “Rule”} adopted by the governing body may object to all
or a part of the Rule by filing a petition. This petition form is provided to assist
those who wish to object. The petition must be filed with the Storey County
Clerk/Treasurer 26 South B Street in Virginia City, Nevada or by mailing to P.O.
Drawer D, Virginia City, NV 89444, within thirty (30) days after the date on which
the Rule was adopted.

Petitioner's name:
(Include name of the business or proposed business and whether it is a
corporation, partnership, sole proprietorship, fictitious name):

Petitioner’s type of business:

Petitioner's business location:

Street

City Co'unty

State

Petitioner's mailing address: (If different from above):

Petitioner’s telephone number: ( ) -

Petitioner is objecting to the following.

(Identify the Rule to which petitioner is objecting and state whether it is an
ordinance, resolution, regulation or other instrument. Please give number if
known.)

The basis of the petitioner's objection is as follows:
The governing body failed to prepare a business impact statement; or

Draft 12-1-20 5



The business impact statement did not consider or significantly
underestimated the economic effect of the adopted Rule.

The nature of the impact of the above Rule on the petitioner’s business is as
follows: (Attach additional sheets if necessary):

By signing below, the signer of this petition certifies he/she is a duly authorized
representative of the business identified above and has been authorized by that
business to file this petition on behalf of the business.

Business Name

By:

Title of Signer:

Draft 12-1-20 6



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Discussion and possibie action on-frstreading of Bill No. 127, Ordinance No. 20-316
amending Storey County Code chapter 3.76 Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax-Road Repair by imposing a tax
on special fuel that consists of diesel fuel sold in Storey County.

2. Recommended motion: I move continue the second reading of Ordinance No. 20-316 to
December 15, 2020.

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne, County Manager
Robert Morris, outside legal counsel

Department: District Attorney’s Office Telephone: 847-0964

4. Staff summary: The 2019 Nevada Legislature passed and the Governor signed Senate Bill 48, an
Act relating to taxation; authorizing boards of county commissioners in certain smaller counties to
impose an additional tax on diesel fuel; along with other provisions. The legislation authorized
Storey County to enact up to a $0.05 (five cent) per gallon diesel tax. The ordinance must be
approved by at least two-thirds of the board or the matter can be submitted to the voters and
approved by a majority of the registered voters in the county voting on the question.

Revenues will be applied to the Storey County Roads fund and will be used for the maintenance and
rehabilitation of roads throughout the county. Diesel fuel sales in Storey County occur
overwhelmingly at the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center. Thus, interstate trucking will be the principal
contributor to these revenues in the county, shifting much of the burden of maintaining TRI-Center
roads from the county taxpayers to the interstate trucking industry. A 5-cent diesel tax is estimated to
generate $250,000 per year in 2020, which will be split between the state and the county. (Continued
on next page...)

5. Supporting materials: Ordinance.

6. Fiscal impact: The estimated proceeds of the tax are $250,000. The funds will be split between
the state and the county.

7. Legal review required: Yes District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Community Development

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved [] Approved with Modifications

e



[] Denied [] Continued Agenda ltem
No.

4. Staff summary continued: If the ordinance is enacted, Storey County will enter into an
agreement with the State governing the collection, disbursement and use of the tax proceeds.
Storey County currently imposes a fuel tax and has a similar agreement with the State of Nevada
regarding collection and disbursement of that tax. Storey County is preparing a business impact
statement and the board will have to make a finding of whether this tax imposes a significant
burden on the formation of businesses in Storey County.



Bill No.

Ordinance No. 20-2

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 3.76 Motor Vehicie
Fuel Tax-Road Repair by imposing a tax on special fuel that
consists of diesel fuel sold in Storey County.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code chapter 3.76 Motor Vehicle
Fuel Tax-Road Repair by imposing a tax on special fuel that
consnsts of diesel fuel sold in Storey County and providing for
other properly related matters

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada,
does ordain:

SECTION I: Chapter 3.76 is amended as follows:

Chapter 3.76 Motor Vehicle Fuel Tax-Road Repair

Sections:

3.76.010 Tax imposed.

3.76.020 Proceeds use.

3.76.030 Date of imposition.

3.76.040 State provisions included.

3.76.050 Amendments to state provisions included

3.76.010 Tax imposed.

A. Pursuant to the authority of Nevada Revised Statutes, section 365.192 et al., it is
ordained that provision for the imposition and collection of a tax on motor fuel of one
cent per gallon be made.

B. A five cent per gallon tax is imposed on diesel fuel sold in Storey County.

3.76.015 Payment of tax.
Every dealer must:
A. Pay an excise tax of one cent on all motor vehicle fuel sold_distributed or used in
the manner and within the time prescribed in Nevada Revised Statutes chapter 373.
B. Pay an excise tax of five cents per gallon on all diesel fuel sold_distributed or

used in the manner and within the time prescribed in Nevada Revised Statutes chapter
373

Draft 10-6-2020 1



3.76.020 Proceeds use.

The tax proceeds may be used solely for the repair or restore existing paved roads,
streets and alleys, other than those maintained by the federal government and this state by
resurfacing, overlaying, resealing or such customary methods.

3.76.030 Date of imposition.

A. The Storey County motor vehicle fuel tax shall must be imposed on the first day of
the second calendar month following the approval of the ordinance codified in this
chapter by the voters of Storey County.

B. The diesel tax imposed by this chapter becomes effective on the first day of the
second calendar month following enactment following the enactment of the ordinance
imposing or changing the diesel tax.

3.76.040 State provisions included.
All applicable provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 365, are made a
part of this chapter.

3.76.050 Amendments to state provisions included.

All amendments to chapter 365, Nevada Revised Statutes, which are not inconsistent
with this chapter, shall automatically become part of this chapter as long as the
amendments are enacted after the effective date of the subject ordinance.

Proposed on , 2020,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2020.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair

Draft 10-6-2020 2



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanessa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on February 1, 2021.

Draft 10-6-2020 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: December 1, 2020 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required {x]

1. Title; Discussion/Possible Action: First Reading of Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313, text amendments to
Storey County Code Title 16 - Subdivisions and Title 17 - Zoning Ordinance, specifically sections
16.20.010 and 17.03.230, to modify language that allows for a third-party review for Planned Unit
Development and Subdivision applications, including that the cost for such third-party review be paid
by the applicant.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by staff and the Planning
Commission, | (commissioner) move to approve the First Reading of Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313, text
amendments to Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions and Title 17 Zoning Ordinance, specifically
sections 16.20.010 and 17.03.230, to modify language that allows for a third-party review for Planned
Unit Development and Subdivision applications, including that the cost for such third-party review be
paid by the applicant. Date for Second Reading is scheduled for the December 15, 2020 Board of
County Commissioner’s meeting.

3. Prepared by: Kathy Canfield

4. Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144

5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2020-034 and Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2020-034 and Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
8. Legal review required: District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Planning

County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:
M Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
(] Denied [

Continued

L

Agenda [tem No. lq



STOREY COUNTY
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Storey County Courthouse 2
26 South B Street, PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440 Phone (775)
847-1144 - Fax (775) 847-0949 3

planning@storeycounty.org

0
To: Storey County Board of County Commissioners
From: Storey County Planning Department
Meeting Date: December 1, 2020
Meeting Locatlon: Storey County Courthouse, 26 5. B Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada, via
Zoom
Staff Contact: Kathy Canfield
File: 2020-034
Request: Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313, text amendments to Storey County Code Title 16

- Subdivisions and Title 17 - Zoning Ordinance, specifically sections
16.20.010 and 17.03.230, to modify language that allows for a third-party
review for Planned Unit Development and Subdivision applications,
including that the cost for such third-party review be paid by the applicant.

Background & Analysis

The Storey County Code allows for applicants to apply for Planned Unit Developments and Subdivisions.
A Planned Unit Development is the process of planning for the development of land by an owner, and
may include the layout of streets, utilities, drainage systems and subdivision of parcels of land for
residential, commercial, public or industrial land uses, or a combination of some or all of these types of
land uses.

Storey County recognizes that while this is a preferable process to plan large tracts of land, the review of
such proposals may be time-consuming and may require expertise beyond the capabilities of staff.
Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) and the Storey County Code also identify timelines to be met for the
review of such applications, typically 65 days from a complete submittal package to action by the Board
of County Commissioners.

in order to provide a thorough and timely review, Storey County proposes to utilize the expertise of a
qualified firm to provide assistance to County staff when necessary. The assistance is proposed through
a "third party” review, and the applicant would be responsible for the payment of these services. The



Community Development Department has a similar process in place for complex building plan review.

Not all submitted Planned Unit Developments and/or Subdivisions of and may require a third-party
review process. Staff proposes a process that the applicant shall meet with staff prior to submittal of
such an application and go over the proposed design. At that time, staff will Identify the need, if any, for
a third-party review of the Planned Unit Development and/or Subdivision application. If the need is
identifled, staff will cantact the third-party reviewer for a cost'estimate for the review. That cost
estimate amount is to be submitted along with the normal County application fee at the time of
application submittal,

If the applicant has questions or concerns about the cost estimate, staff will review the questions and
concerns with the third-party reviewer. If an agreement to the cost estimate can not reached, the
applicant has the ability to follow the appeal process identified in Chapter 17.03 of the Storey County
Zoning Ordinance.

At this time, the County has contracts with several independent firms for engineering, surveying, plan
review and other tasks as necessary. It is anticipated that if such a Planned Unit Development and/or
Subdivision application is submitted in the near future, one of these firms, based on the potential issues
associated with the application, would be identified as the third-party reviewer.

The proposed language changes are inciuded as Appendix A of this staff report.
Planning Commission Meeting

The Planning Commission heard this item at their November 5, 2020 meeting. The commissioners
raised questions about the intent of the third party review, the processing and timing of such a review
and the process for when an applicant doesn’t agree with a cost estimate. A concern was raised that
this process may make a review longer. Staff stated that this process is to help facilitate the review of a
large PUD so that the process doesn’t take longer and can meet Nevada Revised Statutes {NRS} and
Storey County timelines. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to recommend approval of the proposed
modifications.

Motions

For approval: | {commissioner) recommend approval of Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313, text amendments to
Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions and Title 17 Zoning Ordinance, specifically sections 16.20.010
and 17.03.230, to modify language that allows for a third-party review for Planned Unit Development
and Subdivision applications, including that the cost for such third-party review be paid by the applicant.

For denial: | (commissioner) recommend denial of Bill 124, Ordinance 20-313, text amendments to
Storey County Code Title 16 Subdivisions and Title 17 Zoning Ordinance, specifically sections 16.20.010
and 17.03.230, to modify language that allows for a third-party review for Planned Unit Development
and Subdivision applications, including that the cost for such third-party review be paid by the applicant.



Bill No. 124

Ordinance No. 20-313

Summary

An ordinance amending Storey County Code sections 16.20.010 General requirements and 17.03.230
Planned unit developments to allow a third-party review fee
for the cost of review of subdivision and planned unit development {PUD) maps.

Title

An ordinance amending Storey County Code sections 16.20.010 General requirements and 17.03.230
Planned unit developments to allow a third-party review fee for the cost of review of subdivision and
planned unit development maps and providing for other properly related matters.

The Board of County Commissioners of the County of Storey, State of Nevada, does ordain:
SECTION (: Thtle 16 Subdivisions is amended as follows:

16.20.010 General requirements
A. General procedures. All subdivision applications must be processed in 2 stages:
1. Application for tentative map approval; and
2. Application for final map approval.
The board is the final decision maker for purposes of tentative and final subdivision maps. The planning
commission will take action and provide a recommendation to the board on all tentative subdivision maps.
B. Pre-application conference. Before preparing-the submitting g tentative subdivision map, the
subdivider may must file a preliminary review application with the plgnning department to discuss the
procedure for approval of a tentative subdivision map and the requirements as to the general layout of
streets and for reservations of land, street improvements, drainage, sewerage, fire protection, and similar

matters, as well as the avallability of existing services, including schools. The director of pianning or @

designee ma rmin h nty reguir i ¢ of a third party for the review of the tentative

and final subdivision mgp. If assistgnce is required, the director must determine the estimated cost of review,
j r nd

ludin n [ Lfire district is

be refunded.

. C. Applicability. All owners of land or their authorized representatives who propose to divide any iand or
portion thereof, vacant or unimproved, for transfer or development into 5 or more lots, parcels, sites, units
or plots, or to create a commercial subdivision, pursuant to NRS 278.325, must file an application for
approval of a tentative subdivision map. Unless a method of disposition is adopted for the purpose of
evading this chapter or would have the effect of evading this chapter, the provisions of this part do not
apply to: ,

1. Adivision of land into large parcels which creates lots, parcels, sites, units or plots of land, each of
which comprises 40 nominal acres or more of land including roads and roadway easements, and is subject to
chapter 16.40 Division Into Large Parcels;



2. Any division of land which is ordered by any court in this state or created by operation of law;

3. Alien, mortgage, deed or trust, or any other security instrument, provided that creation or
foreclosure of such an instrument on a portion of a larger parcel will not result in the division of the larger
parcel;

4. A security or unit of interest in any investment trust regulated under the laws of the state or any
other interest in an investment entity;

5. Cemetery lots; or

6. An interest in oil, gas, minerals or building materials, which are now or later severed from the surface
ownership of the real property.

D. The flling of a tentative map for 5 or more new condominium ar townhouse dwelling units, or for the
conversation of multi-family dwellings (apartments) to 5 or more condominium or townhouse dwelling units
shall follow the procedures which pertain to the subdivision of land as outlined in this title unless stated
otherwise:

SECTION IlI: Title17 Zoning ordinance is amended as follows:

17.03.230 - Planned unit developments.

A. Pre-application submittal conference, Before an application for a PUD zone may be accepted, a
pre-submittal conference including the developer {or an authorized representative) and county staff,
including staff from other regulatory agencies or jurisdictions if necessary, is required to discuss
proposed plans and review submittal requirements. The purpose of the pre-application submittal
conference will be to determine if and how the proposed development may satisfy the required findings
of fact under section 17.03.230(C).

B. Application. An application for a PUD will include a request for zone change from the existing
zone to PUD; a tentative map pursuant to section 17.03.220 and a PUD development plan which
conforms to the provision of chapter 17.56 (PUD zone). All of these required components will be
submitted together in the application, along with all required fees, including any third-party review fees
pursuant to section 16.20.010 (B), as set by resolution of the board.

C. Approval and required findings. As required by NRS 278A.500, the grant or denial of tentative
approval by minute action must set forth the reasons for the grant, with or without conditions, or for the
denial, andg the minutes must set forth with particularity in what respects the plan would or would not
be in the public interest including, but not limited to, findings on the following:

1. In what respects the plan is or is not consistent with the statement of objectives of a planned
unit development,

2. The extent to which the plan departs from zoning and subdivision regulations otherwise
applicable to the property including, but not limited to, density, bulk and use, and the reasons why these
departures are or are not deemed to be in the public interest.

3, The ratio of residential to nonresidential use in the planned unit development.

4, The purpose, location and amount of the common area In the planned unit development, the
reliability of the proposals for maintenance and conservation of the common area, and the adequacy or
inadequacy of the amount and purpose of the common area as related to the proposed density and type
of residential development.

5. The physical design of the plan and the manner in which the design does or does not make
adequate provision for public services, provide adequate control over vehicular traffic, and further the
amenities of light and air, recreation and visual enjoyment.

6. The relationship, beneficial or adverse, of the proposed pianned unit development to the
neighborhood in which it is proposed to be established.

7. In the case of a plan which proposes development over a period of years, the sufficiency of the




terms and conditions intended to protect the interests of the public, residents and owners of the
planned unit development in the integrity of the plan.

8. The extent to which the plan is consistent with the statement of objectives of a planned unit
development contained in the master plan, this chapter, and chapter 17.56 {Planned unit development
z0Nne).

9. The extent to which the proposed development is compatible and preserves the character and
integrity of adjacent developments and communities.

10. The extent to which the quality or quantity of available water for surrounding communities
and uses will be protected.

11.The extent to which sufficient quality and quantity of water serving the anticipated number of
units in the proposed development, including phasing and at completion, will be provided.

12. The extent to which the development conforms to existing topography (including hillside and
ridgefine environments as described in chapter 17.56, water bodies, natural drainage systems, and other
geographic features.

13. The extent to which the development provides for an orderly and creative arrangement of
land uses that include a variety of housing types, commercial services, employment and recreational
opportunities, and common area for recreational purpose (passive and active), or any combination
thereof, designed to achieve a balanced integration of economic, housing, or redevelopment
opportunities.

14. The extent to which the development mitigates adverse impacts such as traffic, noise, odors,
visual nuisances, light pollution, or other similar adverse effects to adjacent developments and
communities.

15. Where the development plan proposes development over a period of years, the sufficiency
of the terms and conditions intended to protect the interest of the public, residents, and owners of the
PUD and the integrity of the plan and, where the plan provides phases, the period in which the
application for each phase must be filed.

16. Where there is deviation from the standard ordinance requirements in the County Code, how
it will be warranted by the design and additional amenities incorporated in the development which
offers certain unusual redeeming features to compensate for any allowed deviations.

17. The extent to which the development will not result in material prejudice or diminution In
the value of surrounding properties, and will not endanger the health, safety, and general welfare of the
community,

D. Development standards. The development standards, density, and intensity of uses of a planned
unit development are regulated pursuant to chapter 17.56

E. Revision procedure. A public hearing by the planning commission and board is required before
revisions to the plan which involve changes in land use, expansion, or intensification of development, or
changes in the standards of development may be approved. The director wiil determine on a case-by-
case basis those instances when a revision to the development pian is necessary, following the same
procedure as the original application. Changes in an approved development plan which do not involve
changes in land use, expansion, or intensification of development or changes In the standards of
development may be approved by the director if the changes are consistent with the purposes,
character, and conditions of the development plan.

F. Development schedule, modification, or revocation.

1. An application for a PUD approval must be accompanied by a development schedule, including
a phasing plan, indicating the dates when applications for final approval of all sections of the plan are to
be filed and, in the case of tentative maps, dates that the final map or series of final maps must be
recorded by.



2. Minute order. As required by NRS 278A.510, unless the time is specified in an agreement
entered into pursuant to NRS 278.0201, if a plan is granted tentative approval, with or without
conditions, the board must set forth, in the minute action, the time within which an application for final
approval of the plan must be filed or, in the case of a plan which provides for development over a perlod
of years, the periods within which application for final approval of each part thereof must be filed. The
board may add, delete, or modify the conditions of approval for a planned development when approving
a modification to a development schedule.

3. Tentative approval will be revoked for areas included in the plan for which final approval has
not been given if:

a. The landowner elects to abandon the plan or any part thereof, and so notifies the
director in writing; or

b. The landowner fails to file apglication for the final approval within the required time.

G. ldentification. Each planned development overlay must be numbered, the first adopted being
shown on the zoning map as planned development (1) and each zone subsequently adopted being
numbered consecutively.

H. Compliance with chapter, application restricted. Compliance with any requirement contained in
this chapter must not be construed to relieve the applicant from compliance with subdivision
regulations, building code requirements, or any other applicable regulations of the county, except when
they are modified in the approval process.

I. Status of plan after tentative approval.

1.Tentative approval of a planned development plan does not qualify the plan for recording or
authorize development or the issuance of any building permits. Recording and development of the
ptanned development requires filing and approval of substantially conforming applications for final
approval of each phase within the time specified in the order approving the application for tentative
approval.

2. A plan which has been approved by the board as submitted, or which has been given tentative
approva! with conditions which have been accepted by the developer, may not be modified, revoked or
otherwise impaired by action of the county pending an application for final approval without the consent
of the developer or assigns, except as provided in subsection 17.03.230(l).

J. Revocation of tentative approval. Tentative approval may be revoked in accordance with the
procedures set farth in this chapter and the portion of the area included in the plan for which final
approval has not been given is subject to the current provisions of this title if:

1. The developer elects to abandon the plan or any part thereof, and so notifies the county in
writing; or

2. The landowner fzils to file applications for final approval within the times established in the
tentative approval.

K. Procedure for final map approval.

1.Application requirements. An application for final approval of a phase or phases of a PUD must
be submitted to the director on forms provided by the community development department within the
times specified by the tentative approval of the plan. The application for final approval may be for all the
land included in a tentatively approved plan or, to the extent set forth in the tentative approval, for a
particular phase of the plan. The application must be accompanied by the maps, drawings,
specifications, fees, covenants, easements, conditions and forms of performance security required in the
tentative approval or otherwise required by law. If a tentative map is submitted with the development
plan, a final map must be approved at or before final plan approval.

2.Determination of substantial compliance. The director will review the application for final
approval and all information submitted and determine whether it complies with the approved tentative
plan. The plan submitted for final approval will not be in substantial compliance if any modification:



a. Varies the proposed gross residential density or intensity of use; \
b. Varies the proposed ratic of residential to non-residentiat use;

c. Involves a reduction of the area set aside for common area or involves the substantial
relocation of the area;

d. Substantially increases the floor area proposed for non-residential use;

e. Substantially increases the total ground areas covered by buildings or involve a
substantial change in the height of buildings;

f. No longer meets adequate public facilities standards of this title, except for minor
modifications in the location and design of streets or facilities for water and for disposal of storm water
and sanitary; or

g. Is not accompanied by proof of satisfaction of conditions imposed as prerequisites to
final plan approval.

3. Approval of applications which substantially comply with tentative approval. The director must
approve a final plan if it is in substantial compliance with the plan as tentatively approved.

L. Procedure for determining noncompliance.

1. if the final plan as submitted for final approval is found by the director not to be in substantial
compliance with the plan as tentatively approved, the director must, within thirty days of the date of
filing of the application for final approval, notify the developer in writing the particular ways in which the
plan is not in substantial compliance with the tentative approval.

2.The developer may:
a. Treat the notification as a denial of final approval;
b. Re-file the plan in a form which is in substantial compliance with the plan as
tentatively approved; or
c. File a written appeal request with the director that a hearing be set before the
commission on the application for final approval.

3. If the deveioper elects the alternative set forth in subsection 2.b. or 2.c. above, the developer
may re-file the plan or file a request for a public hearing, as the case may be, on or before the last day of
the time within which the developer was authorized by the tentative approval to file for final approval,
or thirty days from the date the developer receives notice of the refusal, whichever is the latter.

4. The public hearing must be held within thirty days after the request for the hearing Is made by
the landowner. Notice must be given and the hearing must be conducted as prascribed by this chapter.
Within twenty days after the conclusion of the hearing, the commission must either grant final approval
of the plan or deny final approva! of the plan. The grant or denial of final approvai of the plan must
contain the findings of fact required in in this section and chapter17.56.

M. Certification, filing and recording of approved plan. A plan, or any part, which has been given
final approval, must be certified without delay by the county and filed of record in the county recorder's
office before any development occurs in accordance with the plan. The county recorder must not file for
record any final plan unless, if required by the provisions of this Code, a final map has been approved,
the certificates of apprbval as required under NRS 278.377 have been provided, or the map is
accompanied by evidence that the approvals were requested more than thirty days before the date on
which the request for filing is made, and that the approval has been refused.

N. Effect of recordatfon. After the final map is recorded for the PUD, or any phase, the zoning and
subdivision regulations of this Code apply to the land subject to the final map or phase only to the extent
that these regulations have been incorporated in the final plan as recorded.

0. Development schedule, revocation or amendment. The PUD project must be initiated within
three years of approval of the final map. If the PUD owner fails to meet this deadline and the approved
schedule, including phasing, the board may initiate proceedings to reclassify the property back to its



original underlying zone(s) and revoke the approval of the development plan, or amend the required

timelines and phasing in the development plan.
\

Proposed on , 2020.

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2020.
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Absent: Commissioners

Marshall McBride, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

Vanassa Stephens
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2020,




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 12-1-2020 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required ( ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion: Approval
3. Prepared by: ‘Ashley Mead
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications arc normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorey

8. Reviewed by:

Wl ead Department Name: Community Development
ounty Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[]  Approved (
[1 Denied - 0

Approved with Modifications
Continued

S

Agenda ltem No.m



$torey County Community WDevelopment

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 528 ~ Virginia City NV 88440

(775) 8470966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To; Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s office November 19, 2020
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Fr: Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the December 1, 2020 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS:

A. High Sierra Fire Protection, LLC - Contractor / 4621 Goni Rd. ~ Carson City, NV
B. Motion & Flow Control Products, Inc. — Out of County / 10822 W Toller Dr. Ste. 300 ~ Littleton, CO
C. RSAnalysis, Inc. - Out of County / 1420 Holcomb Ave., #202 ~ Reno, NV
'D. Sunrise Plumbing & Heating LLC - Contractor / 5330 Grass Valley Rd. ~ Winnemucca, NV
E. The Tow Truck Company — Out of County / 925 Matley Ln. ~ Reno, NV
F. Turner Construction Company - Contractor / 2500 Venture Oaks Ste. 200 ~ Sacramento, CA
G. W. W. Clyde & Co. - Contractor / 869 N. 1500 W. ~ Orem, UT

Ec: Community Development Planning Department SherifTs Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Cffice



